
Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office, 
520 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 
 

Agenda of the Belton City Council 
August 22, 2023 – 6:00 p.m. 

520 Main Street, Belton Missouri 
https://www.belton.org/watch 

 
 

I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER 
 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE – Councilmember Richardson 
 

III. ROLL CALL 
 

IV. PERSONAL APPEARANCES 
 

V. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

A. Motion approving the final reading of Bill No. 2023-46 
An ordinance levying and fixing the rate of tax for municipal purposes, for the 
Park Fund, and for the Debt Service Fund for fiscal year 2024.  

 
B. Motion approving the final reading of Bill No. 2023-47 

An ordinance amending Sections 18-2; 40-1; 40-4; and Appendix A of the Unified 
Development Code related to the Old Town Belton Overlay District and Schedule 
of Fees. 
 

C. Motion approving the final reading of Bill No. 2023-48 
An ordinance removing Appendix A, Part II, of the Code of Ordinances. 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2023-50 

Presented by Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director 
An ordinance approving an Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Autumn 
Woods, generally located at the northwest corner of W. Markey Road and Belton 
Avenue. 

 
    Page 4 
 

B. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2023-21 
Presented by Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director 
An ordinance approving an Amended Development and Maintenance Agreement 
between the City of Belton and Autumn Woods Development, LP for public and 
private infrastructure and site improvements in Autumn Woods. 

 
    Page 38 

001

https://www.belton.org/watch


Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office, 
520 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 
 

C. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2023-51 
Presented by Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director 
An ordinance approving a Final Plat for Cross and Mac, a two-lot subdivision 
located at 510 and 516 3rd Street in the City of Belton, Missouri. 

 
    Page 49 
 

D. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2023-52 
Presented by Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director 
An ordinance approving a rezoning from “A” (Agriculture) to “R-1” (Single-
Family), for a 1.23 +/- acre parcel located at 1208 S. Cedar Street. 

 
    Page 56 
 

E. Motion approving the first reading of Bill No. 2023-53 
Presented by Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director 
An ordinance approving a Final Plat for Bays Place, a two-lot subdivision located 
at 1208-1210 S. Cedar Street in the City of Belton, Missouri 

     
Page 64 
 

F. Motion approving Resolution No. 2023-88 
Presented by Greg Rokos, Assistant City Manager 
A resolution formally accepting the Southview Commerce Center 4th Plat New 
Public Infrastructure of 782 feet of sanitary sewer; 2,252 feet of 8” waterline; 
1,652 feet of 12” waterline; and a two-year maintenance bond in the amount of 
$778,189.76. 

 
    Page 72 
 

G. Motion approving Resolution No. 2023-89 
Presented by Joe Warren, City Manager 
A resolution approving the engagement of BT&Co. to audit the city financial 
records for Fiscal Year 2023. 

     
    Page 77 
 
VII. CONSENT AGENDA 

 
One motion, non-debatable, to approve the “recommendations” noted. Any member of the 
Council may ask for an item to be taken from the consent agenda for discussion and 
separate action. 
 
Presented by Joe Warren, City Manager 
 
 

002



Copies of the proposed ordinances & resolutions are available for public inspection at the City Clerk’s office, 
520 Main Street, Belton, MO 64012 
 

A. Motion approving the Minutes of the August 8, 2023, City Council Meeting.   
 

Page 98 
 

B. Motion approving the July 2023 Municipal Division Summary Report for 
Municipal Court. 
 

Page 104 
 

C. Motion approving Resolution No. 2023-90 
A resolution reappointing Ronald Branan, Dave Clark, and Tom MacPherson and 
appointing Art Meyers to the Enhanced Enterprise Zone Board.     
       

Page 109 
 

VIII. COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY COUNCIL 
 
IX. COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 

 
X. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 

 
September/October 2023 City Council Meetings – 6:00 p.m. 
September 12, 2023 – Canceled 
September 26, 2023 
October 10, 2023 
October 24, 2023 
 

XI. ITEMS FOR REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 
 

A. Aaron’s Family Fun Center – Special Use Permit for Sign 
Presented by Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director 
 

B. Speed Limit Change – Cambridge  
Presented by Greg Rokos, Assistant City Manager 
 

C. Unified Development Code Text Amendment – Rental Regulation Program 
Presented by Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director 

 
XII. Motion to enter Executive Session to discuss matters pertaining to the leasing, purchase or 

sale of Real Estate, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.2, and that the record be closed, 
and the meeting adjourned from there. 

 

003



 

 
 

Bill No. 2023-50 
COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 

 
Title:    Autumn Woods – Amended Preliminary Development Plan  
 
Agenda Date:  August 22, 2023 
 
Presented by:  Matt Wright, Planning & Building Director  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 

• Preliminary and Final Development Plans for Autumn Woods were originally approved in 2015. 
• Amended Preliminary and Final Development Plans were submitted to the Planning Commission 

on March 7, 2023 for review and consideration. The Planning Commission recommend approval 
(4-1) of the Amended Preliminary Development Plan and approved (4-1) the Amended Final 
Development Plan. 

• On April 11, 2023, the Amended Preliminary Development Plan bill failed at the City Council 
due to concerns with limited off-street parking and the lack of enforcement of on-street parking 
that could limit emergency access throughout the development. The City Council subsequently 
tabled a decision on an Amended Development and Maintenance Agreement.  

• The applicant worked with staff on various parking solutions. The most effective solution is to 
provide two-car driveways for each unit with small landscape islands between each driveway. 
Although this limits landscaping (particularly street trees), it doubles the amount of driveway 
parking in the second phase and will significantly reduce the opportunity for on-street parking 
due to driveway locations. 

• Revised Amended Preliminary and Final Development Plans with new parking solutions were 
brought forward to the Planning Commission on August 1, 2023. The Planning Commission 
unanimously recommended approval (5-0) of the revised Amended Preliminary Development 
Plan and approved (5-0) an Amended Final Development Plan. During the discussion, the 
Commission questioned if the driveway widths would be modified in the first phase to match the 
second phase. Staff stated that the first phase is already in development and that widening the 
driveways is not included in the revisions for approval. 

• Staff followed-up with the developer after the Planning Commission meeting to determine the 
feasibility of widening driveways in the first phase. The developer is willing to widen the 
driveways where feasible (there are obstructions that may prevent some driveways from being 
widened – such as utility boxes, fire hydrants, stormwater inlets, etc.). The developer would also 
like to be able to make these additions as they develop the second phase. Staff believes that this 
is an acceptable approach to retrofit driveways in the first phase for buildings that have already 
constructed or permitted. With that, if the City Council would like to make this a requirement, 
staff would propose the following conditions to the Amended Preliminary Development Plan 
approval: 

 

INTEGRITY & DEDICATION TO SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

004



 

 
 

o Driveways in the first phase shall be widened to match the driveway widths in the second 
phase, where feasible. A driveway widening shall be considered feasible when there are 
no physical obstructions that would hinder the driveway addition. In locations where 
driveways are expanded, landscaping shall follow the same landscaping pattern and 
scheme as provided for in the second phase. All driveway widenings must be completed 
prior to final occupancy of the final building in the second phase.    

 
Financial/Budget Considerations 

• As part of the amended development plans and Development Maintenance and Agreement, the 
developer has the option of going from a single master meter to each unit (101 units) having 
individual meters.  

 
Legal Considerations 

• If the revised Amended Preliminary Development Plan is denied, the developer is still allowed to 
proceed with the previously approved plans which do not provide for any additional parking.  

 
Policy Considerations 

• There are no specific policy considerations with this development plan, however, concerns with 
past approvals should impact future code and policy changes for multi-family housing 
development site and building design standards.  

 
Staff Recommendation 

• Staff believes that the revised plans are an improvement to the original approved plans that are 
currently in effect. The revised plans provide additional off-street parking as requested by the 
City Council, while also providing additional amenities and landscaping. For these reasons, staff 
recommends approval of the Amended Preliminary Development Plan for Autumn Woods. 

 

INTEGRITY & DEDICATION TO SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

005



BILL NO. 2023-50              ORDINANCE NO. 2023- 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED PRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR AUTUMN WOODS, GENERALLY LOCATED AT THE NORTHWEST 
CORNER OF W. MARKEY ROAD AND BELTON AVENUE. 
 
WHEREAS, a request was submitted to amend a previously approved Preliminary Development 
Plan for Autumn Woods, a 101-unit multi-family development generally located at the northwest 
corner of W. Markey Road and Belton Avenue, more specifically described below and in 
Exhibit A; and    
 
WHEREAS, the purpose of the amended Preliminary Development Plan is to allow the option 
of the installation of individual water meters for each unit, the opportunity to replat the property 
in the future as individual buildings or units, and enhancements to the landscaping, amenities, 
and parking beyond what was originally approved; and 
 
WHEREAS, notice of the Preliminary Development Plan was sent to property owners within 
185-feet of the site; and  
 
WHEREAS, after due public notice in the manner prescribed by law, a public hearing was held 
before the Belton Planning Commission on August 1, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Belton Planning Commission voted 5-0 to recommend unanimous approval of 
the application to the City Council; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Belton Planning Commission also approved a Final Development Plan subject 
to approval of the Preliminary Development Plan by the City Council; and  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Council of the City of Belton hereby approves the Preliminary 

Development Plan for Autumn Woods, more specifically described as follows and 
in Exhibit A:  
Lot 1, Autumn Woods, a subdivision in Belton, Cass County, Missouri, according 
to the recorded plat thereof. 

 
Section 2. Approval of the Preliminary Development Plan is subject to the following 

conditions and all other items referenced in the staff report and supporting 
documentation attached as Exhibit A: 

 
1. The Preliminary Development Plan and Final Development Plan for 
Autumn Woods are hereby approved, as shown on the plan sets provided by 
SM Engineering and Sullivan Palmer Architects. Approval of the Final 
Development Plan shall not be in effect until the Preliminary Development 
Plan is approved by the City Council. 

006



2. A photometric plan, a signage plan, and playground details shall be 
provided with the final building permit plan set prior to building permit 
issuance. 
3. If it is found that any building or structure resides in the floodplain, 
building permits will not be issued for that structure. 
4. All newly constructed sidewalks will conform to City standards and be 5’ 
wide. 
5. All backflow requirements shall be met and properly installed and 
inspected prior to occupancy. 
6. All stormwater requirements shall be met, including water quality BMPs 
and properly sized piping and capacity for stormwater flow. 
 

Section 3. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions are hereby 

repealed.  
 
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: August 22, 2023 
 
READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:  
 
 

 ______________________________ 
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
 
Approved this ____of ________, 2023. 
 
             
        ______________________________
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
 

 ATTEST: 
 

 ______________________________ 
 Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
 of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
 
 
 
 

---

007



STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON    ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS    ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the ____ day of _______, 2023, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2023-_____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City Council held 
on the ____ day of ______, 2023, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
 
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
        ______________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

008



Autumn Woods (Preliminary & Final Development Plan) – Page 1 

PLANNING APPLICATION STAFF REPORT
PLANNING COMMISSION: AUGUST 1ST, 2023

PROJECT:  Autumn woods
SITE LOCATION: PROJECT REQUEST:

Northwest corner of Belton Ave.
and W. Markey Rd.  
(800 Autumn Woods & Etc. Dr.)

Preliminary & Final 
Development Plan

Project summary
CURRENT ZONING/USE: PROPOSED USE:

R-3 Multi-Family Residential, 
Triplex Multi-Family

Triplex Multi-Family

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: LAND AREA:
33 triplexes and 1 duplex (101 
units) with garages 11 Acres

UTILITY SERVICE:
WATER / SEWER

MODIFICATIONS REQUESTED
OR SPECIAL NOTES:

Yes, available and will 
support the proposed use Yes – noted in staff report

Staff recommendation
STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL SUBJECT TO CONDITIONS

APPLICATION:
Property Owner & Applicant – Mark Siegel / Autumn Woods 
Development, LP
Project Lead & Engineer – Sam Malinowsky/ SM Engineering
Surveyor – Mike Huffman / Huffman Land Surveyors, LLC
Landscape Architect – Garrett Ochs
Architect – Sullivan Palmer Architects

CONTEXTUAL DESCRIPTION:
An application was filed to revise the existing Preliminary 
Development Plan and submit a Final Development Plan for 
“Autumn Woods”, a multi-family development at the 
Northwest corner of Belton Ave. and W. Markey Rd. The 
subject property is a proposed 11-acre block bound by W. 
Markey Rd. the Railroad, and the Markey Meadow multi-
family development. It’s currently under-going construction of 
the first phase.

Exhibit A

~ DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & BUILDING 
City Hall Annex: 520 Main St. Belton, MO 64012 
816-331-4331 I www.Belton.org 

So vthfor~ Rlvd 

Oilln i 

I 
locu,t I-Ii 

009



Autumn Woods (Preliminary & Final Development Plan) – Page 2 
 
 

 

 Development standards 
 
The subject 11-acre site is located at the Northwest corner of Belton Ave. and W. Markey Rd.  is subject to Compliance 
with the R-3 (Multi-Family Residential District) Standards of the Unified Development Code (UDC): The base (R-3) zoning 
district permits the development of triplexes and duplexes.  
 
The tables below include site and parking design standards for the development. The plan meets all site design 
requirements, except for:  

 Modifications have been requested for: number of required trees per dwelling unit and street trees. 
 

 
PARKING DESIGN 

Standard Requirement Proposed 
Multi-Family 
Dwelling (3+ units) 

1.5 per Dwelling Unit (151.5 required 
for 101 units) 

250 spaces  
11 visitor spaces 

 
 

 Building design 
 
BUILDINGS: There are 33 triplex buildings and 1 duplex, totaling 101 units. Phase 1 on the East side of the property 
contains 18 buildings (53 units) and Phase 2 on the West proposes 16 buildings (48 units). Phase 1 is currently under 
construction. Each unit shares an interior wall, is 2-story, and includes a garage.  
 
The buildings proposed are made up of predominately stucco on the 
front facade, with lap siding accenting the second floor and wrapping 
around the sides and back. The front elevation is articulated with 
varying roof lines, garage doors, and front porches, giving the 
appearance of single-family homes. Each unit is provided a covered 
front porch and an 8’x10’ rear patio. The color palette remains the 
same from the first phase, utilizing a family of beige. 
 
PARKING: Based on the comments provided by City Council during 
the 4/11/23 meeting, the lack of parking needed to be addressed to 
move forward. The revised site plan includes a single-space attached garage for each unit with an 18’ wide driveway, 
increasing available parking spaces from 202 spaces to 250 spaces (3 spaces per unit in phase 2). 11 visitor spaces have 
been provided with two separate parking lots located in the middle of the development. On-street parking is also available 
on one side of the street but is now limited based on driveway widths. 
 

SITE DESIGN Standard Requirement Proposed 

Lot Size Min. Lot Size 7,800 sq. ft. 479,502 sq.ft 

Setbacks 
Front Setback (private street) 25-ft. (Build line) 25-ft. 
Side Setback 5-ft.  10-ft. 
Rear Setback 20-ft.  30-ft. 

Building & 
Site Design 

Building Height 35-ft. max. 24-ft. 
Building Coverage 25% max. 15% 
Green Space 30% min. 70% 

010



Autumn Woods (Preliminary & Final Development Plan) – Page 3 
 
 

 Landscaping & SITE DESIGN 
 
LANDSCAPING: A landscape plan has been provided with a mix of shade trees, ornamental trees, shrubs, and ornamental 
grasses. Based on the proposed development, the landscape plan had to provide landscaping in accordance with four 
different sets of requirements. A breakdown of these requirements is listed in the table below. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The landscape plan meets all landscaping requirements except for the internal, per unit landscaping that is required for 
multi-family developments. A modification has been requested to count a section of existing trees on the property 
towards that requirement, as well as count driveway plantings towards the required number of street trees.  
 
FENCING: The site includes a retaining wall along the outside of the floodplain and stream buffer edge. This retaining wall 
will vary in size from 1’ to 6’ depending on the topography. This will be topped with a black chain link fence for safety.  
LIGHTING: The site plan indicates streetlights will be installed on the private street through the development. A 
photometric plan has not been provided, but lighting will be required to meet 
UDC standards. A photometric plan will be required with the final building 
permit plan set prior to building permit issuance. 
AMENITIES: The proposed playground is located in the center of the 
development, off of the walking trail; making it accessible by both sides of the 
development. A conceptual image of some of the play equipment is shown to 
the right. Further playground details will be required with the final building 
permit plan set prior to building permit issuance. A 15’x15’ picnic shelter is also 
proposed in the center of the development for residents to use. 
FLOODPLAIN: Phase 2 or the West side of the development comes very close to 
the stream buffer and floodplain. No work shall occur in the floodplain or 
minimum stream buffer areas, as this would require a variance from buffer 
requirements, which is not proposed. Work in the floodplain would also require engineering analysis demonstrating no 
rise to the floodplain for the 100 year storm, which has not been provided. 
 
 

 Streets / access 
 
The site will have two (2) points of access from W. Markey Rd., which will provide ingress and egress for the site. 

LANDSCAPE 
REQUIREMENTS 

Standard Requirement Proposed 

Multi-Family 0.75 Trees Per Unit 75 Count Existing Trees 

Markey 
Parkway Buffer 
Zone 

20’ Buffer Zone Option B 20-ft  
     1 Shade Tree /60’ 13  13  
     3 Ornamental /100’ 24  24 
     4 Shrubs / 100’ 32  75 

Detention 
Landscaping 
(1,826-ft of 
frontage) 

Shade Trees 50’ Spacing Max 
Ornamental 30’ Spacing Max 
Evergreen 30’ Spacing Max 

19 Shade 

37 Ornamental 
N/A 

Street Trees 1 Shade Tree / 30’ 102  
53 Shade 
7 Ornamental 
Driveway plantings 

011



Autumn Woods (Preliminary & Final Development Plan) – Page 4 
 
 

 
 

 Utilities 
 
The site currently has access to some utilities. An additional public water line and sanitary sewer are being proposed, as 
well as a private storm sewer. These will be installed during construction and the proper easements added. 
 

 detention 
 
Detention serving the subject property was provided with the Autumn Woods Phase 1 and the plans have been adjusted 
to capture additional runoff. The provided detention adequately captures runoff from the site. 
 
 

 Trails and sidewalks 
 
The site plan indicates 4-ft sidewalks along both sides of the street through the property. The private street will need to 
conform to public street standards, so all sidewalks installed in Phase 2 will need to be 5-ft wide. The internal sidewalks 
connect to the proposed 5-ft sidewalk along W. Markey Rd, per UDC requirements. A 5-ft trail is proposed through the 
center green space that connects both sides of the development to the central playground. All sidewalks must meet ADA 
standards. 
 
 

 SIGNAGE 
 
Subdivision signage details and artwork will be required with the final building permit plan set prior to building permit 
issuance. 
 
 

 DEVELOPMENT MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 
 
The previously approved Development Maintenance Agreement for the development is proposed to be amended with 
the Preliminary Development Plan. As part of this Agreement, the following items are being amended: 

 Allowing each dwelling unit to have an individual water meter (rather than a single meter serving the entire 
development); 

 Completion of all infrastructure and landscaping in the first phase prior to building permit issuance in the second 
phase; 

 Completion of all infrastructure, amenities (playground, trail, common landscaping), and on-street visitor parking 
prior to building permit issuance in the second phase; and 

 Establishment of a Property Owners Association with a future Final Plat that townhouses each building or unit. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

012



Autumn Woods (Preliminary & Final Development Plan) – Page 5 
 
 

 

 Compliance with comprehensive plan 
 
The proposed land use is in compliance with both zoning and future land use maps. The Future Land Use Map of the 
Comprehensive Plan (last amended in 2014) designates this site as Multiple/Tri/Quad Plex.  
 
 

 Economic development considerations 
 
This triplex development would help meet the needs of the growing community and provide another housing type to the 
Belton market. 
 
 

 FINDINGS OF FACT 
 
UDC Section 20-5 requires Final Development Plans to be reviewed under the following criteria: 

a. The plan complies with all applicable standards of this Code and all other applicable city ordinances and 
policies, except as otherwise requested through a PUD, Alternative Development Standard, or Variance. 

b. The plan does not conflict with the adopted plans of the City or the purpose and intent of this Code. 

c. The proposed use is allowed in the zoning district in which it is located. 

d. Vehicular ingress and egress to and from the site, and circulation within the site provides for safe, efficient, 
and convenient movement within the site and on adjacent roadways. 

e. The plan provides for safe, efficient, and convenient movement of pedestrians on and to the site.  

f. The arrangement of structures and buildings on the site allows for the efficient use of the land, is 
compatible with development on adjacent properties, and minimizes potential adverse impacts on 
existing or planned municipal infrastructure and services. 

g. Open space and natural features on the site are arranged in such a way that unique natural resources are 
preserved and creates a desirable and functional environment for site users. 

h. The plan avoid unnecessary or unreasonable alterations to existing topography, preserves existing 
healthy, mature trees and woodlands, and designs drainage facilities to promote the use and preservation 
of natural watercourses. 

i. Provides adequate parking for the use, including logical and safe parking and circulation. 

j. Provides landscaping and screening as required by this Code that creates logical transitions to adjoining 
uses, screens incompatible uses, minimizes the visual impact of the development on adjacent roads and 
properties, and utilizes native plant materials selected to withstand the local climate and individual site 
microclimates. 

k. Includes site illumination that has been designed and located to minimize adverse impacts on adjacent 
properties. 

 
UDC Section 20-6 requires any requested non-signage modifications (Alternative Development Standards) with a Final 
Development Plan to be reviewed under the following criteria: 

a. The proposed alternative development standard(s) will better serve the public interest than strictly 
adhering the Code. 

013



Autumn Woods (Preliminary & Final Development Plan) – Page 6 
 
 

b. The proposed alterative development standard(s) will be consistent with the objectives, policies, and 
general land uses and programs in the City’s Comprehensive Plan and any other adopted plans. 

c. The proposed alternative development standard(s) is consistent with other provisions of this Code. 

d. The location, size, design, and operating characteristics of the proposed alternative development 
standard(s) will not create unusual noise, traffic, or other conditions or situations that may be 
objectionable, detrimental, or incompatible with other permitted uses in the vicinity. 

e. The proposed alternative development standard(s) will not result in conditions or circumstances contrary 
to the public health, safety, and general welfare. 

 
 
Based on the above findings of fact, the Autumn Woods development meets all City standards and requirements in the 
UDC, outside of the modifications requested. The proposed use and site plan complies with the comprehensive plan, 
future land use plan, almost all applicable site development standards, and is consistent with the adjacent developed 
properties.  
 
The requested alternative development standards, or modifications, will not negatively impact surrounding properties, 
compromise the general purpose or intent of the UDC, or compromise the health, safety, and welfare of the community. 
 
 

 Staff recommendation 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Preliminary and Final Development Plan for Autumn Woods. The recommendation is 
subject to the following conditions:  

1. The Preliminary Development Plan and Final Development Plan for Autumn Woods are hereby approved, as 
shown on the plan sets provided by SM Engineering and Sullivan Palmer Architects. Approval of the Final 
Development Plan shall not be in effect until the Preliminary Development Plan is approved by the City Council.  

2. A photometric plan, a signage plan, and playground details shall be provided with the final building permit plan 
set prior to building permit issuance. 

3. If it is found that any building or structure resides in the floodplain, building permits will not be issued for that 
structure. 

4. All newly constructed sidewalks will conform to City standards and be 5’ wide. 
5. All backflow requirements shall be met and properly installed and inspected prior to occupancy. 
6. All stormwater requirements shall be met, including water quality BMPs and properly sized piping and capacity 

for stormwater flow. 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ALTERNATIVES 

1. Motion to recommend approval of the Preliminary Development Plan and approve the Final Development Plan 
for Autumn Woods, with conditions.  

2. Motion to recommend denial of the Preliminary Development Plan and deny the Final Development Plan for 
Autumn Woods. 

3. Motion to continue the applications for further information. 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Project Narrative – 1 page 
2. Preliminary Development Plan (including site plans and landscape plan) – 11 pages 
3. Final Development Plan (including site plans and landscape plan) – 11 pages 
4. Building Elevations – 2 pages  

014



015



C
1.

0
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

SI
TE

SE
CT

IO
N

 M
AP

SE
C.

 0
2 

TW
. 

46
  R

N
G

. 
33

1.
CO

VE
R 

SH
EE

T
2.

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

DI
TI

O
N

S
3.

LA
YO

U
T 

PL
AN

4.
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

5.
G

RA
DI

N
G

 P
LA

N
5.

1
IM

PE
RV

IO
U

S 
PL

AN
5.

2
O

VE
RF

LO
W

 P
LA

N
6.

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R 

PL
AN

 A
N

D 
PR

O
FI

LE
7.

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R 

PL
AN

 A
N

D 
PR

O
FI

LE
8.

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 P

LA
N

IN
DE

X 
O

F 
SH

EE
TS

SE
CT

IO
N

 0
2,

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

 4
6 

N
O

RT
H

, 
RA

N
G

E 
33

 W
ES

T

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

RE
VI

SE
D 

PR
EL

IM
IN

AR
Y 

DE
VE

LO
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

BE
LT

O
N

 C
AS

S 
CO

U
N

TY
, 

M
IS

SO
U

RI

M
AR

KE
Y 

PK
W

Y

TU
RN

ER
 R

D

LA
N

D 
DE

SC
RI

PT
IO

N
:

LO
T 

1,
 B

LO
CK

 5
 A

U
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

, 
 A

  S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
 IN

BE
LT

O
N

, 
CA

SS
 C

O
U

N
TY

, 
M

IS
SO

U
RI

, 
AC

CO
RD

IN
G

 T
O

 T
H

E
RE

CO
RD

ED
 P

LA
T 

TH
ER

EO
F,

 F
IL

ED
 IN

 P
LA

T 
BO

O
K 

37
81

 A
T

PA
G

E 
51

5.

M
AR

KE
Y 

PK
W

Y

ST LOUIS R
R

SCOTT AVE

HWY 49

HWY Y

TU
RN

ER
 R

O
AD

WESTOVER ROAD

PR
O

JE
CT

 S
IT

E

LO
CA

TI
O

N
 M

AP

ST
AN

DA
RD

 L
EG

EN
D

O
H

E
GTW

- 
O

VE
RH

EA
D 

EL
EC

TR
IC

 L
IN

E
- 

G
AS

 L
IN

E
- 

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

LI
N

E

- 
W

AT
ER

 L
IN

E

SA
N

G

- 
FE

N
CE

- 
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 L

IN
E

- 
G

AS
 L

IN
E

W
MG
M

- 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T

- 
W

AT
ER

 M
ET

ER
- 

G
U

Y 
W

IR
E

- 
PO

W
ER

 P
O

LE

- 
SE

W
ER

 M
AN

H
O

LE

- 
G

AS
 M

ET
ER

- 
W

AT
ER

 V
AL

VE

P 
  -

PL
AT

TE
D 

DI
ST

AN
CE

M
   

-M
EA

SU
RE

D 
DI

ST
AN

CE

AC

TP

EBEM CO

- 
AI

R 
CO

N
DI

TI
O

N
ER

 U
N

IT

- 
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
PE

DI
ST

AL

- 
EL

EC
TR

IC
 B

O
X

- 
CL

EA
N

 O
U

T 
SE

W
ER

- 
EL

EC
TR

IC
 M

ET
ER

- 
CO

N
CR

ET
E

- 
AS

PH
AL

T

24
"

- 
TR

EE
 A

N
D 

SI
ZE

- 
LO

T 
LI

N
E

- 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

LI
N

E

PP

- 
RE

IN
FO

RC
ED

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E 

PI
PE

- 
VI

TR
IF

IE
D 

CL
AY

 P
IP

E
- 

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

LO
O

R

RC
P

VC
P

FF

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N
TH

IS
 S

U
BJ

EC
T 

TR
AC

T 
LI

ES
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
10

0
YE

AR
 F

LO
O

D 
PL

AI
N

 Z
O

N
E 

A 
AC

CO
RD

IN
G

TO
 M

AP
 N

U
M

BE
R 

29
03

7C
00

10
F 

DA
TE

D
JA

N
U

AR
Y 

2,
 2

01
3

PA
RC

EL
 N

O
: 

05
01

02
30

00
00

00
30

00
DI

ST
U

RB
ED

 A
RE

A 
4.

42
ac

N
O

TE
:

ST
RE

ET
S 

PR
IV

AT
E

W
AT

ER
LI

N
ES

PU
BL

IC
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
PU

BL
IC

TR
AS

H
PE

R 
IN

DI
VI

DU
AL

 U
N

IT

U
TI

LI
TY

 S
TA

TE
M

EN
T:

TH
E 

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 S

H
O

W
N

 H
ER

EO
N

 A
RE

 F
RO

M
 F

IE
LD

 S
U

RV
EY

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
N

E-
CA

LL
 L

O
CA

TE
D 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
, 

FI
EL

D 
SU

RV
EY

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

AB
O

VE
 G

RO
U

N
D 

O
BS

ER
VA

BL
E 

EV
ID

EN
CE

,
AN

D/
O

R 
TH

E 
SC

AL
IN

G
 A

N
D 

PL
O

TT
IN

G
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 U
TI

LI
TY

 M
AP

S 
AN

D 
DR

AW
IN

G
S 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
TO

 T
H

E
SU

RV
EY

O
R 

AT
 T

H
E 

TI
M

E 
O

F 
SU

RV
EY

. 
TH

E 
SU

RV
EY

O
R 

M
AK

ES
 N

O
 G

U
AR

AN
TE

E 
TH

AT
 T

H
E

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 S

H
O

W
N

 C
O

M
PR

IS
E 

AL
L 

SU
CH

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 IN

 T
H

E 
AR

EA
, 

EI
TH

ER
 IN

 S
ER

VI
CE

O
R 

AB
AN

DO
N

ED
. 

FU
RT

H
ER

M
O

RE
, 

TH
E 

SU
RV

EY
O

R 
DO

ES
 N

O
T 

W
AR

RA
N

T 
TH

AT
 T

H
E 

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 S

H
O

W
N

 A
RE

 IN
 T

H
E 

EX
AC

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 IN
DI

CA
TE

D 
AL

TH
O

U
G

H
 H

E 
DO

ES
 C

ER
TI

FY
 T

H
AT

 T
H

EY
AR

E 
LO

CA
TE

D 
AS

 A
CC

U
RA

TE
LY

 A
S 

PO
SS

IB
LE

 F
RO

M
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 A

VA
IL

AB
LE

. 
TH

E 
SU

RV
EY

O
R 

H
AS

N
O

T 
PH

YS
IC

AL
LY

 L
O

CA
TE

D 
TH

E 
U

N
DE

RG
RO

U
N

D 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 B
Y 

EX
CA

VA
TI

O
N

 U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E

N
O

TE
D 

O
N

 T
H

IS
 S

U
RV

EY
.

SA
FE

TY
 N

O
TI

CE
 T

O
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

IN
 A

CC
O

RD
AN

CE
 W

IT
H

 G
EN

ER
AL

LY
 A

CC
EP

TE
D 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 P

RA
CT

IC
E,

 T
H

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R 
W

IL
L 

BE
SO

LE
LY

 A
N

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
EL

Y 
RE

SP
O

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R 

CO
N

DI
TI

O
N

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
JO

B 
SI

TE
, 

IN
CL

U
DI

N
G

 S
AF

ET
Y 

O
F

AL
L 

PE
RS

O
N

S 
AN

D 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

DU
RI

N
G

 P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F 

TH
E 

W
O

RK
. 

TH
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L

AP
PL

Y 
CO

N
TI

N
U

O
U

SL
Y 

AN
D 

N
O

T 
BE

 L
IM

IT
ED

 T
O

 N
O

RM
AL

 W
O

RK
IN

G
 H

O
U

RS
.

W
AR

RA
N

TY
/D

IS
CL

AI
M

ER
TH

E 
DE

SI
G

N
S 

RE
PR

ES
EN

TE
D 

IN
 T

H
ES

E 
PL

AN
S 

AR
E 

IN
 A

CC
O

RD
AN

CE
 W

IT
H

 E
ST

AB
LI

SH
ED

 P
RA

CT
IC

ES
O

F 
CI

VI
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 F

O
R 

TH
E 

DE
SI

G
N

 F
U

N
CT

IO
N

S 
AN

D 
U

SE
S 

IN
TE

N
ED

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E 
O

W
N

ER
 A

T 
TH

IS
TI

M
E.

 H
O

W
EV

ER
, 

N
EI

TH
ER

 S
M

 E
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

 N
O

R 
IT

S 
PE

RS
O

N
N

EL
 C

AN
 O

R 
DO

W
AR

RA
N

TY
 T

H
ES

E 
DE

SI
G

N
S 

O
R 

PL
AN

S 
AS

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

ED
, 

EX
CE

PT
 IN

 T
H

E 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 C

AS
ES

 W
H

ER
E

SM
 E

N
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 IN

SP
EC

T 
AN

D 
CO

N
TR

O
L 

TH
E 

PH
YS

IC
AL

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 O
N

A 
CO

N
TE

M
PO

RA
RY

 B
AS

IS
 A

T 
TH

E 
SI

TE
.

CA
U

TI
O

N
- 

N
O

TI
CE

 T
O

 C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
TH

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R 
IS

 S
PE

CI
FI

CA
LL

Y 
CA

U
TI

O
N

ED
 T

H
AT

 T
H

E 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 A
N

D/
O

R 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

ES
E 

PL
AN

S 
IS

 B
AS

ED
 O

N
 R

EC
O

RD
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

VA
RI

O
U

S 
U

TI
LI

TY
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S

AN
D,

 W
H

ER
E 

PO
SS

IB
LE

, 
M

EA
SU

RE
M

EN
TS

 T
AK

EN
 IN

 T
H

E 
FI

EL
D.

 T
H

E 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

 B
E

RE
LI

ED
 O

N
 A

S 
BE

IN
G

 E
XA

CT
 O

R 
CO

M
PL

ET
E.

 T
H

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R 
M

U
ST

 C
AL

L 
TH

E 
AP

PR
O

PR
IA

TE
 U

TI
LI

TY
CO

M
PA

N
Y 

AT
 L

EA
ST

 7
2 

H
O

U
RS

 B
EF

O
RE

 A
N

Y 
EX

CA
VA

TI
O

N
 T

O
 R

EQ
U

ES
T 

EX
AC

T 
FI

EL
D 

LO
CA

TI
O

N
 O

F
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

. 
IT

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 T

H
E 

RE
SP

O
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 O
F 

TH
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

TO
 R

EL
O

CA
TE

 A
LL

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

W
H

IC
H

 C
O

N
FL

IC
T 

W
IT

H
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E 
PL

AN
S.

 T
H

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R
SH

AL
L 

EX
PO

SE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 A

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

S 
O

F 
PO

SS
IB

LE
 C

O
N

FL
IC

TS
 P

RI
O

R 
TO

 A
N

Y
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

.

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 IN

VO
LV

ED

R E E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

SS
E

F
O

RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
El

ec
tr

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
Ev

er
gy

N
at

ha
n 

M
ic

ha
el

91
3-

34
7-

43
10

N
at

ha
n.

m
ic

ha
el

@
ev

er
gy

.c
om

G
as

 S
er

vi
ce

Sp
ir

e
Ka

ti
e 

Da
rn

el
l

81
6-

96
9-

22
47

Ka
ti

e.
da

rn
el

l@
sp

ir
ee

ne
rg

y.
co

m

W
at

er
/ 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
50

6 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
Be

lt
on

, 
M

O
 6

41
02

N
ik

ia
 F

re
ib

er
ge

r
81

6-
33

1-
43

31

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n

AT
&

am
p;

T
Da

n 
W

ol
fe

81
6-

22
5-

94
08

EN
G

IN
EE

R
SM

 E
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

55
07

 H
IG

H
 M

EA
DO

W
 C

IR
CL

E
M

AN
H

AT
TA

N
 K

AN
SA

S,
 6

65
03

SM
CI

VI
LE

N
G

R@
G

M
AI

L.
CO

M
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

O
W

N
ER

:
AU

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

DS
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

 L
P

AT
TN

: 
RI

CK
 T

RU
M

BU
LL

14
71

3 
JU

N
IP

ER
 S

T
LE

AW
O

O
D,

 K
S 

66
22

4
CE

LL
: 

(8
16

) 
91

8-
30

40

SU
RV

EY
O

R
H

U
FF

M
AN

 L
AN

D 
SU

RV
EY

O
RS

P.
 O

. 
BO

X 
66

1
RA

YM
O

RE
, 

M
IS

SO
U

RI
  6

40
83

(8
16

) 
32

2-
45

44
H

U
FF

SU
RV

EY
O

R@
G

M
AI

L.
CO

M

• o " ooi:tol¢ 

... 
(I) 

(I) 

.c 
U) 

016



A
SP

H
A

LT
SU

R
FA

C
E

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

18
" C

M
P

FL
 IN

 (E
A

ST
)=

10
73

.8
4

FL
 O

U
T 

(W
ES

T)
=1

07
1.

89

CONC
DRIVE

26

28

23

25

20

MARKEY DRIVE

22

R
IM

 =
 1

06
3.

10

MARKEY MEADOW, LOTS 1 THRU 33

2421

R
IM

 =
 1

06
5.

75

EXISTING BELTON AVENUE 40' ROW

SAN

R
IM

 =
 1

08
5.

09

R
IM

 =
10

77
.4

9

R
IM

 =
10

77
.4

ST LOUIS & SANTA FE RAILROAD 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
18

" 
RC

P
FL

 IN
 (

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T)

=1
06

6.
67

FL
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
65

.5
3

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
C

O
N

TR
O

L
B

O
X

ES

F=
SE

W
A

G
E 

PU
M

P 
ST

A
TI

O
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

S

SANSANSANSANSAN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
H

O
LE

 9
B-

M
H

03
0

TO
P 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 =

 1
05

0.
16

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 IN

 (
SO

U
TH

) 
= 

10
44

.2
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

) 
= 

10
43

.9
1

PI
PE

 IN
 (

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
35

.9
1

CONC FL
UME

N02°50'15"E
807.85'

S8
7°

11
'5

3"
E

46
6.

65
'

S26°51'13"E

179.76'

N
85

°5
5'

06
"W

31
0.

95
'

OK 11
, P

AGE 30
)

(TO BE VACATED)

10
50

.0
0

10
55

.0
0

1055.00

10
65

.0
0

10
65

.0
0

10
75

.0
0

10
80

.00

10
80

.00

10
85

.0
0

106
0.0

0

1060.00

10
70

.0
0

10
70

.0
0

10
70

.0
0

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
M

H
TO

P 
10

61
.2

4
F/

L 
IN

 S
E 

10
42

.0
8

F/
L 

IN
 W

 1
04

2.
04

F/
L 

O
U

T 
N

N
E 

10
41

.6
3

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

M
AR

KE
Y 

PA
RK

W
AY

20
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

10
72

1076 1078

10
80

10
82

10
80

1076

10
80

10
78

10
76

107
4

10
76

10
66

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
89

10
11

12
13

14

151617

15' BL SETBACK

SAN
SAN

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

47
8.

95
'

N
85

°4
9'

54
"W

10
88

10
86

10
84

1080

1074

1074

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

10
70

10
70 10

64

SAN
SAN

SAN SAN

WATER
WATERWATERWATERWATER

WATER
WATER

WATER

W
ATER

25
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

181920212223242526272829

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

3738

87
88

89

90

91 92

93 94 95

96 97

98

99 10
0

10
1

AUTUMN WOODS DR

AUTUMN WOODS DR

FLOOD PLAIN

FLOOD PLAIN 40' STREAM BUFFER

40' STREAM BUFFER

0
50

'
25

'

1"
=5

0'
C

2.
0

C
iv

il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

RE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

CA
M

P 
PE

N
DL

ET
O

N
 A

N
D 

Q
U

AN
TI

CO
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

LC

J 
J 

&
 B

 IN
C

PA
RS

O
N

, 
ST

AN
 B

 A
N

D 
O

M
AD

IN
E 

R

N
O

RT
O

N
 &

 N
O

RT
O

N
 L

LC

G
AN

N
, 

RA
YM

O
N

D 
H

 &
 S

H
AR

O
N

 F

SO
U

TH
ER

N
 S

U
PP

LY
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
ED

IN
A,

 P
ET

E 
R

M
AR

KE
Y 

M
EA

DO
W

, 
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RU
 3

3

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
EV

EL
O

PE
N

T 
LP

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 W

AT
ER

LI
N

E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

LO
O

D 
PL

AI
N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

30
'

A/
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 3

0'
 A

CC
ES

S 
ES

M
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TR
EE

T 
LI

G
H

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

60'
R/W

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 E
N

TR
AN

CE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

15'
S/E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

28
'

28'

15
'

U/
E

15
'

U/
E

15'
S/E

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

- z - ~ 

017



A
SP

H
A

LT
SU

R
FA

C
E

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

18
" C

M
P

FL
 IN

 (E
A

ST
)=

10
73

.8
4

FL
 O

U
T 

(W
ES

T)
=1

07
1.

89

CONC
DRIVE

26

28

23

25

20

MARKEY DRIVE

22

R
IM

 =
 1

06
3.

10

MARKEY MEADOW, LOTS 1 THRU 33

2421

R
IM

 =
 1

06
5.

75

EXISTING BELTON AVENUE 40' ROW

SAN

R
IM

 =
 1

08
5.

09

R
IM

 =
10

77
.4

9

R
IM

 =
10

77
.4

0

ST LOUIS & SANTA FE RAILROAD 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
18

" 
RC

P
FL

 IN
 (

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T)

=1
06

6.
67

FL
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
65

.5
3

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
C

O
N

TR
O

L
B

O
X

ES

F=
SE

W
A

G
E 

PU
M

P 
ST

A
TI

O
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

S

S

SANSANSANSANSANS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
H

O
LE

 9
B-

M
H

03
0

TO
P 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 =

 1
05

0.
16

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 IN

 (
SO

U
TH

) 
= 

10
44

.2
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

) 
= 

10
43

.9
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

PI
PE

 IN
 (

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
35

.9
1

CONC FL
UME

N02°50'15"E
807.85'

S8
7°

11
'5

3"
E

46
6.

65
'

S26°51'13"E

179.76'

N
85

°5
5'

06
"W

31
0.

95
'

(BOOK 11
, P

AGE 30
)

(TO BE VACATED)

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
M

H
TO

P 
10

61
.2

4
F/

L 
IN

 S
E 

10
42

.0
8

F/
L 

IN
 W

 1
04

2.
04

F/
L 

O
U

T 
N

N
E 

10
41

.6
3

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

M
AR

KE
Y 

PA
RK

W
AY

15' BL SETBACK

20
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
89

10
11

12
13

14

151617

15' BL SETBACK

28.0'

28
.0

'

190.26'

75.93'

50.52'

73
.06

'

70
.6

1'

73.04'
R=498.00'

120.13' R=198.00'

46
.6

9'

R=
50

.0
0'

58.37' R=502.00'

CENTERLINE OF CREEK

R2
5.

0'

R2
5.0

'

FULL ACCESS

SAN
SAN

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

R25.
0'

R2
5.

0'

RIGHT IN / RIGHT OUT

47
8.

95
'

N
85

°4
9'

54
"W

60.0'
R/W

60.0'
R/W

26.0' 26.0'

14.0'

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN SAN

WATER
WATERWATERWATERWATER

WATER
WATER

WATER

W
ATER

25
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

181920212223242526272829

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

3738

39

40

41

42 43 44

45 46 47

48

49 50

51 52 53 54 55 56
575859606162

63646566

6768

697071

7273

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83
84

85
86

87
88

89

90

91 92

93 94 95

96 97

98

99 10
0

10
1

11.7'

11.0' 11.0'

11.4'

16.5'

20.0'
16.5'

25' BL SETBACK

25' BL SETBACK

11.1'

11.0'11.2'

11.7'

11
.2'

11
.4'

10
.0

' 20.0'9.
0'

20
.0

'

9.0
'

R5.0'

R5
.0

'

R5
.0

'
R5

.0
'

AUTUMN WOODS DR

AUTUMN WOODS DR

FLOOD PLAIN

FLOOD PLAIN

15
.0'

15
.0

'

R3
1.

0'
R3

1.
0'

29.4'

40' STREAM BUFFER

40' STREAM BUFFER

18.0'

18.0'

18.0'
3.5'

3.0'

3.5'

16
.0

'

0
50

'
25

'

1"
=5

0'
C

3.
0

C
iv

il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

RE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

SS
E

F
O

RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

CA
M

P 
PE

N
DL

ET
O

N
 A

N
D 

Q
U

AN
TI

CO
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

LC

J 
J 

&
 B

 IN
C

PA
RS

O
N

, 
ST

AN
 B

 A
N

D 
O

M
AD

IN
E 

R

N
O

RT
O

N
 &

 N
O

RT
O

N
 L

LC

G
AN

N
, 

RA
YM

O
N

D 
H

 &
 S

H
AR

O
N

 F

SO
U

TH
ER

N
 S

U
PP

LY
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
ED

IN
A,

 P
ET

E 
R

M
AR

KE
Y 

M
EA

DO
W

, 
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RU
 3

3

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
EV

EL
O

PE
N

T 
LP

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

00
yr

 F
LO

O
D 

PL
AI

N

30
'

A/
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 3

0'
 A

CC
ES

S 
ES

M
T

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

RE
ET

 L
IG

H
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
PO

N
D 

#2

PR
O

PO
SE

D
PL

AY
G

RO
U

N
D

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
PO

N
D 

#1

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
PO

N
D 

#4

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 E
N

TR
AN

CE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

15'
S/E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

28
'

28'

30
'

A/
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T

PR
O

PO
SE

D
5'

 T
RA

IL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
PO

N
D 

#3

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
4'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
W

AT
ER

LI
N

E

PH
AS

E 
1 

PH
AS

E 
2

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

8'
X1

0'
 P

AT
IO

15
'

U/
E

15
'

U/
E

15
'

U/
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
15

'X
15

'
PI

CN
IC

 S
H

EL
TE

R

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
RE

TA
IN

IN
G

 W
AL

L 
W

IT
H

 R
AI

LI
N

G

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N
 E

Q
U

AL
S

ST
RE

AM
 B

U
FF

ER

I - 1 I 
I - -

I - I --t--i i - , 
I I __ 1/ 
I I ~~~ 
I ----J ~ 
L -------

I 

I 

/ .) 

:::z -~ --~,cctc- ~ 

I 
.L~_ 

018



O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

26

28

23

25

20

MARKEY DRIVE

22

MARKEY MEADOW, LOTS 1 THRU 33

2421

SAN

ST LOUIS & SANTA FE RAILROAD 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
18

" 
RC

P
FL

 IN
 (

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T)

=1
06

6.
67

FL
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
65

.5
3

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

S

S

SANSANSANSANSANS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
H

O
LE

 9
B-

M
H

03
0

TO
P 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 =

 1
05

0.
16

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 IN

 (
SO

U
TH

) 
= 

10
44

.2
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

) 
= 

10
43

.9
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

PI
PE

 IN
 (

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
35

.9
1

CONC FL
UME

N02°50'15"E
807.85'

S8
7°

11
'5

3"
E

46
6.

65
'

S26°51'13"E

179.76'

N
85

°5
5'

06
"W

31
0.

95
'

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
M

H
TO

P 
10

61
.2

4
F/

L 
IN

 S
E 

10
42

.0
8

F/
L 

IN
 W

 1
04

2.
04

F/
L 

O
U

T 
N

N
E 

10
41

.6
3

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

M
AR

KE
Y 

PA
RK

W
AY

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
89

10
11

12
13

14

151617

SAN
SAN

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

47
8.

95
'

N
85

°4
9'

54
"W

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN SAN

WATER
WATERWATERWATERWATER

WATER
WATER

WATER

W
ATER

181920212223242526272829

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

3738

39

40

41

42 43 44

45 46 47

48

49 50

51 52 53 54 55 56
575859606162

63646566

6768

697071

7273

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83
84

85
86

87
88

89

90

91 92

93 94 95

96 97

98

99 10
0

10
1

AUTUMN WOODS DR

AUTUMN WOODS DR

FLOOD PLAIN

FLOOD PLAIN 40' STREAM BUFFER

40' STREAM BUFFER

0
50

'
25

'

1"
=5

0'
C

4.
0

C
iv

il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TSRE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

CA
M

P 
PE

N
DL

ET
O

N
 A

N
D 

Q
U

AN
TI

CO
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

LC

J 
J 

&
 B

 IN
C

PA
RS

O
N

, 
ST

AN
 B

 A
N

D 
O

M
AD

IN
E 

R

N
O

RT
O

N
 &

 N
O

RT
O

N
 L

LC

G
AN

N
, 

RA
YM

O
N

D 
H

 &
 S

H
AR

O
N

 F

SO
U

TH
ER

N
 S

U
PP

LY
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
ED

IN
A,

 P
ET

E 
R

M
AR

KE
Y 

M
EA

DO
W

, 
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RU
 3

3

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

RE
ET

 L
IG

H
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 E
N

TR
AN

CE

15'
S/E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

28'

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
W

AT
ER

LI
N

E

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
15

' S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
ES

M
T

N
O

TE
S

20
A

PO
IN

T 
O

F 
CO

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 -
 W

AT
ER

 S
ER

VI
CE

20
B

3/
4"

 M
ET

ER
S

AL
L 

W
AT

ER
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

LI
N

ES
 T

O
 B

E 
3/

4"

U
TI

LI
TY

 N
O

TE
S:

1.
  A

LL
 U

TI
LI

TY
 A

N
D 

ST
O

RM
 S

EW
ER

 T
RE

N
CH

ES
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
ED

 U
N

DE
R 

AR
EA

S 
TH

AT
RE

CE
IV

E 
PA

VI
N

G
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 B
AC

KF
IL

LE
D 

TO
 1

8 
IN

CH
ES

 A
BO

VE
 T

H
E 

TO
P 

O
F 

TH
E 

PI
PE

W
IT

H
 S

EL
EC

T 
G

RA
N

U
LA

R 
M

AT
ER

IA
L 

PL
AC

ED
 O

N
 E

IG
H

T-
IN

CH
 L

IF
TS

, 
AN

D 
CO

M
PA

CT
ED

 T
O

95
% 

M
O

DI
FI

ED
 P

RO
CT

O
R 

DE
N

SI
TY

.

2.
  C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

SH
AL

L 
N

O
T 

O
PE

N
, 

TU
RN

 O
FF

, 
IN

TE
RF

ER
E 

W
IT

H
, 

O
R 

AT
TA

CH
 A

N
Y 

PI
PE

O
R 

H
O

SE
 T

O
 O

R 
TA

P 
AN

Y 
W

AT
ER

 M
AI

N
 B

EL
O

N
G

IN
G

 T
O

 T
H

E 
CI

TY
 U

N
LE

SS
 D

U
LY

AU
TH

O
RI

ZE
D 

TO
 D

O
 S

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
CI

TY
. 

 A
N

Y 
AD

VE
RS

E 
CO

N
SE

Q
U

EN
CE

 O
F 

AN
Y 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
D

O
R 

U
N

SC
H

ED
U

LE
D 

DI
SR

U
PT

IO
N

S 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
TO

 T
H

E 
PU

BL
IC

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

TH
E 

LI
AB

IL
IT

Y
O

F 
TH

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R.
  S

M
 E

N
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 A

N
D 

O
W

N
ER

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

H
EL

D 
H

AR
M

LE
SS

.

3.
  A

LL
 W

AT
ER

 A
N

D 
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 S

YS
TE

M
S 

TH
AT

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

PU
BL

IC
 L

IN
ES

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

ED
 IN

 A
CC

O
RD

AN
CE

 W
IT

H
 S

PE
CI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
S 

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y 

AP
PR

O
VE

D 
BY

 T
H

E
CI

TY
 O

F 
BE

LT
O

N
 A

N
D 

TH
E 

ST
AT

E 
O

F 
M

IS
SO

U
RI

 A
N

D 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 IN

SP
EC

TE
D 

BY
 T

H
E 

CI
TY

.
IT

 IS
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R'

S 
RE

SP
O

N
SI

BI
LI

TY
 T

O
 A

SS
U

RE
 T

H
AT

 T
H

IS
 IN

SP
EC

TI
O

N
 O

CC
U

RS
.

4.
  L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S 

SH
O

W
N

 F
O

R 
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

W
AT

ER
 L

IN
ES

 A
RE

 A
PP

RO
XI

M
AT

E.
   

VA
RI

AT
IO

N
S

M
AY

 B
E 

M
AD

E,
 W

IT
H

 A
PP

RO
VA

L 
O

F 
TH

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
R,

 T
O

 A
VO

ID
 C

O
N

FL
IC

TS
.

5.
  C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

TO
 IN

ST
AL

L 
TR

AC
IN

G
 T

AP
E 

AL
O

N
G

 A
LL

 N
O

N
-M

ET
AL

LI
C 

W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

S
AN

D 
SE

RV
IC

E 
LI

N
ES

 P
ER

 S
PE

CI
FI

CA
TI

O
N

S.

6.
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

SH
AL

L 
EX

PO
SE

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 A
T 

LO
CA

TI
O

N
S 

O
F 

PO
SS

IB
LE

CO
N

FL
IC

T 
AN

D 
PO

IN
TS

 O
F 

CO
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 P

RI
O

R 
TO

 A
N

Y 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 O
F 

N
EW

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
.

7.
 W

AT
ER

 L
IN

ES
 S

H
AL

L 
H

AV
E 

A 
M

IN
IM

U
M

 C
O

VE
R 

O
F 

42
 IN

CH
ES

. 
 A

LL
 V

AL
VE

S 
O

N
 M

AI
N

S
AN

D 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T 

LE
AD

S 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 W

IT
H

 V
AL

VE
 B

O
X 

AS
SE

M
BL

IE
S.

  T
H

E 
SI

ZE
 O

F 
VA

LV
E

BO
X 

AS
SE

M
BL

Y 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
IS

 D
ET

ER
M

IN
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E 

TY
PE

 A
N

D 
SI

ZE
 O

F 
VA

LV
E.

VA
LV

E 
BO

X 
CA

PS
 S

H
AL

L 
H

AV
E 

TH
E 

W
O

RD
 "

W
AT

ER
".

8.
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 H

O
RI

ZO
N

TA
L 

DI
ST

AN
CE

 O
F 

10
 F

EE
T 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 M
AI

N
TA

IN
ED

 B
ET

W
EE

N
PA

RA
LL

EL
 W

AT
ER

 A
N

D 
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 L

IN
ES

. 
 W

H
EN

 IT
 IS

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

W
AT

ER
LI

N
E 

TO
 C

RO
SS

 A
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 L

IN
E,

 T
H

E 
SE

W
ER

 L
IN

E 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
ED

 P
ER

M
DN

R 
RE

Q
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

9.
 IN

ST
AL

L 
3/

4"
 T

YP
E 

"K
" 

CO
PP

ER
 F

RO
M

 T
H

E 
M

AI
N

 T
O

 T
H

E 
M

ET
ER

AN
D 

FR
O

M
 T

H
E 

M
ET

ER
TO

 1
0'

 IN
SI

DE
 L

O
T 

IN
ST

AL
L 

EI
TH

ER
 T

YP
E 

"K
" 

O
R 

PO
LY

ET
H

YL
EN

E 
PL

AS
TI

C 
TU

BI
N

G
 (

PE
36

08
) 

TO
 S

TO
P 

AN
D 

W
AS

TE
 V

AL
VE

 IN
SI

DE
 B

U
IL

DI
N

G
.

20
C

20
A

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B 20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B20

B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

EX
IS

TI
N

G
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

20
B20
B20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B 20

B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

15
'

U
/E

10
'

W
/E

RE
M

O
VE

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 M

ET
ER

 V
AU

LT

15
'

U
/E

• 

I 

I 

/i 
I 

I 

/ ,) 

z - ~ - ~ 

019



1081

1085

1083

1071

10
72

107
3

10
73

10
74

1075

1076

10
76

10
71

1078

1079

10
79

1080

10
80

1081
1080

1078

10
77

1079

10
76

1075

1074

1073

10
72

1072

1071

10
72 10
73

1074

1074
1075

1076

1075

1077

1076

1079

1081

1078

1081

10
73

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

SANSANSAN

75

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

EL
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E 

40
' R

O
W

W
AT

ER

SAN SAN SAN

RIM = 1085.09

(T
O

 B
E 

VA
CA

TE
D)

1050.00

1055.00

1055

1065.00

1065.00

1075.00

1080.00

1085.00

1060.00

1060.0

1070.00

107
0.0

0

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

WATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATER

MARKEY PARKWAY

20' BL SETBACK

1072

1076
1078

1080

1082

108

10
80

10
78

1076

1074

1076

1066

6 7 8

91011

15

16

17

15
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

WATERWATERWATER

1088
1086

1084

1080

107410
74

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

1070

1070

1064

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

WATER WATER

25' BL SETBACK

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83848586
87

88
89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

10

FFE 1077.00

FFE 1076.00

FFE 1078.50

FFE 1081.50

FFE 1081.50 FFE 1081.00

FFE 1075.00

FFE 1080.00

FFE 1078.00

FFE 1085.00

FFE 1077.00

FFE 1076.00

FFE 1075.00

FFE 1074.00

FFE 1073.00
FFE 1073.00

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

FLO
OD PLA

IN

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N

TW
 1

06
6.

00

BW
 1

06
0.

00

TW
 1

06
6.

00

BW
 1

06
0.

00

TW
 1

06
8.

00

BW
 1

06
3.

00

TW 1066.00
BW 1061.00

TW 1072.00
BW 1067.00

TW
 1

06
4.

00

BW
 1

05
9.

00

TW
 1

06
4.

00

BW
 1

05
8.

00

FFE 1073.00

FFE 1073.00

FG 1074.50

FG 1073.00

FG 1070.50

FG 1070.50

FG 1069.00

FG 1073.00

FG 1080.50

FG 1080.50

40
' S

TR
EA

M B
UF

FE
R

40
' S

TR
EA

M
 B

U
FF

ER

0
30

'
15

'

1"
=3

0'

C
5.

0
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TSRE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER
 L

IN
E 

F

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

PO
N

D 
O

VE
RF

LO
W

 R
O

U
TE

PO
N

D 
O

VE
RF

LO
W

 R
O

U
TE

N
O

TE
TH

ER
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 N
O

 C
LE

AR
IN

G
, 

G
RA

DI
N

G
, 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 O

R 
DI

ST
U

RB
AN

CE
 O

F
VE

G
ET

AT
IO

N
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

ST
RE

AM
 B

U
FF

ER
. 

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 F
EN

CI
N

G
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 P
LA

CE
D

TO
 D

EL
IN

EA
TE

 B
U

FF
ER

 A
N

D 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 M

AI
N

TA
IN

ED
 T

H
RO

U
G

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 O

F
TH

E 
PR

O
JE

CT
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
RE

TA
IN

IN
G

W
AL

L 
W

IT
H

 R
AI

LI
N

G

N
O

TE
:

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

RE
SP

O
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
PR

O
VI

DI
N

G
 M

O
DU

LA
R

BL
O

CK
 R

ET
AI

N
IN

G
 W

AL
L 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

RA
W

IN
G

S
SE

AL
ED

 B
Y 

A 
M

IS
SO

U
RI

 S
TA

TE
 P

RO
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N
TH

IS
 S

U
BJ

EC
T 

TR
AC

T 
LI

ES
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
10

0
YE

AR
 F

LO
O

D 
PL

AI
N

 Z
O

N
E 

A 
AC

CO
RD

IN
G

TO
 M

AP
 N

U
M

BE
R 

29
03

7C
00

10
F 

DA
TE

D
JA

N
U

AR
Y 

2,
 2

01
3

IN
ST

AL
L 

4'
X4

' I
N

LE
T 

W
IT

H
O

PE
N

IN
G

S 
O

N
 4

 S
ID

ES
RI

M
 =

 1
07

1.
00

F/
L 

10
65

.6
7,

 F
IE

LD
 V

ER
IF

Y
N

14
68

44
0.

18
E5

11
43

80
.2

1

N
O

TE
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 A
N

D 
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

SL
O

PE
S 

N
O

T 
TO

 E
XC

EE
D 

3:
1

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

020



1081

1085

1083

1071

10
72

107
3

10
73

10
74

1075

1076

10
76

10
71

1078

1079

10
79

1080

10
80

1081
1080

1078

10
77

1079

10
76

1075

1074

1073

10
72

1072

1071

10
72 10
73

1074

1074
1075

1076

1075

1077

1076

1079

1081

1078

1081

10
73

ASPHALT
SURFACE

OHP

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

SANSANSANSANSANSANSANSAN

3.10

M
AR

KE
Y 

M
EA

DO
W

, 
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RU
 3

3

RIM = 1065.75

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

EL
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E 

40
' R

O
W

SAN SAN

RIM = 1085.09

RIM =1077.49

ST
 L

O
UI

S 
&

 S
AN

TA
 F

E 
RA

IL
RO

AD
 

ATION

AN
SAN

S

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

S

CONC FLUME

(T
O

 B
E 

VA
CA

TE
D)

1050.00

1055.00

1055.00

1065.00

1065.00

1075.00

10
80

.0
0

1080.00

1085.00

1060.00

1060.00

1070.00

107
0.0

0

1070.00

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

MARKEY PARKWAY

20' BL SETBACK

1072
1076

1078

1080

1082

108
0

10
76

10
80

10
78

1076

1074

1076

1066

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

91011121314

15

16

17

15
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

SAN
SAN

1088
1086

1084

1080

107410
74

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

1070

1070

1064

SAN
SAN

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

25' BL SETBACK

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83848586
87

88
89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

FLO
OD PLAIN

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N

N
O

N
CA

PT
U

RE
D

AR
EA

 1

PO
N

D
AR

EA
 1

PO
N

D
AR

EA
 2

PO
N

D
AR

EA
 3

N
O

N
CA

PT
U

RE
D

AR
EA

 2

PO
N

D
AR

EA
 4

40
' S

TR
EA

M B
UF

FE
R

40
' S

TR
EA

M
 B

U
FF

ER

0
40

'
20

'

1"
=4

0'

C
5.

1
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

IM
P

E
R

V
IO

U
S

 A
R

E
A

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TSRE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

AR
EA

TO
TA

L 
AC

TO
TA

L 
IM

PE
RV

IO
U

S 
AR

EA
 (

SF
) 

PE
RV

IO
U

S 
AR

EA
 (

SF
)

N
O

N
 C

AP
TU

RE
D 

1
3.

33
ac

 (
14

5,
05

4s
f)

15
,0

66
12

9,
98

8
N

O
N

 C
AP

TU
RE

D 
2

0.
44

ac
 (

19
,1

66
sf

)
4,

46
4

14
,7

02
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 1
1.

96
ac

 (
85

,3
77

sf
)

52
,5

10
32

,8
67

PO
N

D 
AR

EA
 2

2.
97

ac
 (

12
9,

37
3s

f)
84

,8
76

44
,4

97
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 3
1.

33
ac

 (
57

,9
34

sf
)

25
,0

72
32

,8
62

PO
N

D 
AR

EA
 4

1.
08

ac
 (

47
,0

44
sf

)
24

92
5

22
,1

19
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 A
CC

ES
S 

RO
U

TE
S

M
AX

IM
U

M
 W

AT
ER

 S
U

RF
AC

E 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 (
M

W
SE

)
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 1
10

65
.8

0
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 2
10

70
.3

5
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 3
10

73
.0

3
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 4
10

72
.7

7

M
W

SE

M
W

SE
M

W
SE

M
W

SE

__ ; __ --- --- ---- --- i 

\ 

\ 
\ 

I 
I 
I 

\ 

\ 

\ 
I 
\ 

I 
I 
I 
I 

' \ 
\ 
I 

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

021



1081

1085

1083

1071

10
72

107
3

10
73

10
74

1075

1076

10
76

10
71

1078

1079

10
79

1080

10
80

1081
1080

1078

10
77

1079

10
76

1075

1074

1073

10
72

1072

1071

10
72 10
73

1074

1074
1075

1076

1075

1077

1076

1079

1081

1078

1081

10
73

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

SANSANSAN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

EL
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E 

40
' R

O
W

W
AT

ER

SAN SAN SAN

RIM = 1085.09

(T
O

 B
E 

VA
CA

TE
D)

1050.00

1055.00

1055

1065.00

1065.00

5.00

1080.00

1085.00

1060.00

1060.0

1070.00

107
0.0

0

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

WATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATER

MARKEY PARKWAY

20' BL SETBACK

1072

1076
1078

1080

1082

108

10
80

10
78

1076

1074

1076

1066

6 7 8

91011

15

16

17

15
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

WATERWATERWATER

1088
1086

1084

1080

107410
74

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

1070

1070

1064

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

WATER WATER

25' BL SETBACK

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83848586
87

88
89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

10

FFE 1077.00

FFE 1076.00

FFE 1078.50

FFE 1081.50

FFE 1081.50 FFE 1081.00

FFE 1075.00

FFE 1080.00

FFE 1078.00

FFE 1085.00

FFE 1077.00

FFE 1076.00

FFE 1075.00

FFE 1074.00

FFE 1073.00
FFE 1073.00

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

FLO
OD PLAIN

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N

TW
 1

06
6.

00

BW
 1

06
0.

00

TW
 1

06
6.

00

BW
 1

06
0.

00

TW
 1

06
8.

00

BW
 1

06
3.

00

TW 1066.00
BW 1061.00

TW 1072.00
BW 1067.00

TW
 1

06
4.

00

BW
 1

05
9.

00

TW
 1

06
4.

00

BW
 1

05
8.

00

FFE 1073.00

FFE 1073.00

FG 1074.50

FG 1073.00

FG 1070.50

FG 1070.50

FG 1069.00

FG 1073.00

FG 1080.50

FG 1080.50

40
' S

TR
EA

M B
UF

FE
R

40
' S

TR
EA

M
 B

U
FF

ER

0
30

'
15

'

1"
=3

0'

C
5.

2
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

O
V

E
R

FL
O

W
 P

LA
N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TSRE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER
 L

IN
E 

F

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

N
O

TE
TH

ER
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 N
O

 C
LE

AR
IN

G
, 

G
RA

DI
N

G
, 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 O

R 
DI

ST
U

RB
AN

CE
 O

F
VE

G
ET

AT
IO

N
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

ST
RE

AM
 B

U
FF

ER
. 

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 F
EN

CI
N

G
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 P
LA

CE
D

TO
 D

EL
IN

EA
TE

 B
U

FF
ER

 A
N

D 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 M

AI
N

TA
IN

ED
 T

H
RO

U
G

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 O

F
TH

E 
PR

O
JE

CT
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
RE

TA
IN

IN
G

W
AL

L 
W

IT
H

 R
AI

LI
N

G

N
O

TE
:

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

RE
SP

O
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
PR

O
VI

DI
N

G
 M

O
DU

LA
R

BL
O

CK
 R

ET
AI

N
IN

G
 W

AL
L 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

RA
W

IN
G

S
SE

AL
ED

 B
Y 

A 
M

IS
SO

U
RI

 S
TA

TE
 P

RO
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

10'

30'

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
 O

VE
RF

LO
W

 C
H

AN
N

EL
 2

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
O

VE
RF

LO
W

 C
H

AN
N

EL
 1

PO
N

D 
1 

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
 S

PI
LL

W
AY

Q
10

0 =
 2

3.
58

cf
s

20
' W

ID
TH

1.
5'

 D
EP

TH

20'

O
VE

RF
LO

W
 D

RO
P 

CU
RB

 IN
LE

T
4'

X4
' I

N
LE

T 
W

IT
H

 O
PE

N
IN

G
S 

O
N

 4
 S

ID
ES

RI
M

 =
 1

07
1.

00
CA

PA
CI

TY
 =

 2
5c

fs

PO
N

D 
2 

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
 S

PI
LL

W
AY

Q
10

0 =
 5

1.
38

cf
s

30
' W

ID
TH

1.
5'

 D
EP

TH
PO

N
D 

3 
EM

ER
G

EN
CY

 S
PI

LL
W

AY
Q

10
0 =

 1
5.

32
cf

s
10

' W
ID

TH
1.

5'
 D

EP
TH

~ 

(I) 

(I) 

.r: 
(/J 

~ 8 s;i 

§ ~ ~ 

022



SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

WAT
ER

WAT
ER

W

WATER

WATER

WATER

34
35

36
37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

5 71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84
85

10
50

10
60

10
70

10
80

10
90

11
00

11
10

10
50

10
60

10
70

10
80

10
90

11
00

11
10

5+
60

5+
80

6+
00

6+
20

6+
40

6+
60

6+
80

7+
00

7+
20

7+
40

7+
60

7+
80

8+
00

8+
20

8+
40

8+
60

8+
80

9+
00

9+
20

9+
40

9+
60

9+
80

10
+0

0

20
0.

00
' V

C
K 

= 
51

.8
18

A.
D.

=0
.0

4

PV
I E

LE
V 

= 
10

70
.0

0
PV

I S
TA

 =
 6

+6
8.

00

BVCS : 5+68.00
BVCE : 1072.32

EVCE : 1071.54
EVCS : 7+68.00

LO
W

 P
O

IN
T 

EL
EV

 =
 1

07
0.

93
LO

W
 P

O
IN

T 
ST

A 
= 

6+
87

.9
8

ST
A 

7+
00

, 
AU

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

DS
 D

R
BE

G
IN

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 M
AT

CH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
EL

EV
 1

07
1.

00
, 

FI
EL

D 
VE

RI
FY

1072.6

1072.0

1072.0

1071.5

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.1

1071.6

1072.0

1072.0

1072.4

1072.5

1072.7

1073.0

1073.2

1073.8

1074.0

1074.1

1074.3

1074.7

1075.0

1072.58

1072.00

1072.00

1071.48

1071.03

1071.07

1071.00

1071.00

1071.00

1071.00

1071.00

1071.30

1071.10

1071.62

1072.00

1072.03

1072.39

1072.81

1072.70

1073.00

1073.21

1073.81

1074.00

1074.35

1074.33

1074.70

1075.00

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
G

RA
DE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 G

RA
DE

1.
54

%

0
20

'
10

'

1"
=2

0'

C
6.

0
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

RE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER
 L

IN
E 

F

A
U

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

D
S

 D
R

P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
FI

LE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

ST
A 

7+
00

.0
0,

 A
U

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

DS
 D

R
BE

G
IN

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

M
AT

CH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 1

07
1.

00
, 

FI
EL

D 
VE

RI
FY

2

28'

1

CU
RV

E 
N

O
.

P.
I.

 S
TA

 7
+5

0.
17

Δ 
= 

34
°4

5'
 4

3"
R 

= 
19

8.
00

'
T 

= 
17

4.
23

'
L 

= 
25

.2
0'

1

CU
RV

E 
N

O
.

P.
I.

 S
TA

 8
+6

9.
91

Δ 
= 

53
°2

9'
 5

1"
R 

= 
50

.0
0'

T 
= 

61
.9

8'
L 

= 
12

0.
13

'

2

N
O

TE
PR

IV
AT

E 
ST

RE
ET

S 
SH

AL
L 

CO
N

FO
RM

 T
O

 C
IT

Y
O

F 
BE

LT
O

N
 S

PE
CI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D 

ST
AN

DA
RD

DE
TA

IL
S. I I 

\ 1.111111 .111111 1111111 

I 1111 111 I 11111 

I 11111 ,111111 I 11111 

I 'Ill 11 I I 1 1 11 

1.111111 .Ill l 1 1111111 

I 1111 Ill I I I 11111 

I 11111 .Ill , I I 11111 

I 1111 Ill I I 11111 

I II 
I II 

~ 
N 

I 
I 

I Ill 
Ill 

111111 

I 1111
1 

I 
I 

111111 

I 1111
1 

I I 111111 

I 1 1 11 

r;, 

I I .11111 

I 1
1

11 

111111 

111111 

I I 11111 

1111
1 

I I 111111 

11111 

I I 111111 

1111 

111111 

11111 

I I 111111 

11111 

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

023



OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

8WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

4

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

3

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

10
50

10
60

10
70

10
80

10
90

11
00

11
10

10
50

10
60

10
70

10
80

10
90

11
00

11
10

10
+0

0
10

+2
0

10
+4

0
10

+6
0

10
+8

0
11

+0
0

11
+2

0
11

+4
0

11
+6

0
11

+8
0

12
+0

0
12

+2
0

12
+4

0
12

+6
0

12
+8

0
13

+0
0

13
+2

0
13

+4
0

13
+6

0
13

+8
0

14
+0

0
14

+2
0

14
+4

01
4+

50

1.
95

%

1.
54

%

50
.0

3'
 V

C
K 

= 
12

2.
01

8
A.

D.
=0

.0
0

PV
I E

LE
V 

= 
10

80
.7

3
PV

I S
TA

 =
 1

3+
63

.1
4

BVCS : 13+38.13
BVCE : 1080.35

EVCE : 1081.22
EVCS : 13+88.16

LO
W

 P
O

IN
T 

EL
EV

 =
 1

08
0.

35
LO

W
 P

O
IN

T 
ST

A 
= 

13
+3

8.
13

ST
A 

 1
3+

78
.1

6,
 A

U
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

EN
D 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 M

AT
CH

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

EL
EV

 1
08

0.
36

, 
FI

EL
D 

VE
RI

FY

1075.0

1075.1

1075.6

1075.9

1076.0

1076.2

1076.6

1077.0

1077.1

1077.6

1077.9

1078.0

1078.0

1078.4

1078.6

1078.8

1078.9

1078.9

1079.0

1079.4

1079.8

1080.0

1080.0

1080.0

1081.2

1082.1

1075.00

1075.10

1075.61

1075.90

1076.00

1076.17

1076.58

1076.98

1077.07

1077.44

1077.91

1078.00

1078.00

1078.39

1078.64

1078.99

1078.87

1078.92

1078.99

1079.38

1079.80

1080.54

1080.00

1080.00

1081.19

1082.13

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
G

RA
DE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 G

RA
DE

0
20

'
10

'

1"
=2

0'

C
7.

0
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

RE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER
 L

IN
E 

F

A
U

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

D
S

 D
R

P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
FI

LE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

ST
A 

13
+7

8.
16

, 
AU

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

DS
 D

R
EN

D 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

M
AT

CH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 1

07
1.

00
, 

FI
EL

D 
VE

RI
FY

4

28'

3

CU
RV

E 
N

O
.

P.
I.

 S
TA

 1
0+

40
.5

6
Δ 

= 
6°

39
' 4

4"
R 

= 
50

2.
00

'
T 

= 
31

.1
7'

L 
= 

58
.3

7'

3

CU
RV

E 
N

O
.

P.
I.

 S
TA

 1
1+

84
.7

6
Δ 

= 
8°

24
' 1

0"
R 

= 
49

8.
00

'
T 

= 
36

.5
8'

L 
= 

73
.0

4'

4

I I 

024



1081

1085

1083

1071

10
72

107
3

10
73

10
74

1075

1076

10
76

10
71

1078

1079

10
79

1080

10
80

1081
1080

1078

10
77

1079

10
76

1075

1074

1073

10
72

1072

1071

10
72 10
73

1074

1074
1075

1076

1075

1077

1076

1079

1081

1078

1081

10
73

T
E

OHP

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

SANSANSANSANSANSANSANSAN

65.75

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

EL
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E 

40
' R

O
W

SAN SAN

RIM = 1085.09

RIM =1077.49

ST
 L

O
UI

S 
&

 S
AN

TA
 F

E 
RA

IL
RO

AD
 

AN

S

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

CONC FLUME

(T
O

 B
E 

VA
CA

TE
D)

1050.00

1055.00

1055.00

1065.00

1065.00

1075.00

10
80

.0
0

1080.00

1085.00

1060.00

1060.00

1070.00

107
0.0

0

1070.00

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

WATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATER
WATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATER

MARKEY PARKWAY

20' BL SETBACK

1072

1076
1078

1080

1082

108
0

10
76

10
80

10
78

1076

1074

1076

1066

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

91011121314

15

16

17

15
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

SAN
S

WATERWATERWATERWATERWATER

1088
1086

1084

1080

107410
74

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

1070

1070

1064

SAN
SAN

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

WATER

25' BL SETBACK

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83848586
87

88
89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

FLO
OD PLAIN

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N
40

' S
TR

EA
M B

UF
FE

R

40
' S

TR
EA

M
 B

U
FF

ER

TCE TI
H

C
R

A
E

P
ACSDNAL

G
AR
R
ET
T

O
C
H
S

N
U
M
BE
R

LA
-2
00
80
00
58
7

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 N

O
TE

S

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
 T

O
 L

O
CA

TE
 A

LL
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 B
EF

O
RE

 IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

N
 T

O
 B

EG
IN

.

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

ve
ri

fy
 a

ll 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

m
at

er
ia

l q
ua

nt
it

ie
s 

an
d 

sh
al

l r
ep

or
t 

an
y 

di
sc

re
pa

nc
ie

s
to

 t
he

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
in

st
al

la
ti

on
.

N
o 

pl
an

t 
m

at
er

ia
l s

ub
st

it
ut

io
ns

 a
re

 a
llo

w
ed

 w
it

ho
ut

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 o
r 

O
w

ne
rs

ap
pr

ov
al

.

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

gu
ar

an
te

e 
al

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 w

or
k 

an
d 

pl
an

t 
m

at
er

ia
l f

or
 a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 o

ne
 y

ea
r

fr
om

 d
at

e 
of

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

of
 t

he
 w

or
k 

by
 t

he
 O

w
ne

r.
  A

ny
 p

la
nt

 m
at

er
ia

l w
hi

ch
 d

ie
s 

du
ri

ng
th

e 
on

e 
ye

ar
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 p
er

io
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 d

ur
in

g 
no

rm
al

 p
la

nt
in

g
se

as
on

s.

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
pl

an
ts

 u
nt

il 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 t
he

jo
b 

an
d 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
O

w
ne

r.

Al
l p

la
nt

 m
at

er
ia

l s
ha

ll 
be

 s
pe

ci
m

en
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

oc
k 

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 t
he

 "
Am

er
ic

an
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

Fo
r 

N
ur

se
ry

 S
to

ck
" 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 T
he

 A
m

er
ic

an
 A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 o

f 
N

ur
se

ry
m

an
, 

fr
ee

 o
f 

pl
an

t
di

se
as

es
 a

nd
 p

es
t,

 o
f 

ty
pi

ca
l g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
an

d 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 h

ea
lt

hy
, 

no
rm

al
 r

oo
t

sy
st

em
.

Si
ze

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 p

la
nt

 li
st

 a
re

 t
he

 m
in

im
um

, 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 s
iz

e.
  I

n 
no

 c
as

e 
w

ill
 s

iz
es

 le
ss

th
an

 s
pe

ci
fi

ed
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
.

Al
l s

hr
ub

 b
ed

s 
w

it
hi

n 
la

w
n 

ar
ea

s 
to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 m

an
ic

ur
ed

 e
dg

e.

Al
l s

hr
ub

 b
ed

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
m

ul
ch

ed
 w

it
h 

3"
 t

hi
ck

 W
as

he
d 

st
on

e 
or

 B
ri

ck
 C

hi
ps

Al
l s

od
 a

re
as

 t
o 

be
 f

er
ti

liz
ed

 &
 s

od
de

d 
w

it
h 

a 
Tu

rf
-T

yp
e-

Ta
ll 

Fe
sc

ue
 s

ee
d 

bl
en

d.

Al
l s

ee
d 

ar
ea

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
hy

dr
o-

se
ed

ed
 w

it
h 

a 
Tu

rf
-T

yp
e-

Ta
ll 

Fe
sc

ue
 s

ee
d 

bl
en

d.

0
40

'
20

'

1"
=4

0'
C

8.
0

C
iv

il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 D

AT
A:

M
AI

N
 L

O
O

P 
RO

AD
 &

 E
AS

T 
PR

IV
AT

E 
DR

 =
 1

,5
35

'
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

1 
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

 /
 3

0'
=

51
 B

O
TH

 S
ID

ES
 =

 1
02

PR
O

VI
DE

D
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

S
=

53
O

RN
AM

EN
TA

L
=

7
TO

TA
L

=
60

M
AR

KE
Y 

PA
RK

W
AY

=
79

0'
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

20
' B

U
FF

ER
 O

PT
IO

N
 B

1 
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

 /
 6

0'
=

13
3 

O
RN

AM
EN

TA
L/

10
0'

=
24

4 
SH

RU
BS

/1
00

'
=

32

PR
O

VI
DE

D
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

S
=

13
O

RN
AM

EN
TA

L
=

24
SH

RU
BS

=
75

IN
TE

RI
O

R 
PL

AN
TI

N
G

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
0.

75
 T

RE
E 

/ 
U

N
IT

=
75

PR
O

VI
DE

D
=

54
,2

72
sf

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

RE
ES

 T
O

RE
M

AI
N

 N
W

 C
O

RN
ER

 O
F 

SI
TE

.

LA
N

DS
CA

PI
N

G
 A

RO
U

N
D 

DE
TE

N
TI

O
N

 =
 1

,8
26

'
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

SH
AD

E 
TR

EE
S 

50
' S

PA
CI

N
G

 M
AX

O
RN

AM
EN

TA
L 

30
' S

PA
CI

N
G

 M
AX

EV
ER

G
RE

EN
 3

0'
 S

PA
CI

N
G

 M
AX

N
O

TE
:

AL
L 

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
LA

N
DS

CA
PI

N
G

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 IN

ST
AL

LE
D 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 T
H

E 
IS

SU
AN

CE
O

F 
TH

E 
FI

N
AL

 C
ER

TI
FI

CA
TE

 O
F 

O
CC

U
PA

N
CY

.

IR
RI

G
AT

IO
N

 D
ES

IG
N

 T
O

 B
E 

SU
BM

IT
TE

D 
TO

CI
TY

 S
EP

AR
AT

EL
Y 

FO
R 

AP
PR

O
VA

L

PH
AS

E 
1

PH
AS

E 
2

PH
AS

E 
1

PH
AS

E 
2

O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

 D
AT

A
TO

TA
L 

SI
TE

47
9,

50
2.

83
 S

F 
(1

1.
00

8 
ac

)
CU

RR
EN

T 
ZO

N
IN

G
R-

3 
M

U
LT

I/
TR

I/
Q

U
AD

 P
LE

X
TO

TA
L 

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S

75
,3

46
sf

DR
IV

EW
AY

S
30

,2
36

sf
PR

IV
AT

E 
ST

RE
ET

44
,4

47
sf

TO
TA

L
15

0,
02

9s
f

O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

32
9,

47
3s

f 
= 

69
%

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

RE
ES

 T
O

 R
EM

AI
N

"R
ed

 T
op

" 
Bl

ue
gr

as
s 

se
ed

 m
ix

 8
-1

2l
bs

 p
er

 a
cr

e
36

,0
59

sf

AM
O

U
N

T
TY

PE

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e
Q

ua
nt

it
y 

Sy
m

bo
l

 T
re

e 
Li

st
Sp

ac
in

g
Bo

ta
ni

ca
l N

am
e

Si
ze

Co
nd

it
io

n

BB
6'

 h
gt

Ju
ni

pe
ru

s 
vi

rg
in

ia
na

As
 S

ho
w

n
22

Ea
st

er
n 

Re
d 

Ce
da

r

G
ol

de
n 

Ra
in

tr
ee

17 19

As
 S

ho
w

n

As
 S

ho
w

n

Ko
el

re
ut

er
ia

 P
an

ic
ul

at
a

1 
1/

2"
ca

l

1 
1/

2"
ca

l
BB BB

Ac
er

 R
ub

ru
m

 'O
ct

ob
er

 G
lo

ry
'

BB
As

 S
ho

w
n

O
ct

ob
er

 G
lo

ry
 M

ap
le

54

Su
pe

rf
or

m
 N

or
w

ay
 M

ap
le

40
As

 S
ho

w
n

Ac
er

 P
la

ta
no

id
es

 'S
up

er
fo

rm
'

BB

42
Sk

yl
in

e 
H

on
ey

lo
cu

st
As

 S
ho

w
n

BB
G

le
di

ts
ia

 T
ri

ac
an

th
os

 'S
ky

lin
e'

BB
1 

1/
2"

ca
l

Ac
er

 G
in

na
la

 'F
la

m
e'

As
 S

ho
w

n
21

Am
ur

 M
ap

le

Pr
ai

ri
ef

ir
e 

Cr
ab

ap
pl

e
M

al
us

 S
p.

 'P
ri

ar
ie

fi
re

'

2.
5"

 c
al

2.
5"

 c
al

2"
 c

al

Q
ua

nt
it

y 
Sy

m
bo

l
Co

m
m

on
 N

am
e

Bo
ta

ni
ca

l N
am

e
Si

ze
Sp

ac
in

g
Co

nd
it

io
n

Co
nt

.
3 

1/
2'

o.
c.

18
"-

24
"s

p.
Eu

on
ym

us
 A

la
tu

s 
'C

om
pa

ct
us

'
Dw

ar
f 

W
in

ge
d 

Eu
on

ym
us

15

Ju
ni

pe
ru

s 
Ch

in
en

si
s 

'S
ea

gr
ee

n'
15

Se
ag

re
en

 J
un

ip
er

18
"-

24
"s

p.
4'

o.
c.

Co
nt

.

Co
nt

.
3'

o.
c.

3 
ga

l.
M

is
ca

nt
ho

s 
Si

ne
ns

is
 'M

or
ni

ng
 L

ig
ht

'

Sh
ru

b 
Li

st

Fe
at

he
r 

Re
ed

 G
ra

ss
34

0
'K

ar
l F

oe
rs

te
r'

Co
nt

.
2'

o.
c.

3 
ga

l.
M

or
ni

ng
 L

ig
ht

 M
ai

de
n 

G
ra

ss
15

Tu
rf

-T
yp

e-
Ta

ll 
Fe

sc
ue

 s
ee

d 
bl

en
d 

8-
12

lb
s 

pe
r 

ac
re

48
,6

20
sf

SE
ED

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

025



C
1.

0
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

SI
TE

SE
CT

IO
N

 M
AP

SE
C.

 0
2 

TW
. 

46
  R

N
G

. 
33

SE
CT

IO
N

 0
2,

 T
O

W
N

SH
IP

 4
6 

N
O

RT
H

, 
RA

N
G

E 
33

 W
ES

T

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

FI
N

AL
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

PL
AN

BE
LT

O
N

 C
AS

S 
CO

U
N

TY
, 

M
IS

SO
U

RI

M
AR

KE
Y 

PK
W

Y

O
W

N
ER

:
AU

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

DS
 D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T,

 L
P

AT
TN

: 
RI

CK
 T

RU
M

BU
LL

14
71

3 
JU

N
IP

ER
 S

T
LE

AW
O

O
D,

 K
S 

66
22

4
CE

LL
: 

(8
16

) 
91

8-
30

40

TU
RN

ER
 R

D

SU
RV

EY
O

R
H

U
FF

M
AN

 L
AN

D 
SU

RV
EY

O
RS

P.
 O

. 
BO

X 
66

1
RA

YM
O

RE
, 

M
IS

SO
U

RI
  6

40
83

(8
16

) 
32

2-
45

44
H

U
FF

SU
RV

EY
O

R@
G

M
AI

L.
CO

M

LA
N

D 
DE

SC
RI

PT
IO

N
:

LO
T 

1,
 B

LO
CK

 5
 A

U
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

, 
 A

  S
U

BD
IV

IS
IO

N
 IN

BE
LT

O
N

, 
CA

SS
 C

O
U

N
TY

, 
M

IS
SO

U
RI

, 
AC

CO
RD

IN
G

 T
O

 T
H

E
RE

CO
RD

ED
 P

LA
T 

TH
ER

EO
F,

 F
IL

ED
 IN

 P
LA

T 
BO

O
K 

37
81

 A
T

PA
G

E 
51

5.

M
AR

KE
Y 

PK
W

Y

ST LOUIS R
R

SCOTT AVE

HWY 49

HWY Y

TU
RN

ER
 R

O
AD

WESTOVER ROAD

PR
O

JE
CT

 S
IT

E

LO
CA

TI
O

N
 M

AP

ST
AN

DA
RD

 L
EG

EN
D

O
H

E
GTW

- 
O

VE
RH

EA
D 

EL
EC

TR
IC

 L
IN

E
- 

G
AS

 L
IN

E
- 

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D 

TE
LE

PH
O

N
E 

LI
N

E

- 
W

AT
ER

 L
IN

E

SA
N

G

- 
FE

N
CE

- 
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 L

IN
E

- 
G

AS
 L

IN
E

W
MG
M

- 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T

- 
W

AT
ER

 M
ET

ER
- 

G
U

Y 
W

IR
E

- 
PO

W
ER

 P
O

LE

- 
SE

W
ER

 M
AN

H
O

LE

- 
G

AS
 M

ET
ER

- 
W

AT
ER

 V
AL

VE

P 
  -

PL
AT

TE
D 

DI
ST

AN
CE

M
   

-M
EA

SU
RE

D 
DI

ST
AN

CE

AC

TP

EBEM CO

- 
AI

R 
CO

N
DI

TI
O

N
ER

 U
N

IT

- 
TE

LE
PH

O
N

E 
PE

DI
ST

AL

- 
EL

EC
TR

IC
 B

O
X

- 
CL

EA
N

 O
U

T 
SE

W
ER

- 
EL

EC
TR

IC
 M

ET
ER

- 
CO

N
CR

ET
E

- 
AS

PH
AL

T

24
"

- 
TR

EE
 A

N
D 

SI
ZE

- 
LO

T 
LI

N
E

- 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

LI
N

E

PP

- 
RE

IN
FO

RC
ED

 C
O

N
CR

ET
E 

PI
PE

- 
VI

TR
IF

IE
D 

CL
AY

 P
IP

E
- 

FI
N

IS
H

ED
 F

LO
O

R

RC
P

VC
P

FF

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N
TH

IS
 S

U
BJ

EC
T 

TR
AC

T 
LI

ES
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
10

0
YE

AR
 F

LO
O

D 
PL

AI
N

 Z
O

N
E 

A 
AC

CO
RD

IN
G

TO
 M

AP
 N

U
M

BE
R 

29
03

7C
00

10
F 

DA
TE

D
JA

N
U

AR
Y 

2,
 2

01
3

PA
RC

EL
 N

O
: 

05
01

02
30

00
00

00
30

00
DI

ST
U

RB
ED

 A
RE

A 
4.

42
ac

N
O

TE
:

ST
RE

ET
S 

PR
IV

AT
E

W
AT

ER
LI

N
ES

PU
BL

IC
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
PU

BL
IC

TR
AS

H
PE

R 
IN

DI
VI

DU
AL

 U
N

IT

U
TI

LI
TY

 S
TA

TE
M

EN
T:

TH
E 

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 S

H
O

W
N

 H
ER

EO
N

 A
RE

 F
RO

M
 F

IE
LD

 S
U

RV
EY

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
N

E-
CA

LL
 L

O
CA

TE
D 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
, 

FI
EL

D 
SU

RV
EY

 IN
FO

RM
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

AB
O

VE
 G

RO
U

N
D 

O
BS

ER
VA

BL
E 

EV
ID

EN
CE

,
AN

D/
O

R 
TH

E 
SC

AL
IN

G
 A

N
D 

PL
O

TT
IN

G
 O

F 
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 U
TI

LI
TY

 M
AP

S 
AN

D 
DR

AW
IN

G
S 

AV
AI

LA
BL

E 
TO

 T
H

E
SU

RV
EY

O
R 

AT
 T

H
E 

TI
M

E 
O

F 
SU

RV
EY

. 
TH

E 
SU

RV
EY

O
R 

M
AK

ES
 N

O
 G

U
AR

AN
TE

E 
TH

AT
 T

H
E

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D 

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 S

H
O

W
N

 C
O

M
PR

IS
E 

AL
L 

SU
CH

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 IN

 T
H

E 
AR

EA
, 

EI
TH

ER
 IN

 S
ER

VI
CE

O
R 

AB
AN

DO
N

ED
. 

FU
RT

H
ER

M
O

RE
, 

TH
E 

SU
RV

EY
O

R 
DO

ES
 N

O
T 

W
AR

RA
N

T 
TH

AT
 T

H
E 

U
N

DE
RG

RO
U

N
D

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 S

H
O

W
N

 A
RE

 IN
 T

H
E 

EX
AC

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 IN
DI

CA
TE

D 
AL

TH
O

U
G

H
 H

E 
DO

ES
 C

ER
TI

FY
 T

H
AT

 T
H

EY
AR

E 
LO

CA
TE

D 
AS

 A
CC

U
RA

TE
LY

 A
S 

PO
SS

IB
LE

 F
RO

M
 IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 A

VA
IL

AB
LE

. 
TH

E 
SU

RV
EY

O
R 

H
AS

N
O

T 
PH

YS
IC

AL
LY

 L
O

CA
TE

D 
TH

E 
U

N
DE

RG
RO

U
N

D 
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 B
Y 

EX
CA

VA
TI

O
N

 U
N

LE
SS

 O
TH

ER
W

IS
E

N
O

TE
D 

O
N

 T
H

IS
 S

U
RV

EY
.

SA
FE

TY
 N

O
TI

CE
 T

O
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R

IN
 A

CC
O

RD
AN

CE
 W

IT
H

 G
EN

ER
AL

LY
 A

CC
EP

TE
D 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 P

RA
CT

IC
E,

 T
H

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R 
W

IL
L 

BE
SO

LE
LY

 A
N

D 
CO

M
PL

ET
EL

Y 
RE

SP
O

N
SI

BL
E 

FO
R 

CO
N

DI
TI

O
N

S 
O

F 
TH

E 
JO

B 
SI

TE
, 

IN
CL

U
DI

N
G

 S
AF

ET
Y 

O
F

AL
L 

PE
RS

O
N

S 
AN

D 
PR

O
PE

RT
Y 

DU
RI

N
G

 P
ER

FO
RM

AN
CE

 O
F 

TH
E 

W
O

RK
. 

TH
IS

 R
EQ

U
IR

EM
EN

T 
W

IL
L

AP
PL

Y 
CO

N
TI

N
U

O
U

SL
Y 

AN
D 

N
O

T 
BE

 L
IM

IT
ED

 T
O

 N
O

RM
AL

 W
O

RK
IN

G
 H

O
U

RS
.

W
AR

RA
N

TY
/D

IS
CL

AI
M

ER
TH

E 
DE

SI
G

N
S 

RE
PR

ES
EN

TE
D 

IN
 T

H
ES

E 
PL

AN
S 

AR
E 

IN
 A

CC
O

RD
AN

CE
 W

IT
H

 E
ST

AB
LI

SH
ED

 P
RA

CT
IC

ES
O

F 
CI

VI
L 

EN
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 F

O
R 

TH
E 

DE
SI

G
N

 F
U

N
CT

IO
N

S 
AN

D 
U

SE
S 

IN
TE

N
ED

ED
 B

Y 
TH

E 
O

W
N

ER
 A

T 
TH

IS
TI

M
E.

 H
O

W
EV

ER
, 

N
EI

TH
ER

 S
M

 E
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

 N
O

R 
IT

S 
PE

RS
O

N
N

EL
 C

AN
 O

R 
DO

W
AR

RA
N

TY
 T

H
ES

E 
DE

SI
G

N
S 

O
R 

PL
AN

S 
AS

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

ED
, 

EX
CE

PT
 IN

 T
H

E 
SP

EC
IF

IC
 C

AS
ES

 W
H

ER
E

SM
 E

N
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 P

ER
SO

N
N

EL
 IN

SP
EC

T 
AN

D 
CO

N
TR

O
L 

TH
E 

PH
YS

IC
AL

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 O
N

A 
CO

N
TE

M
PO

RA
RY

 B
AS

IS
 A

T 
TH

E 
SI

TE
.

CA
U

TI
O

N
- 

N
O

TI
CE

 T
O

 C
O

N
TR

AC
TO

R
TH

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R 
IS

 S
PE

CI
FI

CA
LL

Y 
CA

U
TI

O
N

ED
 T

H
AT

 T
H

E 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

 A
N

D/
O

R 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 A
S 

SH
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

ES
E 

PL
AN

S 
IS

 B
AS

ED
 O

N
 R

EC
O

RD
S 

O
F 

TH
E 

VA
RI

O
U

S 
U

TI
LI

TY
 C

O
M

PA
N

IE
S

AN
D,

 W
H

ER
E 

PO
SS

IB
LE

, 
M

EA
SU

RE
M

EN
TS

 T
AK

EN
 IN

 T
H

E 
FI

EL
D.

 T
H

E 
IN

FO
RM

AT
IO

N
 IS

 N
O

T 
TO

 B
E

RE
LI

ED
 O

N
 A

S 
BE

IN
G

 E
XA

CT
 O

R 
CO

M
PL

ET
E.

 T
H

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R 
M

U
ST

 C
AL

L 
TH

E 
AP

PR
O

PR
IA

TE
 U

TI
LI

TY
CO

M
PA

N
Y 

AT
 L

EA
ST

 7
2 

H
O

U
RS

 B
EF

O
RE

 A
N

Y 
EX

CA
VA

TI
O

N
 T

O
 R

EQ
U

ES
T 

EX
AC

T 
FI

EL
D 

LO
CA

TI
O

N
 O

F
U

TI
LI

TI
ES

. 
IT

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 T

H
E 

RE
SP

O
N

SI
BI

LI
TY

 O
F 

TH
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

TO
 R

EL
O

CA
TE

 A
LL

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

W
H

IC
H

 C
O

N
FL

IC
T 

W
IT

H
 P

RO
PO

SE
D 

IM
PR

O
VE

M
EN

TS
 S

H
O

W
N

 O
N

 T
H

E 
PL

AN
S.

 T
H

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R
SH

AL
L 

EX
PO

SE
 E

XI
ST

IN
G

 U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 A

T 
LO

CA
TI

O
N

S 
O

F 
PO

SS
IB

LE
 C

O
N

FL
IC

TS
 P

RI
O

R 
TO

 A
N

Y
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

.

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
 IN

VO
LV

ED

R E E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

SS
E

F
O

RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
El

ec
tr

ic
 S

er
vi

ce
Ev

er
gy

N
at

ha
n 

M
ic

ha
el

91
3-

34
7-

43
10

N
at

ha
n.

m
ic

ha
el

@
ev

er
gy

.c
om

G
as

 S
er

vi
ce

Sp
ir

e
Ka

ti
e 

Da
rn

el
l

81
6-

96
9-

22
47

Ka
ti

e.
da

rn
el

l@
sp

ir
ee

ne
rg

y.
co

m

W
at

er
/ 

Sa
ni

ta
ry

 S
ew

er
Pu

bl
ic

 W
or

ks
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t
50

6 
M

ai
n 

St
re

et
Be

lt
on

, 
M

O
 6

41
02

N
ik

ia
 F

re
ib

er
ge

r
81

6-
33

1-
43

31

Co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n

AT
&

am
p;

T
Da

n 
W

ol
fe

81
6-

22
5-

94
08

EN
G

IN
EE

R
SM

 E
N

G
IN

EE
RI

N
G

55
07

 H
IG

H
 M

EA
DO

W
 C

IR
CL

E
M

AN
H

AT
TA

N
 K

AN
SA

S,
 6

65
03

SM
CI

VI
LE

N
G

R@
G

M
AI

L.
CO

M
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

IN
DE

X 
O

F 
SH

EE
TS

1.
CO

VE
R 

SH
EE

T
2.

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
N

DI
TI

O
N

S
3.

LA
YO

U
T 

PL
AN

4.
U

TI
LI

TY
 P

LA
N

5.
G

RA
DI

N
G

 P
LA

N
5.

1
IM

PE
RV

IO
U

S 
PL

AN
5.

2
O

VE
RF

LO
W

 P
LA

N
6.

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R 

PL
AN

 A
N

D 
PR

O
FI

LE
7.

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R 

PL
AN

 A
N

D 
PR

O
FI

LE
8.

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 P

LA
N

• o " ooi:tol¢ 

... 
(I) 

(I) 

.c 
U) 

026



A
SP

H
A

LT
SU

R
FA

C
E

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

18
" C

M
P

FL
 IN

 (E
A

ST
)=

10
73

.8
4

FL
 O

U
T 

(W
ES

T)
=1

07
1.

89

CONC
DRIVE

26

28

23

25

20

MARKEY DRIVE

22

R
IM

 =
 1

06
3.

10

MARKEY MEADOW, LOTS 1 THRU 33

2421

R
IM

 =
 1

06
5.

75

EXISTING BELTON AVENUE 40' ROW

SAN

R
IM

 =
 1

08
5.

09

R
IM

 =
10

77
.4

9

R
IM

 =
10

77
.4

ST LOUIS & SANTA FE RAILROAD 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
18

" 
RC

P
FL

 IN
 (

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T)

=1
06

6.
67

FL
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
65

.5
3

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
C

O
N

TR
O

L
B

O
X

ES

F=
SE

W
A

G
E 

PU
M

P 
ST

A
TI

O
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

S

SANSANSANSANSAN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
H

O
LE

 9
B-

M
H

03
0

TO
P 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 =

 1
05

0.
16

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 IN

 (
SO

U
TH

) 
= 

10
44

.2
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

) 
= 

10
43

.9
1

PI
PE

 IN
 (

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
35

.9
1

CONC FL
UME

N02°50'15"E
807.85'

S8
7°

11
'5

3"
E

46
6.

65
'

S26°51'13"E

179.76'

N
85

°5
5'

06
"W

31
0.

95
'

OK 11
, P

AGE 30
)

(TO BE VACATED)

10
50

.0
0

10
55

.0
0

1055.00

10
65

.0
0

10
65

.0
0

10
75

.0
0

10
80

.00

10
80

.00

10
85

.0
0

106
0.0

0

1060.00

10
70

.0
0

10
70

.0
0

10
70

.0
0

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
M

H
TO

P 
10

61
.2

4
F/

L 
IN

 S
E 

10
42

.0
8

F/
L 

IN
 W

 1
04

2.
04

F/
L 

O
U

T 
N

N
E 

10
41

.6
3

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

M
AR

KE
Y 

PA
RK

W
AY

20
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

10
72

1076 1078

10
80

10
82

10
80

1076

10
80

10
78

10
76

107
4

10
76

10
66

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
89

10
11

12
13

14

151617

15' BL SETBACK

SAN
SAN

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

47
8.

95
'

N
85

°4
9'

54
"W

10
88

10
86

10
84

1080

1074

1074

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

10
70

10
70 10

64

SAN
SAN

SAN SAN

WATER
WATERWATERWATERWATER

WATER
WATER

WATER

W
ATER

25
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

181920212223242526272829

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

3738

87
88

89

90

91 92

93 94 95

96 97

98

99 10
0

10
1

AUTUMN WOODS DR

AUTUMN WOODS DR

FLOOD PLAIN

FLOOD PLAIN 40' STREAM BUFFER

40' STREAM BUFFER

0
50

'
25

'

1"
=5

0'
C

2.
0

C
iv

il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

RE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

CA
M

P 
PE

N
DL

ET
O

N
 A

N
D 

Q
U

AN
TI

CO
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

LC

J 
J 

&
 B

 IN
C

PA
RS

O
N

, 
ST

AN
 B

 A
N

D 
O

M
AD

IN
E 

R

N
O

RT
O

N
 &

 N
O

RT
O

N
 L

LC

G
AN

N
, 

RA
YM

O
N

D 
H

 &
 S

H
AR

O
N

 F

SO
U

TH
ER

N
 S

U
PP

LY
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
ED

IN
A,

 P
ET

E 
R

M
AR

KE
Y 

M
EA

DO
W

, 
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RU
 3

3

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
EV

EL
O

PE
N

T 
LP

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 W

AT
ER

LI
N

E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

LO
O

D 
PL

AI
N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

30
'

A/
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 3

0'
 A

CC
ES

S 
ES

M
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TR
EE

T 
LI

G
H

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

60'
R/W

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 E
N

TR
AN

CE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

15'
S/E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

28
'

28'

15
'

U/
E

15
'

U/
E

15'
S/E

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

- z - ~ 

027



A
SP

H
A

LT
SU

R
FA

C
E

O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

18
" C

M
P

FL
 IN

 (E
A

ST
)=

10
73

.8
4

FL
 O

U
T 

(W
ES

T)
=1

07
1.

89

CONC
DRIVE

26

28

23

25

20

MARKEY DRIVE

22

R
IM

 =
 1

06
3.

10

MARKEY MEADOW, LOTS 1 THRU 33

2421

R
IM

 =
 1

06
5.

75

EXISTING BELTON AVENUE 40' ROW

SAN

R
IM

 =
 1

08
5.

09

R
IM

 =
10

77
.4

9

R
IM

 =
10

77
.4

0

ST LOUIS & SANTA FE RAILROAD 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
18

" 
RC

P
FL

 IN
 (

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T)

=1
06

6.
67

FL
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
65

.5
3

R
A

IL
R

O
A

D
C

O
N

TR
O

L
B

O
X

ES

F=
SE

W
A

G
E 

PU
M

P 
ST

A
TI

O
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

S

S

SANSANSANSANSANS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
H

O
LE

 9
B-

M
H

03
0

TO
P 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 =

 1
05

0.
16

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 IN

 (
SO

U
TH

) 
= 

10
44

.2
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

) 
= 

10
43

.9
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

PI
PE

 IN
 (

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
35

.9
1

CONC FL
UME

N02°50'15"E
807.85'

S8
7°

11
'5

3"
E

46
6.

65
'

S26°51'13"E

179.76'

N
85

°5
5'

06
"W

31
0.

95
'

(BOOK 11
, P

AGE 30
)

(TO BE VACATED)

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
M

H
TO

P 
10

61
.2

4
F/

L 
IN

 S
E 

10
42

.0
8

F/
L 

IN
 W

 1
04

2.
04

F/
L 

O
U

T 
N

N
E 

10
41

.6
3

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

M
AR

KE
Y 

PA
RK

W
AY

15' BL SETBACK

20
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
89

10
11

12
13

14

151617

15' BL SETBACK

28.0'

28
.0

'

190.26'

75.93'

50.52'

73
.06

'

70
.6

1'

73.04'
R=498.00'

120.13' R=198.00'

46
.6

9'

R=
50

.0
0'

58.37' R=502.00'

CENTERLINE OF CREEK

R2
5.

0'

R2
5.0

'

FULL ACCESS

SAN
SAN

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

R25.
0'

R2
5.

0'

RIGHT IN / RIGHT OUT

47
8.

95
'

N
85

°4
9'

54
"W

60.0'
R/W

60.0'
R/W

26.0' 26.0'

14.0'

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN SAN

WATER
WATERWATERWATERWATER

WATER
WATER

WATER

W
ATER

25
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

181920212223242526272829

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

3738

39

40

41

42 43 44

45 46 47

48

49 50

51 52 53 54 55 56
575859606162

63646566

6768

697071

7273

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83
84

85
86

87
88

89

90

91 92

93 94 95

96 97

98

99 10
0

10
1

11.7'

11.0' 11.0'

11.4'

16.5'

20.0'
16.5'

25' BL SETBACK

25' BL SETBACK

11.1'

11.0'11.2'

11.7'

11
.2'

11
.4'

10
.0

' 20.0'9.
0'

20
.0

'

9.0
'

R5.0'

R5
.0

'

R5
.0

'
R5

.0
'

AUTUMN WOODS DR

AUTUMN WOODS DR

FLOOD PLAIN

FLOOD PLAIN

15
.0'

15
.0

'

R3
1.

0'
R3

1.
0'

29.4'

40' STREAM BUFFER

40' STREAM BUFFER

18.0'

18.0'

18.0'
3.5'

3.0'

3.5'

16
.0

'

0
50

'
25

'

1"
=5

0'
C

3.
0

C
iv

il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

S
IT

E
 P

LA
N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

RE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

SS
E

F
O

RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

CA
M

P 
PE

N
DL

ET
O

N
 A

N
D 

Q
U

AN
TI

CO
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

LC

J 
J 

&
 B

 IN
C

PA
RS

O
N

, 
ST

AN
 B

 A
N

D 
O

M
AD

IN
E 

R

N
O

RT
O

N
 &

 N
O

RT
O

N
 L

LC

G
AN

N
, 

RA
YM

O
N

D 
H

 &
 S

H
AR

O
N

 F

SO
U

TH
ER

N
 S

U
PP

LY
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
ED

IN
A,

 P
ET

E 
R

M
AR

KE
Y 

M
EA

DO
W

, 
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RU
 3

3

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
EV

EL
O

PE
N

T 
LP

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 1

00
yr

 F
LO

O
D 

PL
AI

N

30
'

A/
E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 3

0'
 A

CC
ES

S 
ES

M
T

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

RE
ET

 L
IG

H
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
PO

N
D 

#2

PR
O

PO
SE

D
PL

AY
G

RO
U

N
D

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
PO

N
D 

#1

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
PO

N
D 

#4

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 E
N

TR
AN

CE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

15'
S/E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

28
'

28'

30
'

A/
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T

PR
O

PO
SE

D
5'

 T
RA

IL

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N
PO

N
D 

#3

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
4'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
W

AT
ER

LI
N

E

PH
AS

E 
1 

PH
AS

E 
2

PHASE 1

PHASE 2

8'
X1

0'
 P

AT
IO

15
'

U/
E

15
'

U/
E

15
'

U/
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
15

'X
15

'
PI

CN
IC

 S
H

EL
TE

R

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
RE

TA
IN

IN
G

 W
AL

L 
W

IT
H

 R
AI

LI
N

G

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N
 E

Q
U

AL
S

ST
RE

AM
 B

U
FF

ER

I - 1 I 
I - -

I - I --t--i i - , 
I I __ 1/ 
I I ~~~ 
I ----J ~ 
L -------

I 

I 

/ .) 

:::z -~ --~,cctc- ~ 

I 
.L~_ 

028



O
H

P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

26

28

23

25

20

MARKEY DRIVE

22

MARKEY MEADOW, LOTS 1 THRU 33

2421

SAN

ST LOUIS & SANTA FE RAILROAD 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
18

" 
RC

P
FL

 IN
 (

SO
U

TH
W

ES
T)

=1
06

6.
67

FL
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
65

.5
3

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

S

S

SANSANSANSANSANS

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 M

AN
H

O
LE

 9
B-

M
H

03
0

TO
P 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 =

 1
05

0.
16

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 IN

 (
SO

U
TH

) 
= 

10
44

.2
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

" 
PI

PE
 O

U
T 

(N
O

RT
H

) 
= 

10
43

.9
1

FL
O

W
LI

N
E 

EL
EV

AT
IO

N
 8

PI
PE

 IN
 (

EA
ST

) 
= 

10
35

.9
1

CONC FL
UME

N02°50'15"E
807.85'

S8
7°

11
'5

3"
E

46
6.

65
'

S26°51'13"E

179.76'

N
85

°5
5'

06
"W

31
0.

95
'

SA
N

IT
AR

Y 
M

H
TO

P 
10

61
.2

4
F/

L 
IN

 S
E 

10
42

.0
8

F/
L 

IN
 W

 1
04

2.
04

F/
L 

O
U

T 
N

N
E 

10
41

.6
3

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

O
H

P
O

H
P

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

M
AR

KE
Y 

PA
RK

W
AY

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
89

10
11

12
13

14

151617

SAN
SAN

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

47
8.

95
'

N
85

°4
9'

54
"W

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN SAN SAN SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN SAN

WATER
WATERWATERWATERWATER

WATER
WATER

WATER

W
ATER

181920212223242526272829

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

3738

39

40

41

42 43 44

45 46 47

48

49 50

51 52 53 54 55 56
575859606162

63646566

6768

697071

7273

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83
84

85
86

87
88

89

90

91 92

93 94 95

96 97

98

99 10
0

10
1

AUTUMN WOODS DR

AUTUMN WOODS DR

FLOOD PLAIN

FLOOD PLAIN 40' STREAM BUFFER

40' STREAM BUFFER

0
50

'
25

'

1"
=5

0'
C

4.
0

C
iv

il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

U
TI

LI
TY

 P
LA

N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TSRE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

CA
M

P 
PE

N
DL

ET
O

N
 A

N
D 

Q
U

AN
TI

CO
 H

O
U

SI
N

G
 L

LC

J 
J 

&
 B

 IN
C

PA
RS

O
N

, 
ST

AN
 B

 A
N

D 
O

M
AD

IN
E 

R

N
O

RT
O

N
 &

 N
O

RT
O

N
 L

LC

G
AN

N
, 

RA
YM

O
N

D 
H

 &
 S

H
AR

O
N

 F

SO
U

TH
ER

N
 S

U
PP

LY
 C

O
M

PA
N

Y

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
CK

IN
ZE

Y 
H

O
LD

IN
G

S 
LL

C

M
ED

IN
A,

 P
ET

E 
R

M
AR

KE
Y 

M
EA

DO
W

, 
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RU
 3

3

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

RE
ET

 L
IG

H
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E 

H
YD

RA
N

T

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 F

IR
E

H
YD

RA
N

T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 C

O
M

M
ER

CI
AL

 E
N

TR
AN

CE

15'
S/E

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 P

U
BL

IC
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

28'

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
PU

BL
IC

 S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
SE

W
ER

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 D

ET
EN

TI
O

N

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
5'

 S
ID

EW
AL

K

PR
O

PO
SE

D
W

AT
ER

LI
N

E

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
15

' S
AN

IT
AR

Y 
ES

M
T

N
O

TE
S

20
A

PO
IN

T 
O

F 
CO

N
N

EC
TI

O
N

 -
 W

AT
ER

 S
ER

VI
CE

20
B

3/
4"

 M
ET

ER
S

AL
L 

W
AT

ER
 S

ER
VI

CE
S 

LI
N

ES
 T

O
 B

E 
3/

4"

U
TI

LI
TY

 N
O

TE
S:

1.
  A

LL
 U

TI
LI

TY
 A

N
D 

ST
O

RM
 S

EW
ER

 T
RE

N
CH

ES
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
ED

 U
N

DE
R 

AR
EA

S 
TH

AT
RE

CE
IV

E 
PA

VI
N

G
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 B
AC

KF
IL

LE
D 

TO
 1

8 
IN

CH
ES

 A
BO

VE
 T

H
E 

TO
P 

O
F 

TH
E 

PI
PE

W
IT

H
 S

EL
EC

T 
G

RA
N

U
LA

R 
M

AT
ER

IA
L 

PL
AC

ED
 O

N
 E

IG
H

T-
IN

CH
 L

IF
TS

, 
AN

D 
CO

M
PA

CT
ED

 T
O

95
% 

M
O

DI
FI

ED
 P

RO
CT

O
R 

DE
N

SI
TY

.

2.
  C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

SH
AL

L 
N

O
T 

O
PE

N
, 

TU
RN

 O
FF

, 
IN

TE
RF

ER
E 

W
IT

H
, 

O
R 

AT
TA

CH
 A

N
Y 

PI
PE

O
R 

H
O

SE
 T

O
 O

R 
TA

P 
AN

Y 
W

AT
ER

 M
AI

N
 B

EL
O

N
G

IN
G

 T
O

 T
H

E 
CI

TY
 U

N
LE

SS
 D

U
LY

AU
TH

O
RI

ZE
D 

TO
 D

O
 S

O
 B

Y 
TH

E 
CI

TY
. 

 A
N

Y 
AD

VE
RS

E 
CO

N
SE

Q
U

EN
CE

 O
F 

AN
Y 

SC
H

ED
U

LE
D

O
R 

U
N

SC
H

ED
U

LE
D 

DI
SR

U
PT

IO
N

S 
O

F 
SE

RV
IC

E 
TO

 T
H

E 
PU

BL
IC

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

TH
E 

LI
AB

IL
IT

Y
O

F 
TH

E 
CO

N
TR

AC
TO

R.
  S

M
 E

N
G

IN
EE

RI
N

G
 A

N
D 

O
W

N
ER

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

H
EL

D 
H

AR
M

LE
SS

.

3.
  A

LL
 W

AT
ER

 A
N

D 
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 S

YS
TE

M
S 

TH
AT

 A
RE

 T
O

 B
E 

PU
BL

IC
 L

IN
ES

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

ED
 IN

 A
CC

O
RD

AN
CE

 W
IT

H
 S

PE
CI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
S 

PR
EV

IO
U

SL
Y 

AP
PR

O
VE

D 
BY

 T
H

E
CI

TY
 O

F 
BE

LT
O

N
 A

N
D 

TH
E 

ST
AT

E 
O

F 
M

IS
SO

U
RI

 A
N

D 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 IN

SP
EC

TE
D 

BY
 T

H
E 

CI
TY

.
IT

 IS
 T

H
E 

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R'

S 
RE

SP
O

N
SI

BI
LI

TY
 T

O
 A

SS
U

RE
 T

H
AT

 T
H

IS
 IN

SP
EC

TI
O

N
 O

CC
U

RS
.

4.
  L

O
CA

TI
O

N
S 

SH
O

W
N

 F
O

R 
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

W
AT

ER
 L

IN
ES

 A
RE

 A
PP

RO
XI

M
AT

E.
   

VA
RI

AT
IO

N
S

M
AY

 B
E 

M
AD

E,
 W

IT
H

 A
PP

RO
VA

L 
O

F 
TH

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
R,

 T
O

 A
VO

ID
 C

O
N

FL
IC

TS
.

5.
  C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

TO
 IN

ST
AL

L 
TR

AC
IN

G
 T

AP
E 

AL
O

N
G

 A
LL

 N
O

N
-M

ET
AL

LI
C 

W
AT

ER
 M

AI
N

S
AN

D 
SE

RV
IC

E 
LI

N
ES

 P
ER

 S
PE

CI
FI

CA
TI

O
N

S.

6.
 C

O
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

SH
AL

L 
EX

PO
SE

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 A
T 

LO
CA

TI
O

N
S 

O
F 

PO
SS

IB
LE

CO
N

FL
IC

T 
AN

D 
PO

IN
TS

 O
F 

CO
N

N
EC

TI
O

N
 P

RI
O

R 
TO

 A
N

Y 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 O
F 

N
EW

U
TI

LI
TI

ES
.

7.
 W

AT
ER

 L
IN

ES
 S

H
AL

L 
H

AV
E 

A 
M

IN
IM

U
M

 C
O

VE
R 

O
F 

42
 IN

CH
ES

. 
 A

LL
 V

AL
VE

S 
O

N
 M

AI
N

S
AN

D 
FI

RE
 H

YD
RA

N
T 

LE
AD

S 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 W

IT
H

 V
AL

VE
 B

O
X 

AS
SE

M
BL

IE
S.

  T
H

E 
SI

ZE
 O

F 
VA

LV
E

BO
X 

AS
SE

M
BL

Y 
TO

 B
E 

IN
ST

AL
LE

D 
IS

 D
ET

ER
M

IN
ED

 B
Y 

TH
E 

TY
PE

 A
N

D 
SI

ZE
 O

F 
VA

LV
E.

VA
LV

E 
BO

X 
CA

PS
 S

H
AL

L 
H

AV
E 

TH
E 

W
O

RD
 "

W
AT

ER
".

8.
 A

 M
IN

IM
U

M
 H

O
RI

ZO
N

TA
L 

DI
ST

AN
CE

 O
F 

10
 F

EE
T 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 M
AI

N
TA

IN
ED

 B
ET

W
EE

N
PA

RA
LL

EL
 W

AT
ER

 A
N

D 
SA

N
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 L

IN
ES

. 
 W

H
EN

 IT
 IS

 N
EC

ES
SA

RY
 F

O
R 

AN
Y 

W
AT

ER
LI

N
E 

TO
 C

RO
SS

 A
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER
 L

IN
E,

 T
H

E 
SE

W
ER

 L
IN

E 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 C

O
N

ST
RU

CT
ED

 P
ER

M
DN

R 
RE

Q
U

IR
EM

EN
TS

9.
 IN

ST
AL

L 
3/

4"
 T

YP
E 

"K
" 

CO
PP

ER
 F

RO
M

 T
H

E 
M

AI
N

 T
O

 T
H

E 
M

ET
ER

AN
D 

FR
O

M
 T

H
E 

M
ET

ER
TO

 1
0'

 IN
SI

DE
 L

O
T 

IN
ST

AL
L 

EI
TH

ER
 T

YP
E 

"K
" 

O
R 

PO
LY

ET
H

YL
EN

E 
PL

AS
TI

C 
TU

BI
N

G
 (

PE
36

08
) 

TO
 S

TO
P 

AN
D 

W
AS

TE
 V

AL
VE

 IN
SI

DE
 B

U
IL

DI
N

G
.

20
C

20
A

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B 20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B20

B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

EX
IS

TI
N

G
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

AN
IT

AR
Y 

SE
W

ER

20
B20
B20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B 20

B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

20
B

15
'

U
/E

10
'

W
/E

RE
M

O
VE

 E
XI

ST
IN

G
 M

ET
ER

 V
AU

LT

15
'

U
/E

• 

I 

I 

/i 
I 

I 

/ ,) 

z - ~ - ~ 

029



1081

1085

1083

1071

10
72

107
3

10
73

10
74

1075

1076

10
76

10
71

1078

1079

10
79

1080

10
80

1081
1080

1078

10
77

1079

10
76

1075

1074

1073

10
72

1072

1071

10
72 10
73

1074

1074
1075

1076

1075

1077

1076

1079

1081

1078

1081

10
73

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

SANSANSAN

75

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

EL
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E 

40
' R

O
W

W
AT

ER

SAN SAN SAN

RIM = 1085.09

(T
O

 B
E 

VA
CA

TE
D)

1050.00

1055.00

1055

1065.00

1065.00

1075.00

1080.00

1085.00

1060.00

1060.0

1070.00

107
0.0

0

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

WATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATER

MARKEY PARKWAY

20' BL SETBACK

1072

1076
1078

1080

1082

108

10
80

10
78

1076

1074

1076

1066

6 7 8

91011

15

16

17

15
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

WATERWATERWATER

1088
1086

1084

1080

107410
74

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

1070

1070

1064

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

WATER WATER

25' BL SETBACK

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83848586
87

88
89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

10

FFE 1077.00

FFE 1076.00

FFE 1078.50

FFE 1081.50

FFE 1081.50 FFE 1081.00

FFE 1075.00

FFE 1080.00

FFE 1078.00

FFE 1085.00

FFE 1077.00

FFE 1076.00

FFE 1075.00

FFE 1074.00

FFE 1073.00
FFE 1073.00

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

FLO
OD PLA

IN

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N

TW
 1

06
6.

00

BW
 1

06
0.

00

TW
 1

06
6.

00

BW
 1

06
0.

00

TW
 1

06
8.

00

BW
 1

06
3.

00

TW 1066.00
BW 1061.00

TW 1072.00
BW 1067.00

TW
 1

06
4.

00

BW
 1

05
9.

00

TW
 1

06
4.

00

BW
 1

05
8.

00

FFE 1073.00

FFE 1073.00

FG 1074.50

FG 1073.00

FG 1070.50

FG 1070.50

FG 1069.00

FG 1073.00

FG 1080.50

FG 1080.50

40
' S

TR
EA

M B
UF

FE
R

40
' S

TR
EA

M
 B

U
FF

ER

0
30

'
15

'

1"
=3

0'

C
5.

0
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 P
LA

N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TSRE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER
 L

IN
E 

F

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

PO
N

D 
O

VE
RF

LO
W

 R
O

U
TE

PO
N

D 
O

VE
RF

LO
W

 R
O

U
TE

N
O

TE
TH

ER
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 N
O

 C
LE

AR
IN

G
, 

G
RA

DI
N

G
, 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 O

R 
DI

ST
U

RB
AN

CE
 O

F
VE

G
ET

AT
IO

N
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

ST
RE

AM
 B

U
FF

ER
. 

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 F
EN

CI
N

G
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 P
LA

CE
D

TO
 D

EL
IN

EA
TE

 B
U

FF
ER

 A
N

D 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 M

AI
N

TA
IN

ED
 T

H
RO

U
G

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 O

F
TH

E 
PR

O
JE

CT
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
RE

TA
IN

IN
G

W
AL

L 
W

IT
H

 R
AI

LI
N

G

N
O

TE
:

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

RE
SP

O
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
PR

O
VI

DI
N

G
 M

O
DU

LA
R

BL
O

CK
 R

ET
AI

N
IN

G
 W

AL
L 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

RA
W

IN
G

S
SE

AL
ED

 B
Y 

A 
M

IS
SO

U
RI

 S
TA

TE
 P

RO
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N
TH

IS
 S

U
BJ

EC
T 

TR
AC

T 
LI

ES
 W

IT
H

 T
H

E 
10

0
YE

AR
 F

LO
O

D 
PL

AI
N

 Z
O

N
E 

A 
AC

CO
RD

IN
G

TO
 M

AP
 N

U
M

BE
R 

29
03

7C
00

10
F 

DA
TE

D
JA

N
U

AR
Y 

2,
 2

01
3

IN
ST

AL
L 

4'
X4

' I
N

LE
T 

W
IT

H
O

PE
N

IN
G

S 
O

N
 4

 S
ID

ES
RI

M
 =

 1
07

1.
00

F/
L 

10
65

.6
7,

 F
IE

LD
 V

ER
IF

Y
N

14
68

44
0.

18
E5

11
43

80
.2

1

N
O

TE
EX

IS
TI

N
G

 A
N

D 
PR

O
PO

SE
D 

SL
O

PE
S 

N
O

T 
TO

 E
XC

EE
D 

3:
1

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

030



1081

1085

1083

1071

10
72

107
3

10
73

10
74

1075

1076

10
76

10
71

1078

1079

10
79

1080

10
80

1081
1080

1078

10
77

1079

10
76

1075

1074

1073

10
72

1072

1071

10
72 10
73

1074

1074
1075

1076

1075

1077

1076

1079

1081

1078

1081

10
73

ASPHALT
SURFACE

OHP

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

SANSANSANSANSANSANSANSAN

3.10

M
AR

KE
Y 

M
EA

DO
W

, 
LO

TS
 1

 T
H

RU
 3

3

RIM = 1065.75

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

EL
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E 

40
' R

O
W

SAN SAN

RIM = 1085.09

RIM =1077.49

ST
 L

O
UI

S 
&

 S
AN

TA
 F

E 
RA

IL
RO

AD
 

ATION

AN
SAN

S

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

S

CONC FLUME

(T
O

 B
E 

VA
CA

TE
D)

1050.00

1055.00

1055.00

1065.00

1065.00

1075.00

10
80

.0
0

1080.00

1085.00

1060.00

1060.00

1070.00

107
0.0

0

1070.00

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

MARKEY PARKWAY

20' BL SETBACK

1072
1076

1078

1080

1082

108
0

10
76

10
80

10
78

1076

1074

1076

1066

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

91011121314

15

16

17

15
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

SAN
SAN

1088
1086

1084

1080

107410
74

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

1070

1070

1064

SAN
SAN

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

25' BL SETBACK

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83848586
87

88
89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

FLO
OD PLAIN

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N

N
O

N
CA

PT
U

RE
D

AR
EA

 1

PO
N

D
AR

EA
 1

PO
N

D
AR

EA
 2

PO
N

D
AR

EA
 3

N
O

N
CA

PT
U

RE
D

AR
EA

 2

PO
N

D
AR

EA
 4

40
' S

TR
EA

M B
UF

FE
R

40
' S

TR
EA

M
 B

U
FF

ER

0
40

'
20

'

1"
=4

0'

C
5.

1
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

IM
P

E
R

V
IO

U
S

 A
R

E
A

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TSRE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

AR
EA

TO
TA

L 
AC

TO
TA

L 
IM

PE
RV

IO
U

S 
AR

EA
 (

SF
) 

PE
RV

IO
U

S 
AR

EA
 (

SF
)

N
O

N
 C

AP
TU

RE
D 

1
3.

33
ac

 (
14

5,
05

4s
f)

15
,0

66
12

9,
98

8
N

O
N

 C
AP

TU
RE

D 
2

0.
44

ac
 (

19
,1

66
sf

)
4,

46
4

14
,7

02
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 1
1.

96
ac

 (
85

,3
77

sf
)

52
,5

10
32

,8
67

PO
N

D 
AR

EA
 2

2.
97

ac
 (

12
9,

37
3s

f)
84

,8
76

44
,4

97
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 3
1.

33
ac

 (
57

,9
34

sf
)

25
,0

72
32

,8
62

PO
N

D 
AR

EA
 4

1.
08

ac
 (

47
,0

44
sf

)
24

92
5

22
,1

19
M

AI
N

TE
N

AN
CE

 A
CC

ES
S 

RO
U

TE
S

M
AX

IM
U

M
 W

AT
ER

 S
U

RF
AC

E 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N

 (
M

W
SE

)
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 1
10

65
.8

0
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 2
10

70
.3

5
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 3
10

73
.0

3
PO

N
D 

AR
EA

 4
10

72
.7

7

M
W

SE

M
W

SE
M

W
SE

M
W

SE

__ ; __ --- --- ---- --- i 

\ 

\ 
\ 

I 
I 
I 

\ 

\ 

\ 
I 
\ 

I 
I 
I 
I 

' \ 
\ 
I 

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

031



1081

1085

1083

1071

10
72

107
3

10
73

10
74

1075

1076

10
76

10
71

1078

1079

10
79

1080

10
80

1081
1080

1078

10
77

1079

10
76

1075

1074

1073

10
72

1072

1071

10
72 10
73

1074

1074
1075

1076

1075

1077

1076

1079

1081

1078

1081

10
73

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

SANSANSAN

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

EL
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E 

40
' R

O
W

W
AT

ER

SAN SAN SAN

RIM = 1085.09

(T
O

 B
E 

VA
CA

TE
D)

1050.00

1055.00

1055

1065.00

1065.00

5.00

1080.00

1085.00

1060.00

1060.0

1070.00

107
0.0

0

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

WATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATER

MARKEY PARKWAY

20' BL SETBACK

1072

1076
1078

1080

1082

108

10
80

10
78

1076

1074

1076

1066

6 7 8

91011

15

16

17

15
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

WATERWATERWATER

1088
1086

1084

1080

107410
74

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN

1070

1070

1064

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

WATER WATER

25' BL SETBACK

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83848586
87

88
89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

10

FFE 1077.00

FFE 1076.00

FFE 1078.50

FFE 1081.50

FFE 1081.50 FFE 1081.00

FFE 1075.00

FFE 1080.00

FFE 1078.00

FFE 1085.00

FFE 1077.00

FFE 1076.00

FFE 1075.00

FFE 1074.00

FFE 1073.00
FFE 1073.00

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

FLO
OD PLAIN

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N

TW
 1

06
6.

00

BW
 1

06
0.

00

TW
 1

06
6.

00

BW
 1

06
0.

00

TW
 1

06
8.

00

BW
 1

06
3.

00

TW 1066.00
BW 1061.00

TW 1072.00
BW 1067.00

TW
 1

06
4.

00

BW
 1

05
9.

00

TW
 1

06
4.

00

BW
 1

05
8.

00

FFE 1073.00

FFE 1073.00

FG 1074.50

FG 1073.00

FG 1070.50

FG 1070.50

FG 1069.00

FG 1073.00

FG 1080.50

FG 1080.50

40
' S

TR
EA

M B
UF

FE
R

40
' S

TR
EA

M
 B

U
FF

ER

0
30

'
15

'

1"
=3

0'

C
5.

2
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

O
V

E
R

FL
O

W
 P

LA
N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TSRE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER
 L

IN
E 

F

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

N
O

TE
TH

ER
E 

SH
AL

L 
BE

 N
O

 C
LE

AR
IN

G
, 

G
RA

DI
N

G
, 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 O

R 
DI

ST
U

RB
AN

CE
 O

F
VE

G
ET

AT
IO

N
 W

IT
H

IN
 T

H
E 

ST
RE

AM
 B

U
FF

ER
. 

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 F
EN

CI
N

G
 S

H
AL

L 
BE

 P
LA

CE
D

TO
 D

EL
IN

EA
TE

 B
U

FF
ER

 A
N

D 
SH

AL
L 

BE
 M

AI
N

TA
IN

ED
 T

H
RO

U
G

H
O

U
T 

TH
E 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 O

F
TH

E 
PR

O
JE

CT
.

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
RE

TA
IN

IN
G

W
AL

L 
W

IT
H

 R
AI

LI
N

G

N
O

TE
:

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

RE
SP

O
N

SI
BL

E 
FO

R 
PR

O
VI

DI
N

G
 M

O
DU

LA
R

BL
O

CK
 R

ET
AI

N
IN

G
 W

AL
L 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 D

RA
W

IN
G

S
SE

AL
ED

 B
Y 

A 
M

IS
SO

U
RI

 S
TA

TE
 P

RO
FE

SS
IO

N
AL

 E
N

G
IN

EE
R

10'

30'

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
 O

VE
RF

LO
W

 C
H

AN
N

EL
 2

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
O

VE
RF

LO
W

 C
H

AN
N

EL
 1

PO
N

D 
1 

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
 S

PI
LL

W
AY

Q
10

0 =
 2

3.
58

cf
s

20
' W

ID
TH

1.
5'

 D
EP

TH

20'

O
VE

RF
LO

W
 D

RO
P 

CU
RB

 IN
LE

T
4'

X4
' I

N
LE

T 
W

IT
H

 O
PE

N
IN

G
S 

O
N

 4
 S

ID
ES

RI
M

 =
 1

07
1.

00
CA

PA
CI

TY
 =

 2
5c

fs

PO
N

D 
2 

EM
ER

G
EN

CY
 S

PI
LL

W
AY

Q
10

0 =
 5

1.
38

cf
s

30
' W

ID
TH

1.
5'

 D
EP

TH
PO

N
D 

3 
EM

ER
G

EN
CY

 S
PI

LL
W

AY
Q

10
0 =

 1
5.

32
cf

s
10

' W
ID

TH
1.

5'
 D

EP
TH

~ 

(I) 

(I) 

.r: 
(/J 

~ 8 s;i 

§ ~ ~ 

032



SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

SAN

WAT
ER

WAT
ER

W

WATER

WATER

WATER

34
35

36
37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

5 71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84
85

10
50

10
60

10
70

10
80

10
90

11
00

11
10

10
50

10
60

10
70

10
80

10
90

11
00

11
10

5+
60

5+
80

6+
00

6+
20

6+
40

6+
60

6+
80

7+
00

7+
20

7+
40

7+
60

7+
80

8+
00

8+
20

8+
40

8+
60

8+
80

9+
00

9+
20

9+
40

9+
60

9+
80

10
+0

0

20
0.

00
' V

C
K 

= 
51

.8
18

A.
D.

=0
.0

4

PV
I E

LE
V 

= 
10

70
.0

0
PV

I S
TA

 =
 6

+6
8.

00

BVCS : 5+68.00
BVCE : 1072.32

EVCE : 1071.54
EVCS : 7+68.00

LO
W

 P
O

IN
T 

EL
EV

 =
 1

07
0.

93
LO

W
 P

O
IN

T 
ST

A 
= 

6+
87

.9
8

ST
A 

7+
00

, 
AU

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

DS
 D

R
BE

G
IN

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

 M
AT

CH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
EL

EV
 1

07
1.

00
, 

FI
EL

D 
VE

RI
FY

1072.6

1072.0

1072.0

1071.5

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.0

1071.1

1071.6

1072.0

1072.0

1072.4

1072.5

1072.7

1073.0

1073.2

1073.8

1074.0

1074.1

1074.3

1074.7

1075.0

1072.58

1072.00

1072.00

1071.48

1071.03

1071.07

1071.00

1071.00

1071.00

1071.00

1071.00

1071.30

1071.10

1071.62

1072.00

1072.03

1072.39

1072.81

1072.70

1073.00

1073.21

1073.81

1074.00

1074.35

1074.33

1074.70

1075.00

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
G

RA
DE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 G

RA
DE

1.
54

%

0
20

'
10

'

1"
=2

0'

C
6.

0
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

RE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER
 L

IN
E 

F

A
U

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

D
S

 D
R

P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
FI

LE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

ST
A 

7+
00

.0
0,

 A
U

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

DS
 D

R
BE

G
IN

 C
O

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

M
AT

CH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 1

07
1.

00
, 

FI
EL

D 
VE

RI
FY

2

28'

1

CU
RV

E 
N

O
.

P.
I.

 S
TA

 7
+5

0.
17

Δ 
= 

34
°4

5'
 4

3"
R 

= 
19

8.
00

'
T 

= 
17

4.
23

'
L 

= 
25

.2
0'

1

CU
RV

E 
N

O
.

P.
I.

 S
TA

 8
+6

9.
91

Δ 
= 

53
°2

9'
 5

1"
R 

= 
50

.0
0'

T 
= 

61
.9

8'
L 

= 
12

0.
13

'

2

N
O

TE
PR

IV
AT

E 
ST

RE
ET

S 
SH

AL
L 

CO
N

FO
RM

 T
O

 C
IT

Y
O

F 
BE

LT
O

N
 S

PE
CI

FI
CA

TI
O

N
 A

N
D 

ST
AN

DA
RD

DE
TA

IL
S. I I 

\ 1.111111 .111111 1111111 

I 1111 111 I 11111 

I 11111 ,111111 I 11111 

I 'Ill 11 I I 1 1 11 

1.111111 .Ill l 1 1111111 

I 1111 Ill I I I 11111 

I 11111 .Ill , I I 11111 

I 1111 Ill I I 11111 

I II 
I II 

~ 
N 

I 
I 

I Ill 
Ill 

111111 

I 1111
1 

I 
I 

111111 

I 1111
1 

I I 111111 

I 1 1 11 

r;, 

I I .11111 

I 1
1

11 

111111 

111111 

I I 11111 

1111
1 

I I 111111 

11111 

I I 111111 

1111 

111111 

11111 

I I 111111 

11111 

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

033



OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

OHP

8WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

WATER

4

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

3

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

10
50

10
60

10
70

10
80

10
90

11
00

11
10

10
50

10
60

10
70

10
80

10
90

11
00

11
10

10
+0

0
10

+2
0

10
+4

0
10

+6
0

10
+8

0
11

+0
0

11
+2

0
11

+4
0

11
+6

0
11

+8
0

12
+0

0
12

+2
0

12
+4

0
12

+6
0

12
+8

0
13

+0
0

13
+2

0
13

+4
0

13
+6

0
13

+8
0

14
+0

0
14

+2
0

14
+4

01
4+

50

1.
95

%

1.
54

%

50
.0

3'
 V

C
K 

= 
12

2.
01

8
A.

D.
=0

.0
0

PV
I E

LE
V 

= 
10

80
.7

3
PV

I S
TA

 =
 1

3+
63

.1
4

BVCS : 13+38.13
BVCE : 1080.35

EVCE : 1081.22
EVCS : 13+88.16

LO
W

 P
O

IN
T 

EL
EV

 =
 1

08
0.

35
LO

W
 P

O
IN

T 
ST

A 
= 

13
+3

8.
13

ST
A 

 1
3+

78
.1

6,
 A

U
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

EN
D 

CO
N

ST
RU

CT
IO

N
 M

AT
CH

 E
LE

VA
TI

O
N

EL
EV

 1
08

0.
36

, 
FI

EL
D 

VE
RI

FY

1075.0

1075.1

1075.6

1075.9

1076.0

1076.2

1076.6

1077.0

1077.1

1077.6

1077.9

1078.0

1078.0

1078.4

1078.6

1078.8

1078.9

1078.9

1079.0

1079.4

1079.8

1080.0

1080.0

1080.0

1081.2

1082.1

1075.00

1075.10

1075.61

1075.90

1076.00

1076.17

1076.58

1076.98

1077.07

1077.44

1077.91

1078.00

1078.00

1078.39

1078.64

1078.99

1078.87

1078.92

1078.99

1079.38

1079.80

1080.54

1080.00

1080.00

1081.19

1082.13

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
G

RA
DE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 G

RA
DE

0
20

'
10

'

1"
=2

0'

C
7.

0
C

iv
il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

RE E NI GNE

L
A

N
OI

S
S

E
F

O
RP


































R TSIGE

DERE

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
ST

O
RM

 S
EW

ER
 L

IN
E 

F

A
U

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

D
S

 D
R

P
LA

N
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
FI

LE

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 S

TO
RM

 S
EW

ER

ST
A 

13
+7

8.
16

, 
AU

TU
M

N
 W

O
O

DS
 D

R
EN

D 
CO

N
ST

RU
CT

IO
N

M
AT

CH
 E

LE
VA

TI
O

N
 1

07
1.

00
, 

FI
EL

D 
VE

RI
FY

4

28'

3

CU
RV

E 
N

O
.

P.
I.

 S
TA

 1
0+

40
.5

6
Δ 

= 
6°

39
' 4

4"
R 

= 
50

2.
00

'
T 

= 
31

.1
7'

L 
= 

58
.3

7'

3

CU
RV

E 
N

O
.

P.
I.

 S
TA

 1
1+

84
.7

6
Δ 

= 
8°

24
' 1

0"
R 

= 
49

8.
00

'
T 

= 
36

.5
8'

L 
= 

73
.0

4'

4

I I 

034



1081

1085

1083

1071

10
72

107
3

10
73

10
74

1075

1076

10
76

10
71

1078

1079

10
79

1080

10
80

1081
1080

1078

10
77

1079

10
76

1075

1074

1073

10
72

1072

1071

10
72 10
73

1074

1074
1075

1076

1075

1077

1076

1079

1081

1078

1081

10
73

T
E

OHP

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

SANSANSANSANSANSANSANSAN

65.75

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 B

EL
TO

N
 A

VE
N

U
E 

40
' R

O
W

SAN SAN

RIM = 1085.09

RIM =1077.49

ST
 L

O
UI

S 
&

 S
AN

TA
 F

E 
RA

IL
RO

AD
 

AN

S

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

CONC FLUME

(T
O

 B
E 

VA
CA

TE
D)

1050.00

1055.00

1055.00

1065.00

1065.00

1075.00

10
80

.0
0

1080.00

1085.00

1060.00

1060.00

1070.00

107
0.0

0

1070.00

OHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHPOHP

WATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATER
WATERWATERWATERWATERWATERWATER

MARKEY PARKWAY

20' BL SETBACK

1072

1076
1078

1080

1082

108
0

10
76

10
80

10
78

1076

1074

1076

1066

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

91011121314

15

16

17

15
' B

L 
SE

TB
AC

K

SAN
S

WATERWATERWATERWATERWATER

1088
1086

1084

1080

107410
74

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SA
N

SAN
SAN

SAN
SAN

SAN

1070

1070

1064

SAN
SAN

SAN

SA
N

SA
N

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
ATER

W
AT

ER
W

AT
ER

W
AT

ER

W
AT

ER

WATER

25' BL SETBACK

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56
57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81
82

83848586
87

88
89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

AU
TU

M
N 

W
O

O
DS

 D
R

AU
TU

M
N

 W
O

O
DS

 D
R

FLO
OD PLAIN

FL
O

O
D 

PL
AI

N
40

' S
TR

EA
M B

UF
FE

R

40
' S

TR
EA

M
 B

U
FF

ER

TCE TI
H

C
R

A
E

P
ACSDNAL

G
AR
R
ET
T

O
C
H
S

N
U
M
BE
R

LA
-2
00
80
00
58
7

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 N

O
TE

S

CO
N

TR
AC

TO
R 

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
 T

O
 L

O
CA

TE
 A

LL
 U

TI
LI

TI
ES

 B
EF

O
RE

 IN
ST

AL
LA

TI
O

N
 T

O
 B

EG
IN

.

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

ve
ri

fy
 a

ll 
la

nd
sc

ap
e 

m
at

er
ia

l q
ua

nt
it

ie
s 

an
d 

sh
al

l r
ep

or
t 

an
y 

di
sc

re
pa

nc
ie

s
to

 t
he

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 p
ri

or
 t

o 
in

st
al

la
ti

on
.

N
o 

pl
an

t 
m

at
er

ia
l s

ub
st

it
ut

io
ns

 a
re

 a
llo

w
ed

 w
it

ho
ut

 L
an

ds
ca

pe
 A

rc
hi

te
ct

 o
r 

O
w

ne
rs

ap
pr

ov
al

.

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

gu
ar

an
te

e 
al

l l
an

ds
ca

pe
 w

or
k 

an
d 

pl
an

t 
m

at
er

ia
l f

or
 a

 p
er

io
d 

of
 o

ne
 y

ea
r

fr
om

 d
at

e 
of

 a
cc

ep
ta

nc
e 

of
 t

he
 w

or
k 

by
 t

he
 O

w
ne

r.
  A

ny
 p

la
nt

 m
at

er
ia

l w
hi

ch
 d

ie
s 

du
ri

ng
th

e 
on

e 
ye

ar
 g

ua
ra

nt
ee

 p
er

io
d 

sh
al

l b
e 

re
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 d

ur
in

g 
no

rm
al

 p
la

nt
in

g
se

as
on

s.

Co
nt

ra
ct

or
 s

ha
ll 

be
 r

es
po

ns
ib

le
 f

or
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
pl

an
ts

 u
nt

il 
co

m
pl

et
io

n 
of

 t
he

jo
b 

an
d 

ac
ce

pt
an

ce
 b

y 
th

e 
O

w
ne

r.

Al
l p

la
nt

 m
at

er
ia

l s
ha

ll 
be

 s
pe

ci
m

en
 q

ua
lit

y 
st

oc
k 

as
 d

et
er

m
in

ed
 in

 t
he

 "
Am

er
ic

an
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

Fo
r 

N
ur

se
ry

 S
to

ck
" 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
by

 T
he

 A
m

er
ic

an
 A

ss
oc

ia
ti

on
 o

f 
N

ur
se

ry
m

an
, 

fr
ee

 o
f 

pl
an

t
di

se
as

es
 a

nd
 p

es
t,

 o
f 

ty
pi

ca
l g

ro
w

th
 o

f 
th

e 
sp

ec
ie

s 
an

d 
ha

vi
ng

 a
 h

ea
lt

hy
, 

no
rm

al
 r

oo
t

sy
st

em
.

Si
ze

s 
in

di
ca

te
d 

on
 t

he
 p

la
nt

 li
st

 a
re

 t
he

 m
in

im
um

, 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le

 s
iz

e.
  I

n 
no

 c
as

e 
w

ill
 s

iz
es

 le
ss

th
an

 s
pe

ci
fi

ed
 b

e 
ac

ce
pt

ed
.

Al
l s

hr
ub

 b
ed

s 
w

it
hi

n 
la

w
n 

ar
ea

s 
to

 r
ec

ei
ve

 a
 m

an
ic

ur
ed

 e
dg

e.

Al
l s

hr
ub

 b
ed

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
m

ul
ch

ed
 w

it
h 

3"
 t

hi
ck

 W
as

he
d 

st
on

e 
or

 B
ri

ck
 C

hi
ps

Al
l s

od
 a

re
as

 t
o 

be
 f

er
ti

liz
ed

 &
 s

od
de

d 
w

it
h 

a 
Tu

rf
-T

yp
e-

Ta
ll 

Fe
sc

ue
 s

ee
d 

bl
en

d.

Al
l s

ee
d 

ar
ea

s 
sh

al
l b

e 
hy

dr
o-

se
ed

ed
 w

it
h 

a 
Tu

rf
-T

yp
e-

Ta
ll 

Fe
sc

ue
 s

ee
d 

bl
en

d.

0
40

'
20

'

1"
=4

0'
C

8.
0

C
iv

il

p 
e 

r 
m

 i 
t 

LA
N

D
S

C
A

P
E

 P
LA

N

SM
 E

ng
in

ee
rin

g

55
07

 H
ig

h 
M

ea
do

w
 C

irc
le

M
an

ha
tt

an
 K

an
sa

s, 
66

50
3

sm
civ

ile
ng

r@
gm

ai
l.c

om
78

5.
34

1.
97

47

Dr
aw

in
gs

 a
nd

/o
r S

pe
cif

ica
tio

ns
 a

re
 o

rig
in

al
pr

op
rie

ta
ry

 w
or

k 
an

d 
pr

op
er

ty
 o

f t
he

En
gi

ne
er

 a
nd

 in
te

nd
ed

 sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 fo

r t
hi

s
pr

oj
ec

t. 
Us

e 
of

 it
em

s c
on

ta
in

ed
 h

er
ei

n
w

ith
ou

t c
on

se
nt

 o
f t

he
 E

ng
in

ee
ris

pr
oh

ib
ite

d.
 D

ra
w

in
gs

 il
lu

st
ra

te
 b

es
t

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 th
e 

En
gi

ne
er

.  
Fi

el
d

ve
rif

ica
tio

n 
of

 a
ct

ua
l e

le
m

en
ts

, c
on

di
tio

ns
,

an
d 

di
m

en
sio

ns
 is

 re
qu

ire
d.

Re
vi

sio
ns AUTUMN WOODS PHASE 2

BELTON, MO

9 
M

A
Y

 2
02

3

1-
9-

23
 C

IT
Y 

CO
M

M
EN

TS
2-

28
-2

3 
CI

TY
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS
7-

6-
23

 C
IT

Y 
CO

M
M

EN
TS

7-
21

-2
3 

M
O

RE
 C

O
M

M
EN

TS

LA
N

DS
CA

PE
 D

AT
A:

M
AI

N
 L

O
O

P 
RO

AD
 &

 E
AS

T 
PR

IV
AT

E 
DR

 =
 1

,5
35

'
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

1 
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

 /
 3

0'
=

51
 B

O
TH

 S
ID

ES
 =

 1
02

PR
O

VI
DE

D
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

S
=

53
O

RN
AM

EN
TA

L
=

7
TO

TA
L

=
60

M
AR

KE
Y 

PA
RK

W
AY

=
79

0'
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

20
' B

U
FF

ER
 O

PT
IO

N
 B

1 
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

 /
 6

0'
=

13
3 

O
RN

AM
EN

TA
L/

10
0'

=
24

4 
SH

RU
BS

/1
00

'
=

32

PR
O

VI
DE

D
SH

AD
E 

TR
EE

S
=

13
O

RN
AM

EN
TA

L
=

24
SH

RU
BS

=
75

IN
TE

RI
O

R 
PL

AN
TI

N
G

RE
Q

U
IR

ED
0.

75
 T

RE
E 

/ 
U

N
IT

=
75

PR
O

VI
DE

D
=

54
,2

72
sf

 O
F 

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

RE
ES

 T
O

RE
M

AI
N

 N
W

 C
O

RN
ER

 O
F 

SI
TE

.

LA
N

DS
CA

PI
N

G
 A

RO
U

N
D 

DE
TE

N
TI

O
N

 =
 1

,8
26

'
RE

Q
U

IR
ED

SH
AD

E 
TR

EE
S 

50
' S

PA
CI

N
G

 M
AX

O
RN

AM
EN

TA
L 

30
' S

PA
CI

N
G

 M
AX

EV
ER

G
RE

EN
 3

0'
 S

PA
CI

N
G

 M
AX

N
O

TE
:

AL
L 

PR
O

PO
SE

D 
LA

N
DS

CA
PI

N
G

 S
H

AL
L 

BE
 IN

ST
AL

LE
D 

PR
IO

R 
TO

 T
H

E 
IS

SU
AN

CE
O

F 
TH

E 
FI

N
AL

 C
ER

TI
FI

CA
TE

 O
F 

O
CC

U
PA

N
CY

.

IR
RI

G
AT

IO
N

 D
ES

IG
N

 T
O

 B
E 

SU
BM

IT
TE

D 
TO

CI
TY

 S
EP

AR
AT

EL
Y 

FO
R 

AP
PR

O
VA

L

PH
AS

E 
1

PH
AS

E 
2

PH
AS

E 
1

PH
AS

E 
2

O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

 D
AT

A
TO

TA
L 

SI
TE

47
9,

50
2.

83
 S

F 
(1

1.
00

8 
ac

)
CU

RR
EN

T 
ZO

N
IN

G
R-

3 
M

U
LT

I/
TR

I/
Q

U
AD

 P
LE

X
TO

TA
L 

BU
IL

DI
N

G
S

75
,3

46
sf

DR
IV

EW
AY

S
30

,2
36

sf
PR

IV
AT

E 
ST

RE
ET

44
,4

47
sf

TO
TA

L
15

0,
02

9s
f

O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

32
9,

47
3s

f 
= 

69
%

EX
IS

TI
N

G
 T

RE
ES

 T
O

 R
EM

AI
N

"R
ed

 T
op

" 
Bl

ue
gr

as
s 

se
ed

 m
ix

 8
-1

2l
bs

 p
er

 a
cr

e
36

,0
59

sf

AM
O

U
N

T
TY

PE

Co
m

m
on

 N
am

e
Q

ua
nt

it
y 

Sy
m

bo
l

 T
re

e 
Li

st
Sp

ac
in

g
Bo

ta
ni

ca
l N

am
e

Si
ze

Co
nd

it
io

n

BB
6'

 h
gt

Ju
ni

pe
ru

s 
vi

rg
in

ia
na

As
 S

ho
w

n
22

Ea
st

er
n 

Re
d 

Ce
da

r

G
ol

de
n 

Ra
in

tr
ee

17 19

As
 S

ho
w

n

As
 S

ho
w

n

Ko
el

re
ut

er
ia

 P
an

ic
ul

at
a

1 
1/

2"
ca

l

1 
1/

2"
ca

l
BB BB

Ac
er

 R
ub

ru
m

 'O
ct

ob
er

 G
lo

ry
'

BB
As

 S
ho

w
n

O
ct

ob
er

 G
lo

ry
 M

ap
le

54

Su
pe

rf
or

m
 N

or
w

ay
 M

ap
le

40
As

 S
ho

w
n

Ac
er

 P
la

ta
no

id
es

 'S
up

er
fo

rm
'

BB

42
Sk

yl
in

e 
H

on
ey

lo
cu

st
As

 S
ho

w
n

BB
G

le
di

ts
ia

 T
ri

ac
an

th
os

 'S
ky

lin
e'

BB
1 

1/
2"

ca
l

Ac
er

 G
in

na
la

 'F
la

m
e'

As
 S

ho
w

n
21

Am
ur

 M
ap

le

Pr
ai

ri
ef

ir
e 

Cr
ab

ap
pl

e
M

al
us

 S
p.

 'P
ri

ar
ie

fi
re

'

2.
5"

 c
al

2.
5"

 c
al

2"
 c

al

Q
ua

nt
it

y 
Sy

m
bo

l
Co

m
m

on
 N

am
e

Bo
ta

ni
ca

l N
am

e
Si

ze
Sp

ac
in

g
Co

nd
it

io
n

Co
nt

.
3 

1/
2'

o.
c.

18
"-

24
"s

p.
Eu

on
ym

us
 A

la
tu

s 
'C

om
pa

ct
us

'
Dw

ar
f 

W
in

ge
d 

Eu
on

ym
us

15

Ju
ni

pe
ru

s 
Ch

in
en

si
s 

'S
ea

gr
ee

n'
15

Se
ag

re
en

 J
un

ip
er

18
"-

24
"s

p.
4'

o.
c.

Co
nt

.

Co
nt

.
3'

o.
c.

3 
ga

l.
M

is
ca

nt
ho

s 
Si

ne
ns

is
 'M

or
ni

ng
 L

ig
ht

'

Sh
ru

b 
Li

st

Fe
at

he
r 

Re
ed

 G
ra

ss
34

0
'K

ar
l F

oe
rs

te
r'

Co
nt

.
2'

o.
c.

3 
ga

l.
M

or
ni

ng
 L

ig
ht

 M
ai

de
n 

G
ra

ss
15

Tu
rf

-T
yp

e-
Ta

ll 
Fe

sc
ue

 s
ee

d 
bl

en
d 

8-
12

lb
s 

pe
r 

ac
re

48
,6

20
sf

SE
ED

Cl) 

Cl) 

.c 
Cl) 

035



BUILDING CONTRACTOR/HOME OWNER
TO REVIEW AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS,
SPECS, AND CONNECTIONS BEFORE
CONSTRUCTION BEGINS.

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM CODE:  SEC.2701
MECHANICAL SYSTEM CODE: SEC.2801
PLUMBING SYSTEM CODE:   SEC.2901

To the best of my knowledge these plans are drawn to
comply with owner's and/ or builder's specifications and any
changes made on them after prints are made will be done at
the owner's and / or builder's expense and responsibility.
The contractor shall verify all dimensions and enclosed
drawing.  The maker of these plans is not liable for errors
once construction has begun. While every effort has been
made in the preparation of this plan to avoid mistakes, the
maker can not guarantee against human error. The
contractor of the job must check all dimensions and other
details prior to construction and be solely responsible
thereafter.

PAGE

PLAN:

    SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

ELEVATIONS1
     AUTUMN WOODS
GENERAL PARTNERSHIP

F
R

O
S

T
 W

A
LL

 M
IN

. 3
6"

 B
E

LO
W

 G
R

A
D

E

2 
X

 1
0 

S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 J
O

IS
T

C
O

N
C

R
E

T
E

 F
LO

O
R

9'-0" FIRST FLOOR8'-0" SECOND FLOOR

S
T

U
C

C
O

LA
P

S
ID

IN
G

9'-3" PLATE LINE PORCH

10
/1

2 
R

O
O

F
 P

IT
C

H
 S

ID
E

 T
O

 S
ID

E
;

8/
12

 R
O

O
F

 P
IT

C
H

 F
R

O
N

T
 T

O
 B

A
C

K

S
T

U
C

C
O

S
T

U
C

C
O

S
T

U
C

C
O

LA
P

S
ID

IN
G

12
" 

S
O

F
F

IT
S

8"
 F

A
S

C
IA

6"
 R

A
K

E
S

B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
Q

. F
T

.
T

H
R

E
E

 U
N

IT
S

:
  E

A
C

H
 U

N
IT

:
   

 F
IR

S
T

 F
LO

O
R

 L
IV

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

:  
   

  5
94

 S
Q

. F
T

.
   

 S
E

C
O

N
D

 F
LO

O
R

 L
IV

IN
G

 A
R

E
A

:  
79

3 
S

Q
. F

T
.

   
G

A
R

A
G

E
:  

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  2
00

 S
Q

. F
T

.

O
MARKEY ROAD
BELTON, MO

11
-1

1-
21

[ 1n11 

ll_L 

/;~j['===· ======'= 
•~; • .e l'Hm111n I 

// Em! 
· 111m1111,r,r 

·ir ,/r1~---
r1/nL 111111111111111111111111 

lB±B 
111111111111111111111111 r 

;·'··.·· .. ·.·.· .. Im). 

r., ffiffil 

~:l'•,\ ... 'rn, __ 
._\ I ++ 
\\. __ 

n1===i11~1 
o==nc 

lJ[ 
I 11 I 

D .--11 I___JI 
IJl ::JJJ::::Jl 

036



BUILDING CONTRACTOR/HOME OWNER
TO REVIEW AND VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS,
SPECS, AND CONNECTIONS BEFORE
CONSTRUCTION BEGINS.

ELECTRICAL SYSTEM CODE:  SEC.2701
MECHANICAL SYSTEM CODE: SEC.2801
PLUMBING SYSTEM CODE:   SEC.2901

V
E

N
T

 A
TT

IC
 P

E
R

 C
O

D
E

A
LL

 B
E

D
R

O
O

M
 W

IN
D

O
W

S
 T

O
 M

E
E

T
 E

G
R

E
S

S
 R

E
Q

U
IR

E
M

E
N

T
S

To the best of my knowledge these plans are drawn to
comply with owner's and/ or builder's specifications and any
changes made on them after prints are made will be done at
the owner's and / or builder's expense and responsibility.
The contractor shall verify all dimensions and enclosed
drawing.  The maker of these plans is not liable for errors
once construction has begun. While every effort has been
made in the preparation of this plan to avoid mistakes, the
maker can not guarantee against human error. The
contractor of the job must check all dimensions and other
details prior to construction and be solely responsible
thereafter.

PAGE

PLAN:

    SCALE: 1/4" = 1'-0"

ELEVATIONS
2

B
A

C
K

R
IG

H
T

 S
ID

E

LE
F

T
 S

ID
E

     AUTUMN WOODS
GENERAL PARTNERSHIP

O
MARKEY ROAD
BELTON, MO

11
-1

1-
21

[ 1n11 
Bl 
==1 

C] 

Bl 

037



 

 
 

Bill No. 2023-21 
COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 

 
Title:    Autumn Woods – Amended Development & Maintenance Agreement  
 
Agenda Date:  August 22, 2023 
 
Presented by:  Matt Wright, Planning & Building Director  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 

• Preliminary and Final Development Plans for Autumn Woods were originally approved in 2015. 
• Amended Preliminary and Final Development Plans were submitted to the Planning Commission 

on March 7, 2023 for review and consideration. The Planning Commission recommend approval 
(4-1) of the Amended Preliminary Development Plan and approved (4-1) the Amended Final 
Development Plan. 

• On April 11, 2023, the Amended Preliminary Development Plan bill failed at the City Council 
due to concerns with limited off-street parking and the lack of enforcement of on-street parking 
that could limit emergency access throughout the development. The City Council subsequently 
tabled a decision on an Amended Development and Maintenance Agreement.  

• Based on revisions made to the Amended Preliminary and Final Development Plans, no changes 
are needed to the Amended Development and Maintenance Agreement that was presented to the 
City Council on April 11, 2023. 

 
Financial/Budget Considerations 

• As part of the amended development plans and Development Maintenance and Agreement, the 
developer has the option of going from a single master meter to each unit (101 units) having 
individual meters.  

 
Legal Considerations 

• If the revised Amended Development and Maintenance Agreement is denied, the developer is 
still allowed to proceed with the previously approved plans and the original Agreement remains 
in effect. 

 
Policy Considerations 

• There are no specific policy considerations with this development plan, however, concerns with 
past approvals should impact future code and policy changes for multi-family housing 
development site and building design standards.  

 
Staff Recommendation 

• Staff recommends approval of the Amended Development & Maintenance Agreement. 
 

INTEGRITY & DEDICATION TO SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

038



BILL NO. 2023-21              ORDINANCE NO. 2023- 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDED DEVELOPMENT AND 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE CITY OF BELTON AND AUTUMN 
WOODS DEVELOPMENT, LP FOR PUBLIC AND PRIVATE INFRASTRUCTURE 
AND SITE IMPROVEMENTS IN AUTUMN WOODS. 
 
WHEREAS, on March 7, 2023, the Planning Commission approved a Final Development Plan 
for Autumn Woods subject to approval of the Amended Preliminary Development Plan by the 
City Council for Autumn Woods, generally located at the northwest corner of W. Markey Road 
and Belton Avenue; and    
 
WHEREAS, on April 11, 2023, the Amended Preliminary Development Plan bill failed at the 
City Council due to concerns with limited off-street parking and the lack of enforcement of on-
street parking that could limit emergency access throughout the development; and  
 
WHEREAS, on April 11, 2023, the City Council tabled the Amended Development and 
Maintenance Agreement to bring forward at a later date with a revised Amended Preliminary 
Development Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, on August 1, 2023, the Planning Commission recommended approval of a revised 
Amended Preliminary Development Plan and approved a Final Development Plan; and  
 
WHEREAS, the applicant and developer of Autumn Woods, Autumn Woods Development LP, 
has signed a Development and Maintenance Agreement providing responsibilities and 
requirements for the installation of public and private infrastructure and site improvements, 
including items such as a stormwater, streets, utilities, and common amenities; and  
 
WHEREAS, City staff has reviewed the Development and Maintenance Agreement and 
determined that it meets adequate provisions for all required public and private infrastructure and 
site improvements and on-going maintenance for Autumn Woods; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes this Development and Maintenance Agreement meets the 
intent of the Unified Development Code and is in the best interest of the City to approve.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The Development and Maintenance Agreement for Autumn Woods herein 

attached and incorporated into this Ordinance as Exhibit A, is hereby accepted 
and approved.  

 
Section 2. The appropriate city officials are hereby authorized to execute same and confirm 

recordation with the Cass County Recorder of Deeds. 
 

039



Section 3. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
passage and approval. 

 
Section 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions are hereby 

repealed.  
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: August 22, 2023 
 
READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:  
 

 ______________________________ 
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
Approved this ____of ________, 2023. 
             
        ______________________________
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 

 ATTEST: 
 

 ______________________________ 
 Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
 of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON    ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS    ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the ____ day of _______, 2023, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2023-_____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City Council held 
on the ____ day of ______, 2023, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
        ______________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 

040



 

{10480 / 62691; 636355. }  

DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT   

 

 

This DEVELOPMENT AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and 

entered into as of the ______ day of _______________, 2023 by and between THE CITY OF 

BELTON, MISSOURI (the “City”) and ___________ (“Developer”). 

 

WHEREAS, Developer is the owner of certain real property located at ___________ and as 

more particularly described on Exhibit A, attached hereto (the Property), and known as the 

Autumn Woods subdivision; and 

 

WHEREAS, Developer intends to develop the Property in accordance with the Belton Municipal 

Code and Belton Unified Development Code (the “Development”); and  

 

WHEREAS, the parties desire the responsibilities of each party with respect to the construction 

and maintenance of certain infrastructure and specifically:  

 

1. On-site storm water management systems ("Storm Water Management Systems") and 

best management practices facilities   to be constructed and maintained on the 

Property( "BMP Facilities".) 

 

 2.  Developer-constructed and maintained private street (the “Private Street”.)  

 

3. The installation of a master water meter for the Development to regulate water 

usage("Water  Meter".) 

 

4. The construction of sanitary sewers for the Development ("Sanitary Sewers") 

 

(collectively the "Infrastructure") be set out in this Agreement..  

 

NOW THEREFORE, the City and Developer, in consideration of the terms, covenants and 

conditions herein set forth, hereby agree as follows:  

 

 Initial Construction.  The Storm Water Management System, BMP Facilities, Private 

Streets, distribution systems for drinking water and the Sanitary Sewers shall be 

constructed by the Developer, its successors and assigns, in accordance with the plans 

and specifications (the "Plans") approved by the City and in accordance with the Belton 

Municipal Code, the Belton Unified Development Code, the City of Belton Standards and 

Specifications, and any and all other applicable regulations in effect at the time of 

construction.  Collectively, the Belton Municipal Code, the Belton Unified Development 

Code, and the City of Belton Standards and Specifications may be referred to herein as 

the “City Code”. The drinking water master meter and any subsequent water meters 

installed per this agreement shall be installed on property dedicated as public access/ 

easement by the Developer.  All water meter work shall be performed by either the 

Developer or City as assigned in the most up-to-date Unified Development Code. All 

Exhibit A

041



 

{10480 / 62691; 636355. }  

costs, permits, and fees associated with the installation and/or removal of the meters shall 

be the responsibility of the Developer. 

1. On-Site Stormwater Management System and BMP Facilities. 

 

a. The Developer and its successors and assigns, including any homeowners and/or 

subdivision association, shall, at all times, adequately maintain the Storm Water 

Management System and the BMP facilities as approved for the development in the 

the Plans as required by the City Code, this Agreement or other applicable law.  The 

facilities to be maintained shall include all pipes and channels built to convey storm 

water to the BMP Facilities, as well as all structures, improvements and vegetation 

provided to control the quantity and quality of the storm water.  Adequate 

maintenance is herein defined as maintained in good working condition so that the 

Storm Water Management System and the BMP Facilities:1) fully and completely   

perform and function as designed; 2 )  do not adversely affect other elements of the 

overall storm water system; 3) comply with the approved plans and specifications, the 

City Code and any and all other applicable regulations.   Storm water pipes marked 

on the approved plans and specifications as “private” are to be maintained by the 

Developer.  Storm water pipes which are marked on the approved plans and 

specifications as “public” are not the responsibility of the Developer; however, the 

Developer shall take no action to cause damage or adversely affect the public systems 

and, furthermore, landowner shall continue to maintain the “private” facilities so as 

not to adversely affect the “public” facilities.  In the absence of “public” or “private” 

markings, the pipe shall be considered private.    

b. Annual Inspections.  The Developer, its successors and assigns, shall inspect the 

Storm Water Management System and the BMP Facility and submit an inspection 

report to the City’s Public Works Director annually.  The purpose of the inspection is 

to ensure safe and proper functioning of the facilities.  The inspection shall cover all 

components of the Storm Water Management System and the BMP Facility including 

but not limited to berms, outlet structure, retention/detention and pond areas, access 

roads, etc.  Deficiencies shall be noted in the inspection report together with 

Developer's plan and timeline to remedy any such deficiencies.   

c. City Authorized to Enter Property.  The Developer hereby grants its consent to the 

City to enter upon the Property, from time to time, and to inspect the Storm Water 

Management System and the BMP Facilities whenever the City deems necessary.  

The purpose of inspection is to follow up on reported deficiencies, to verify the 

annual reports submitted by Developer and/or to respond to citizen concerns or 

possible nuisance conditions.  The City shall provide the Developer, its successors 

and assigns, copies of the inspection findings and a directive to commence with 

repairs if necessary.   

d. Maintenance Schedule.  The Developer, its successors and assigns, will perform the 

work necessary to keep the Storm Water Management System and the BMP Facilities 

in good working order as appropriate.  In the event a maintenance schedule for the 

Storm Water Management System and the BMP Facilities (including sediment and 

debris removal) is outlined on the approved plans and specifications, or as part of this 

Agreement, the schedule will be followed.  In addition to the actions outlined on the 

maintenance schedule, the Developer and its successors and assigns shall take further 

042



 

{10480 / 62691; 636355. }  

action in order to keep the Storm Water Management System and the BMP Facilities 

in good working order. Developer acknowledges that following an agreed upon 

maintenance schedule, alone, will not relieve the Developer of any responsibility to 

take further actions to ensure proper operation and maintenance of the Storm Water 

Management System and the BMP Facilities. 

e. The Storm Water Infrastructure marked on the approved plans and specifications as 

private shall remain private in perpetuity 

 

 

2. Private Street.   

 

a. The Private Street will be constructed to public street standards and meet all other 

requirements as set forth in Section 36-108 of the UDC.   

b. The City shall install a standard “private street” sign at each private street connection 

to a public street at the Developer’s expense.   

c. Street lights and/or sidewalks shall be installed and maintained by Developer to a 

standard at least equal to that of public street lights and sidewalks. All maintenance 

costs shall be paid by the Developer in perpetuity. 

d. The Developer, and its successors and assigns, including any homeowners and/or 

subdivision association, shall, at all times, adequately maintain the Private Street as 

approved for the development in the approved plans and specifications.  Maintenance 

shall include snow removal and repair of street pavement and curbs and gutters of the 

Private Street, as well as maintenance and repair of street lights and sidewalks. 

e. The Private Street must be entirely self-contained within the Property and the 

development of same pursuant to approved plans and specifications.     

f. The Private Street cannot function as a private street if it is designed or planned by 

the Developer to handle traffic from one subdivision, cluster or development through 

another subdivision, cluster or development, or if the City determines the alignment 

of the Private Street will encourage “short cutting” or “detouring” from one public 

street to another.     

g. The Private Street shall remain as a private street in perpetuity.   

h. The Private Street shall be subject to a perpetual, nonexclusive public utility easement 

for the purpose of permitting above and below ground public utilities to be installed 

and maintained.   

i. No machinery, trailers, vehicles or other property may be stored or parked upon the 

Private Street except the parking of vehicles for limited periods of time, not to exceed 

48 continuous hours.  Parking shall be limited to one side of the Private Street only, at 

all times, and the Developer shall post signs to this effect in accordance with the 

Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD) version in effect.  

Enforcement of parking restrictions shall be the responsibility of the Developer.  

j. Snow and ice removal of the private street shall be performed by the Developer in an 

expeditious manner with each event to provide safe and efficient travel for residents.  

Snow and ice removal shall be performed in a manner that does not impede access to 

public infrastructure such as water line valves and fire hydrants. 

 

 

043



 

{10480 / 62691; 636355. }  

3. Public Infrastructure. 

a. All drinking water and sanitary sewer infrastructure marked public on the Plans 

will be constructed by the Developer according to the current City of Belton 

Design and Construction Manual, and maintained by the City. All service lines to 

both the drinking water infrastructure and the Sanitary sewer infrastructure are 

private in perpetuity, and shall be maintained by Developer according to the 

Belton Municipal Code and other applicable city regulations.   

b. There shall be one, six-inch drinking water meter (the "Master Meter") that will 

serve the subdivision and be installed and maintained by the City. The costs for 

the Master Meter itself will be paid by Developer along with all other permit 

costs. The City will bill the Developer each month as a typical customer for water 

and sanitary sewer usage and will be administered according to the Belton 

Municipal Code and other applicable city regulations.  

c. If the Development is subsequently subdivided into separate buildings, lots, or 

units, each building, lot, or unit shall have at least one (1) individual meter 

installed prior to recording such subdivision, though no more than one (1) 

individual meter per dwelling unit shall be permitted. Should installation of new 

meters render any existing water meter unnecessary, the developer shall promptly 

coordinate removal of the redundant meter from service with the City, and the 

Developer shall remove the setter and service pit and replace with new water line 

per the most up-to-date City Standards. 

d. The drinking water and sanitary sewer infrastructure shall not be obstructed in any 

way to inhibit or prevent maintenance of public assets. All maintenance of public 

infrastructure that requires excavation will be restored by the City according to 

the Belton Unified Development Code, the Belton Municipal Code and city and 

industry standards and practices. 

4. Building Permits.   

a. No building permits shall be issued until the Infrastructure, including the Storm 

Water Management System and BMP Facilities, the Private Street, drinking water 

and Sanitary Sewers have been installed by the Developer in accordance with 

approved Plans and all grading work completed.  In the alternative, the Developer 

may guarantee and financially secure the completion of construction of the 

Improvements by posting a bond, letter of credit or other security approved by the 

City Council in an amount equivalent to or larger than one-hundred and twenty 

percent (120%) of the projected cost of the Infrastructure at the date of the 

expiration of the guarantee. 

b. No building permits for Phase II, as delineated on the revised Preliminary 

Development Plan, shall be issued until all required infrastructure improvements 

have been completed in Phase I. Infrastructure improvements include all streets, 

sidewalks, utilities, and water quality BMPs. Additionally, all incomplete 

landscaping in Phase I, except for landscaping immediately adjacent to buildings 

still under construction, shall be installed prior to the issuance of building permits 

for Phase II. 

c. On-street parking in Phase II shall be installed concurrently with street 

infrastructure improvements and shall be completed prior to issuance of building 

permits in Phase II. 

044



 

{10480 / 62691; 636355. }  

d. The 5-foot trail and playground shall be installed prior to the issuance of building 

permits in Phase II. 

5. No Agency or Partnership.  This Agreement is not intended and shall not be construed to 

create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture or 

association as between the City and Developer, nor between the City and any officer, 

employee, contractor or representative of Developer.  No joint employment is intended or 

created by this Agreement for any purpose.  Developer agrees to so inform its employees, 

agents, contractors and subcontractors who are involved in the implementation of or 

construction under this Agreement. 

6. Failure to Maintain.  In the event the Developer, its successors and/or assigns, fails to 

maintain the storm water management/BMP facilities and/or Private Street in good 

working condition, the City will notify Developer, it successors and/or assigns, of 

deficiencies by letter.  The Developer will have ten (10) days from the date of the letter to 

respond to the City with an adequate plan to make repairs.  If adequate repairs are not 

made by Developer in a timely manner, Developer hereby consents and agrees that City 

may enter upon the Property and take whatever steps necessary to correct deficiencies 

identified in the inspection report.  There shall be a five-hundred dollar ($500.00) penalty 

for each day the Developer does not make adequate repairs.  All costs of such repairs 

shall be assessed to the Developer, its successors and/or assigns, including administrative 

costs, materials, personnel, attorneys fees and any penalties.  The assessment may be 

accomplished by placing a special assessment on the property(ies), which may be placed 

on the tax bill and collected in the same manner as ordinary taxes.  It is expressly 

understood and agreed that the City is under no obligation to routinely maintain or repair 

said facilities, and in no event shall this Agreement be construed to impose any such 

obligation on the City.   

7. Indemnification.  Developer agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the City, its 

respective employees, officials, agents, representatives and volunteers from and against 

any and all liabilities, damages, injuries (including death), property damage (including 

loss of use), claims, liens, judgments, costs, expenses, suits, actions or proceedings and 

reasonable attorney’s fees, and actual damages of any kind or nature, arising out of the 

gross negligence or willful misconduct of Developer, its employees, agents, officers, 

contractors or subcontractors, or Developer’s performance or failure to perform under the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement.  Such indemnification, hold harmless and 

defense obligation shall exclude liability arising out of acts, omissions, or the negligence 

or willful misconduct of the City.  The indemnification and defense obligations set forth 

herein shall survive the termination of this Agreement.   

8. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the state of 

Missouri.   

9. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties 

hereto.   

10. Notices.  All notices hereunder must be in writing and shall be deemed validly given if 

sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: 

CITY: 

City of Belton 

City Manager 

506 Main Street 

045



 

{10480 / 62691; 636355. }  

Belton, Mo  64012 

 

DEVELOPER: 

Autumn Woods Development, LP 

14713 Juniper St.  

Leawood, KS 66224 

 

 

11. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in any number of identical counterparts, 

each of which for all purposes shall be deemed an original, and all of which shall 

constitute collectively one agreement.   

12. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and shall inure to the benefit of 

the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns.   

13. Severability.  The provisions of this Agreement shall be deemed severable.  If any part of 

this Agreement shall be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the remainder shall remain 

in full force and effect, and such invalid, illegal or unenforceable provision shall be 

reformed by such court so as to give maximum legal effect to the intention of the parties 

as expressed therein.   

14. Recording.  This Agreement shall be recorded among the land records of Cass County, 

Missouri by the Developer and shall constitute a covenant running with the land, and 

shall be binding on  the Developer, its administrators, executors, assigns, heirs and any 

other successors in interest, including any homeowner’s and/or subdivision association.  

This agreement shall be recorded with the record plat of any development of the 

Property.   

15. Amendments.  This Agreement shall not be amended or modified in any way without the 

prior written approval of the City and that approval must be indicated on the face of any 

subsequently recorded document amending or modifying this Agreement.   

16. Subdivision. A Property Owners Association shall be established in compliance with the 

City’s Unified Development Code. The Property Owners Association documents shall 

clearly define the succession and assignment of the responsibilities outlined in this 

Agreement.  

 

 

 

 

CITY OF BELTON 

 

__________________ 

Mayor Norman K. Larkey, 

Sr. 

 

 

 ATTEST: 

 

 ______________________ 

 Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 

046



STA TE OF MISSOURI 

COUNTY OF e_· a S: s 

) 
) SS. 

) 

c_;:;>_____,..,. 
Signature 

:Bc..1.c:. ~ IntMw\ \ 
Print Name 

On this ~O day of f11a r:ch , 2023, before me._!he undersign~d Notary 
Public, in and for said state, personally appeared - i'' / r(..{ 

_______ of Avttuwivt f o t.. known to 
me to be the person described in and who executed the within evelopment and 
Maintenance Agreement on behalf of said corporation, and acknowledged to me that 
___ executed the same for the purposes therein stated and that the foregoing 
instrument was authorized by the board of directors of said corporation, and ---
acknowledged execution thereof to be on behalf of and the free act and deed of said 
corporation. 

Subscribed and sworn to me the day ~ 

Notary : 

My commission expires: 

KATHRYN FRY 
:..:, ··...,.-r-,.,,_,,, , .. Expires 

hJQUSt11,2023 

{ 10480 / 62691; 636355. } 

047



 

{10480 / 62691; 636355. }  

EXHIBIT A 

 

Final Plat of the Autumn Woods Subdivision 

Legal Description 

 

Lot 1, Autumn Woods, a subdivision in Belton, Cass County, Missouri 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

048



 

 
 

Bill No. 2023-51 
COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 

 
Title:    Final Plat – Cross and Mac 
 
Agenda Date:  August 22, 2023 
 
Presented by:  Matt Wright, Planning & Building Director  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 

• The property owners and applicants, Raquel Flores Soria and Tim Cross, are requesting approval 
of a Final Plat for a two-lot subdivision (Cross and Mac) at 510 and 516 3rd Street.  

• The Final Plat is a replat of five original lots in Old Town Belton at the southwest corner of 3rd 
and Hershel Streets. 

• The lots are zoned R-2 (Two-Family) residential and the applicant intends on constructing two 
duplexes fronting on Hershel Street. 

• The applicant is requesting an Alternative Development Standard to reduce the corner side 
setback (along 3rd Street) from 25-ft. to 15-ft. This setback is consistent with other residential 
buildings along 3rd St., which were built with smaller setbacks prior to the current zoning 
standards. 

• Planning Commission reviewed and recommended approval (5-0) of the Final Plat on August 1, 
2023. 

 
Financial/Budget Considerations 

• There will be no financial/budget impact to the City on this request. 
 
Legal Considerations 

• The proposed Final Plat complies with all zoning and subdivision regulations and standards, with 
the exception of the setback reduction for the corner side setback from 25-ft. to 15-ft. as noted in 
the staff report and on the Final Plat document in Exhibit A. 
 

Policy Considerations 
• The approval of this specific Final Plat does not have any impact on policy, however, the need 

for different zoning standards (with reduced lot sizes, widths, setbacks, etc.) in Old Town Belton 
is evident and is common policy in downtown areas in other communities. This will be explored 
further with the Comprehensive Plan update and future amendments to the Unified Development 
Code to implement the goals of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Staff Recommendation 

• Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat. 

INTEGRITY & DEDICATION TO SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

049



BILL NO. 2023-51              ORDINANCE NO. 2023- 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR CROSS AND MAC, A TWO-LOT 
SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT 510 AND 516 3RD STREET IN THE CITY OF BELTON, 
MISSOURI.  
 
WHEREAS, the property owners, Raquel Flores Soria and Tim Cross, have requested approval 
of a Final Plat for Cross and Mac, a two-lot subdivision at 510 and 516 3rd Street (southwest 
corner of 3rd and Hershel Streets), which is a replat of five (5) original lots in Old Town Belton; 
and    
 
WHEREAS, the Belton Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the Final Plat 
application to the City Council by a 5-0 vote. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Council of the City of Belton hereby approves the Final Plat for Cross 

and Mac as legally described in the Final Plat document attached in Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. Approval of the Final Plat is subject to the following conditions and all other 

items referenced in the staff report and supporting documentation attached as 
Exhibit A: 

 
1. The final plat for Cross and Mac by Onwiler Contracting is approved as 

submitted. 
2. The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or 

the approval of the plat shall be considered null and void. 
3. Prior to permit issuance, extend 8” water main along Herschel from 3rd Street 

to 4th Street with a 3-valve cluster at each tie-in per City of Belton Standards 
and Specifications. 

4. Prior to permit issuance, extend sanitary sewer 10' past proposed property line 
terminating at new MH and restore street per City of Belton Standards and 
Specifications. Alternatively, demonstrate that existing sewer will be 
sufficient to serve proposed improvements. 

5. Prior to permit issuance, provide storm water infrastructure designed by a 
professional engineer to meet APWA requirements. Grading to convey storm 
shall have safe (recoverable) slopes, which may require storm sewer. 

6. Prior to permit issuance, provide sidewalks on all adjacent streets. 
 
Section 3. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 

passage and approval. 
 
Section 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions are hereby 

repealed.  
 

050



 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: August 22, 2023 
 
READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:  
 
 

 ______________________________ 
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
 
Approved this ____of ________, 2023. 
 
             
        ______________________________
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
 

 ATTEST: 
 

 ______________________________ 
 Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
 of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON    ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS    ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the ____ day of _______, 2023, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2023-_____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City Council held 
on the ____ day of ______, 2023, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
 
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
        ______________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 
 
 
 

051



510-516 3rd St – Cross and Mac (Final Plat) – Page 1 

PLANNING APPLICATION STAFF REPORT
PLANNING COMMISSION: AUGUST 1ST, 2023

PROJECT: 510-516 3rd St - cross and Mac
SITE LOCATION: PROJECT REQUEST:

Northwest corner of 3rd St and 
Herschel St. 
(510 and 516 3rd St)

Final Plat

Project summary
CURRENT ZONING/USE: PROPOSED USE:

R-2 Single and Two-Family
Residential / Vacant

Two-Family Residential

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: LAND AREA:
Re-plat 2 lots totalling 0.368 
acres to be oriented off of 
Herschel St, rather than 3rd St, to 
allow for two duplexes to be 
developed.

0.368 Acres  
(Lot 1: 0.203 acres;
Lot 2: 0.165 acres)

Staff recommendation
STAFF RECOMMENDS APPROVAL SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS

APPLICATION:
Property Owner and Applicant – Raquel Flores Soria and 
Tim Cross
Developer – Cross Contracting KC / Tim Cross
Surveyor – Onwiler Contracting LLC / Caitlin Miller

Exhibit A

8 DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & BUILDING 
c,ty Hall Annex: 520 Main St. Belton, MO 64012 
816-331-4331 I www.Belton.org 

l 

052



510-516 3rd St – Cross and Mac (Final Plat) – Page 2 
 
 

 

 Background 
 
An application was filed by Tim Cross to re-plat two lots in Old Town Belton to re-orient the lots to face Herschel, rather 
than 3rd St. The size of the lots are proposed to be approximately the same size as the original lots, but were sized 
according to the width needed for two duplexes. Lot 1 proposed to be 0.203 acres and Lot 2 0.165 acres. The property 
was previously platted with the rest of Old Town Belton. The property is currently zoned R-2 Single and Two-Family 
Residential and the proposed use would be consistent with that. 
 
 

 Proposed final plat 
 
LOTS & BLOCKS: Lot 1 and 2 meet the 6,000 sqft (0.13 acres) minimum lot area requirement for the R-2 zoning district, as 
well as the 65’ width and 120’ depth requirements. The minimum front and corner side setback in the R-2 zoning district 
is 25-ft. The applicant is requesting an Alternative Development Standard to reduce the corner side setback along 3rd St. 
from 25-ft. to 15-ft. to better accommodate the desired duplex design. Staff believes that this reduction is appropriate in 
the Old Town Belton area, where many houses have reduced setbacks. The plat meets all additional requirements of 
Section 36-35, Minimum Design Requirements, of the Unified Development Code. 
 
ACCESS/STREETS: The plat includes the necessary available access to Herschel St, which includes an additional sidewalk 
on along Herschel. 
 
EASEMENTS/ROW: The final plat includes locations and appropriate language for public utility easements. Additional ROW 
dedication isn’t required. Due to the location of the sanitary sewer and water main, conditions for approval have been 
made to require the sewer to be extended 10-ft past the properties and the water main extended to the remainder of the 
block. 
 
GENERAL PLAT INFORMATION: The plat includes all required general information including the legal description, lot 
numbers and dimensions, signature certificates, and surveyor credentials. 
 
 

 Staff recommendation 
 
The staff recommends approval of the application for a Final Plat for Cross and Mac as shown in the attached documents. 
The plat meets all platting requirements of Section 36-34 and 36-35 of Unified Development Code and the Alternative 
Development Standards criteria to reduce the corner side setback. 
 
The recommendation for final plat approval are subject to the following conditions: 

1. The final plat for Cross and Mac by Onwiler Contracting is approved as submitted.  
2. The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or the approval of the plat shall be 

considered null and void.  
3. Prior to permit issuance, extend 8” water main along Herschel from 3rd Street to 4th Street with a 3-valve cluster 

at each tie-in per City of Belton Standards and Specifications. 
4. Prior to permit issuance, extend sanitary sewer 10' past proposed property line terminating at new MH and 

restore street per City of Belton Standards and Specifications. Alternatively, demonstrate that existing sewer will 
be sufficient to serve proposed improvements. 

053



510-516 3rd St – Cross and Mac (Final Plat) – Page 3 
 
 

5. Prior to permit issuance, provide storm water infrastructure designed by a professional engineer to meet APWA 
requirements. Grading to convey storm shall have safe (recoverable) slopes, which may require storm sewer. 

6. Prior to permit issuance, provide sidewalks on all adjacent streets. 
 
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ALTERNATIVES 

1. Motion to recommend approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Cross and Mac. 
2. Motion to recommend denial of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Cross and Mac. 
3. Motion to continue the application for further information. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Final Plat – 1 page 

054



®

youdig.

FINAL PLAT 
CROSS AND MAC 

A REPLAT OF LOTS 1-5, BLOCK 61, TOWN OF BELTON, 
A SUBDIVISION IN THE CITY OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI, 

LYING IN THE NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 14, TOWNSHIP 46, RANGE 33 

PRQP[RTY DESCRIPnQN 

LOTS LOTS 1, 2, .3, 4- AND 5, BLOCK 61, TOWN OF BELTON, CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI, ACCORDING TO THE RECORDrn 
PLAT THEREOF. FILED IN PLAT BOOK I AT PAGE 16. 

i",C,.;~,;;;,,'.;,;~";;;~ r:/?J, °!vJiNJYS1ij5JJ}j_stEr:iAl~tE af° Kt~~8JJ/1°ED 

RAQUU Fla?ES SORIA. ASSHOWIIHEf?EON, HAS CAUSED THBEPRESCIITS ro 
OC S/GNU! ON THIS _____ DAY OF ____ 202:J. 

El< Ir RE/i/EUBEREO THAT ON mis --- 0,', )'0, ----- 202:J, 
~ UE, A 1/DTAf?Y PUBLIC IN ANO f"/Jl SAID GOU/In' ANO STA IE; CM/£ 
RAQUEL FLORES SORIA., TOMEPERSONAilYKIIDMI TO BE THE SAME PERSON 
WIIDEXECtJTEDTll<FORE:CO/NG/IISTRU/JENTOFIMIIT/1/(;,II/DDULY 
,ICl(/10'1,lEDGCO THEE~CUTIONOFY.ME.INTrSTIMONYWIIU/HJF,/H,1\£ 
HEREUNTOSCTM'fHANOAI/D1\HIXEDM'fNOTARY5CM THE DAYA/ID YE"AR 

THISPI.ATOF "CROSS ,I, U,',C"H-A.SBEEIISUBM/TTED TOA.110 ),PPff0\£0 BY 
THE BELTON PLA/111/IIC COMM/SS/00 THIS ___ D,IYOF _____ 202!!. 

THESE EASEMENTS A/ID R/GHT5-0,-WAYACCCPTED Br mt:CJrrcOONC/L or 
BUIDN, 1,1/SSWRI 7HIS ___ DAY OF ____ 202:5. 

THE nELD WORK WAS COMPLETED ON .RJL Y 6, 202J. 

7/17/2023. 

FOUND 5/8" REBAR 

~~~ 
a;, 

TR).CTB 
SURVEY BOOK /J PAGE 64 

TRACTA 
SURVEY BOOK IJ PAGE 54 

FOUND 5/8" REBAR 
(LAYING FLAT) 

TIIEBEAAII/CSSHO'M,/l/£REOI/ AREBASEDOI/ TIIEM/SS!XIRfSTA JTPLA/1£-
TIIESUB.ECrPROf'ERrYl\lXJRESSIS: 510 <I: 516 J;RI) sr. 
/ID TITLE WORK I\IA5PRD'IIDCDATTHETTUEOF THISSUR\lf:Y 
SJJB..CCTPROffRTYU£S'M71//ll"ZOIIEX"Dff/l/£()ASAAEASOFM/I/IUALFLOODIIAZARDACCORD/IICTOTl/£FEJ./A 
F!.OOD/NSURANCERArEUAPNUMBER2fKJ.J7C0016FEffECTl\lf:DArEJANUARr2. 201:J. 
THt:SUB.ECTPROf'ERrYCONTAII/S/6,0JJSQUAREFEETDRD.:J8B ACRES.IIOREORLESS. 
BAASIIOTU! AS SET l!!LL fK SET UPON APPROVAi. OFF/I/AL PLATBYCHYOFBELTON. 

PROP[Rfr IS CURREI/Tl. r ZOI/ED IJUU/PLE/TRI/OOAD PffX ACCORD/1/G TO Tl/£ EXIST/1/G LA/ID U~ MAP f'ROU BELTOI/ /JO 
IIEBSIJTOI/ 7/7/202:J. 

~f --·-· .. ,_ 

NWT/4 11£1/4 

• 
,.. 

S\111/4 SE1/4 

VIC/NIT( MAP 
SEC.14-46-JJ 

~ 
~ 

SCALE 1•-20' 

W 0 

~ 

•-FOOND MONUMEIIT ASNDrED 

~~•-fJ_ff It:~::~ 
R/W- RIGHTO, ll'AY 

'dFH=FIREHYDRAIIT 
~~- GUY ANCHOR 

~1¥'-POfl£/IPOLE 

~s~~w{t~~7:?!Jt 

RAO::[':/§k
1P~1A ON'f./!fR!8fl1.cff11~ LLC 

H~t~tf':.t!/R 1sg8rr~~~ffD 

ONWILER CONTRACTING, lLC 
15118 S. MAII..TON RD. GRHIMCO'.l. ~ 540.l+ 
Pl«L!ll-.l08-1213Cn>.,LS-202CIOl•IOO 

oowm=rl:rodin~ol .com 

055



 

 
 

Bill No. 2023-52 
COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 

 
Title:    Rezoning – Bays Place 
 
Agenda Date:  August 22, 2023 
 
Presented by:  Matt Wright, Planning & Building Director  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 

• The applicants, Donald and Martin Bays, are requesting to rezone a proposed 1.23 +/- acre lot 
from “A” (Agriculture) to “R-1” (Single-Family) at 1208 S. Cedar Street. 

• The proposed lot is required to be rezoned concurrently with the Final Plat application as the 
newly created lot is less than the minimum 5-acre lot size for “A” zoning. 

• Planning Commission reviewed and approved a Preliminary Plat for the 2-lot subdivision on 
August 15, 2023. 

• Planning Commission reviewed and recommended approval (5-0) of the Final Plat on August 15, 
2023. 

 
Financial/Budget Considerations 

• There will be no financial/budget impact to the City on this request. 
 
Legal Considerations 

• The proposed rezoning meets the review criteria and findings of fact in Section 20-3 (a) of the 
Unified Development Code. 
 

Policy Considerations 
• Staff does not believe that approval of this rezoning request will have any impact on policy. 

 
Staff Recommendation 

• Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request. 
 

INTEGRITY & DEDICATION TO SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

056



BILL NO. 2023-52             ORDINANCE NO. 2023- 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A REZONING FROM “A” (AGRICULTURE) TO “R-
1” (SINGLE-FAMILY), FOR A 1.23 +/- ACRE PARCEL LOCATED AT 1208 S. CEDAR 
STREET. 
 
WHEREAS, a request was submitted to rezone 1.23 +/- acres of land located at 1208 S. Cedar 
Street, more specifically described below and in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated as if 
fully set forth herein, from “A” (Agriculture) to “R-1” (Single-Family); and 
 
WHEREAS, the request was reviewed under the Land Use Applications and Procedures 
contained within the Unified Development Code, Chapter 20, giving the City Council the final 
decision-making authority for Rezoning applications; and 
 
WHEREAS, after due public notice was given in the manner prescribed by law, the Planning 
Commission held a public hearing on August 15, 2023, to review and make a recommendation 
on the proposed Rezoning. After said public hearing, the Planning Commission voted 5-0 to 
recommend approval of the Rezoning application to the City Council; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council believes it is in the best interest of the City to rezone the subject 
tract of land to “R-1” (Single-Family). 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1.  That the City Council of the City of Belton hereby approves the rezoning of the 

subject property more specifically described below and in Exhibit A attached hereto 
and incorporated as if fully set forth herein, from “A” (Agriculture) to “R-1” 
(Single-Family). The subject property to be rezoned is more specifically described 
as follows: 

 
A tract of land in the Northeast Quarter of Section 23, Township 46 North, Range 
33 West of the Fifth Principal Meridian, in the City of Belton, Cass County, 
Missouri, more particularly described as follows: Commencing at the Northeast 
corner of said Northeast Quarter, thence South 02° 53' 27" West, along the East line 
of said Northeast Quarter, a distance of 1,653.55 feet; thence North 85° 54' 03" 
West, a distance of 35.99 feet to a point on the West right-of-way line of Missouri 
State Route "Y" Highway, also known as South Cedar Street, as now established, 
said point being the True Point of Beginning; thence South 02° 28' 36" West, along 
said West right-of-way line, a distance of 166.20 feet; thence South 86° 55' 19" 
West, a distance of 294.36 feet; thence North 04° 05' 57" East, a distance of 202.91 
feet; thence South 85° 54' 03" East, a distance of 287.34 feet to the point of 
beginning. Containing 53,499 square feet or 1.23 acres, more or less. 

 
Section 2.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions are hereby 

repealed.  

057



 
Section 3.   That this Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage 

and approval. 
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: August 22, 2023 

READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:  

 

        ______________________________ 
Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
Approved this ____of ________, 2023. 
             
        ______________________________
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
 

 ATTEST: 
 

 ______________________________ 
 Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
 of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON    ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS    ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first reading at a meeting 
of the City Council held on the ____ day of _______, 2023, and thereafter adopted as Ordinance 
No. 2023-_____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City Council held on the ____ 
day of ______, 2023, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
 
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
        ______________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 

058



1208 Cedar St - Bays Place (Rezoning, Preliminary & Final Plat) – Page 1 
 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION STAFF REPORT 

PLANNING COMMISSION: AUGUST 15th, 2023  
 

 PROJECT: 1208 s Cedar st - bays place 
  

SITE LOCATION: PROJECT REQUEST: 
 

Southwest corner of S Cedar St 
and Leisure Ln. 
(1208 S Cedar St) 

Rezoning, Preliminary & 
Final Plat 

 

 

 

 Project summary 
 

CURRENT ZONING/USE: PROPOSED USE: 
 

A Agricultural / 
Single-Family Residential 

Single-Family Residential 

 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: LAND AREA: 
Plat a 9.62 acre property into 2 
lots; Lot 1 being 1.23 acres and 
rezoned to R-1 Single-Family 
Residential and Lot 2 being 8.39 
acres that would remain 
Agricultural 

9.62 Acres  
(Lot 1: 1.23 acres; 
Lot 2: 8.39 acres) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Staff recommendation 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDS  APPROVAL SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS 

APPLICATION:  
Property Owner – Donald Bays, Martin Bays, and Karl Bays 
Applicant – Karl Bays 
Surveyor - Huffman Land Surveyors / Mike Huffman 

 

Exhibit A

8 DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & BUILDING 
City Hall Annex: 520 Main St. Belton, MO 64012 
816-331 4331 I www.Belton.org 

059



1208 Cedar St - Bays Place (Rezoning, Preliminary & Final Plat) – Page 2 
 
 

 

 Background & development standards 
 
An application was filed by Karl Bays to plat and subdivide their property into two smaller lots, where Lot 1 is proposed 
to be rezoned from A agricultural to R-1 Single-Family to allow for a smaller lot size. Lot 1 would include 1.23-acres and 
Lot 2 8.39-acres.  The property was not previously platted, and there are currently two houses located on what is 
currently one parcel. Creating two lots would allow each house to exist on their respective lots.  The property is 
currently zoned A Agricultural and is proposed to be used for single-family residential. 
 
The site is subject to compliance with the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Standards of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
with the rezoning request: The R-1 zoning district permits the platting of lots smaller than 5 acres. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Proposed preliminary & final plat 
 
The Preliminary and Final Plat are requested to be approved together. 
 
LOTS & BLOCKS: The plat includes one single-family residential lot (Lot 1) and one agricultural lot (Lot 2). Lot 1 meets the 
8,400 sqft (0.19 acres) minimum for the R-1 zoning district, as well as Lot 2, which exceeds the 5-acre minimum for 
Agriculture.  The lots do not meet the requirement that the maximum depth of residential lots shall not exceed 2½ times 
the width, however, with the property being zoned agricultural, the lots are consistent with surrounding properties and 
meet the intent of the UDC. The plat meets all additional requirements of Section 36-35, Minimum Design Requirements, 
of the Unified Development Code. 
 
ACCESS/STREETS: The plat includes the necessary available access to S Cedar St., which includes two access points for Lot 
1, and a shared drive for Lot 2.  
 
EASEMENTS/ROW: The preliminary and final plat includes locations and appropriate language for public utility easements, 
the 30’ building setback requirement, as well as the 20’ additional ROW dedication. Due to the existing placement of the 
residence on Lot 1, 5’ of ROW was retained around the perimeter of the residence to allow it to remain outside of the 
ROW and not trigger an encroachment agreement.  
 
GENERAL PLAT INFORMATION: The plat includes all required general information including the legal description, lot 
numbers and dimensions, right-of-way designation, signature certificates, and surveyor credentials. 
 
 

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS R-1 Zoning Requirements Agricultural Zoning Requirements 

Min. lot area 8,400 sqft 5 acres 
Min. lot width (ft) 70  120 
Min. lot depth (ft) 120 120 
Front Yard 30 30 
Rear Yard 20 30 
Side Yard 10 15 
Max. Building Coverage 25% 25% 

Current Zoning Proposed Zoning 

060



1208 Cedar St - Bays Place (Rezoning, Preliminary & Final Plat) – Page 3 
 
 

 Staff recommendation 
 
The staff recommends approval of the application for a Rezoning for the 1.23 +/- acre lot as proposed (Bays Place, Lot 1). 
The rezoning request complies with the findings of fact in Section 20-3 (a) of the Unified Development Code for a rezoning.  
 
The staff recommends approval of the application for a Preliminary and Final Plat for Bays Place as shown in the attached 
documents. The plat meets all platting requirements of Section 36-34 and 36-35 of Unified Development Code. 
 
The recommendation for preliminary and final plat approval are subject to the following conditions: 

1. The preliminary and final plat for Bays Place by Huffman Land Surveyors is approved as submitted.  
2. The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or the approval of the plat shall be 

considered null and void.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ALTERNATIVES 

1. Motion to recommend approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Bays Place. 
2. Motion to recommend denial of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Bays Place. 
3. Motion to continue the application for further information. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Narrative – 1 page 
2. Preliminary Plat – 1 page  
3. Final Plat – 1 page 

061



Tract A: We would like to split and rezone to R1. 1.23 acres off the 9.62 acres. 
 
Leaving the remaining 8.39 acres known as 1210 S Cedar St (Tract B) zoned as Agriculture.   
 
We would like to keep Tract A, known as 1208 S Cedar St and Tract B, known as 1210 S 
Cedar St to be sold. 
 

062



~ 

I 

SECTIONAL MAP 
SEC23 TWP-46N RN033W 

W CAMBRIDOBRD 

NWl/4 NEl/4 

= 
• 

SWl/4 SEI/4 I 
H7IHST 

FLOOD STATEMENT 

ORDERED BY 
<ARLBAYS 

1208SCl!DARST 
BBLTON,M064012 

MOBILB: (Bl6) ll20-IOllll 

1TIUl COMMITMENT 
NOTI1LECOMMIIMENTWAS PllOVIDED 

ATTIIBTIMBOFTHISSUllVBY. 

DEED REFERENCE: 
TIIB LAND Dl!.SClUBBD FALLS Wl1HlN ZONES AB AND 

'X" (AllEASDHrallMINBD TOBEOursIDBTIIB0.2% 
ANNUALWANClll'LOODPU.IN)PBRl'LOOD 

JNSURANCERATE MAP (FIRM). B~==~~~rt• 
PA0B203. CASSCOUNTY,MISSOURI 

PANEL 160F480 
MAPNUMBEll.:29037COOl6F 

EFFBCI1VBDATE: IANUARY2,2013 
THE SOUIH HALF OF THE NOR'IH HALF OF nm 

S01JTHEAST QUAR'IER.OF TIIBNOR.TIIBAST 
QUAll'IllR OF S8CTIO.N 23, TOWNSHIF 46, llANGE 33, 

CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI; SUBJECI' TO 
EASEMENTS, RIGHT.OF-WAYS, IESTRICI10NS AND 

RESl!RVATIONS,IF ANY,OF RBCORD. 

LOT 10 

ZONING NOTE: 
PROPERTY ZONEDASAGIUCULTURAL 

NBWZONINOFOR~!8~ANDFOllLOT2,TO 

SURVEYOR'S NOTH 
REPl!RENCED:MATOFSURVHYPBRFOllOIDBYaOOEllL 

BllENIZBR~ASSOCIATBS,ItEroRDBD DIICl!MBBR.11, 2001,AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 2001M2, IN BOOX2001 AT PACE 2, FILED IN CASS 

OOUNTY SURVllYORRECOIW 800.K.4 AT PAGE 2. 

BASIS OF BEARING 
COORDINATES SHOWN ARB NADll3 MISSOUlU-WEST ZONE (U.S. 

SURVEY FEEl') DBRIVIID FIi.OM CONTROL STATION CA-26 USING 

~~~~=~~~ 
ADJUSTED THE COORDINATES BY LOCAIJZING ON TIIB 

SURROUND1NO CONnOL STATIONS OF CA-04, CA-27 AND CA-52.. 

OlllDFACTOR•0.9993954 
lll!ClPtiX:AL•Ul001046 

STATION CA-26 ADJUSTED STA'ffil'LANE COORDINATES 
(USSURVEYFEBl) 

NORTIIING- 9511462.471 
BASTING•2774590.!164 
mBVATION•1066.!il4 

FINAL PLAT 

BAYS PLACE 
A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE 

NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH, RANGE 33 WEST 

--•n---•=~•=M-•~~.I2~1vf~LCOUNTY, MISSOURI 
Dl!DICATIONI THE UNDERSIGNED PllOPIUIITOR(S) OF THE IlEAL ESTATE DllSCRIBlID HilRElN HA VB CAUSHD lBB llAMll TO BE 

~~B~~~~~•~~~~~~lmGN~~~~Ya 
~!ITE!lffll:IIKIWNONTHl!lPI.ATANDNOTIIIWITOFOEIDl!DL\TlllPOll.l'UIIUCllllllAS!rllll!IITIIKHr-Ol'-11'AY,Amlllilll!IIY!IO 

:~=..=.m~:i...~===~:%~~=::llll!ACCOMl'ANYHIPI.AT,ANDNOBUllllNO 
APl'BARS ON EACH LOT FOLLOWED BY TIIB WOIDS 'WA.Ya PLACII!"". 

THIIPI.ATOll-ftPIAlll!"IIA!IUIINS!mMl'ITllllTOANDAPNOYmllYTHl!MLTOill'LANNINGCOMMl!ISONTHlll ___ ~<m 

l!ASll!laNT Dl!DICATIONI ANBAllEMENTIS HllRHBY ORANTIID TOBELTON,MISSOUIU,FOII. TIIB1'UIU'OSBOF LOCATING, 
CONSlRUCTINO,OPBRATINO ANDMAJNTAININGFACILITII!SFOR WATBR,GAS, l!ll!CTRICJIY,SEWA(E, 11!LEPHONB, CABLE TV 
AND SURFACE DIAINAGK INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITl!D TO, UNDEROROllND 1'11'&\1 AND CONDUITS, PAD MOUNIED 
TRANSl'OllMIIRS, SBB.VlCE PBDBST.ALS, ANY OR ALL OF TIIBM lll'ON, OVBR, llND.Bll AND ALONG TBB STIRil'S OF LAND 
DESIGNATED urnnY EASBMHNTS (UB). WHERE OTHER EASEMENTS ARB Dll8IIJIATBD FOR A PARTICULA1PURPOSE, TIIB USE 
1HERllOl' SHALL BE LIMITED TO TI!AT l'URl'OSE ONLY. ALL 11IE ABOVE IWIEMENTS SHALL BE KEPT FREBFROMANY AND ALL --~-· 

Or:m 

0P:CJol FOUND CIJlUI MAH 

~- FOUNDH/MAGNAIL 

.HD SETl/2.'lllONBARW/CAPLS-2268 

Ora 
0,, ,owm<,ou; 

Clo SANITARY SEWEI.CLEANour 

@
111 

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE 

o_ 
0,rv WATBRVALVH 

----1\r-

~ONS~:;,~~~~~=ya:~"':1~~TIIBREOVHR 
ANY STRUCTilIB (EXCEPT DIIIVBWAYS, PAVED AREAS, GRASS, SHIUIBS AND FENCllS; WIT1I 111E EXCEPTION OF DRAINAGE 
EAlll!MENTS (DE) WHERE NO FENCES SHALL BE EllECTI!D) NOR. SHALL THI!RB BE ANY OBST1UCTION TO IN'I1!RFl!RE WIT1I THE 
AGENTS AND EMPI.Q"\'El'1I OF BELTON, MISSOllII AND m; FRANCBISEDUT1UJ1ES FROM OOINO UPON SAID EASEMENT AND AS 
MUCH OF 11IE ADJOINING LANDS A1J MAY BE REASONABLY NllrnSSAllY IN IIXWlOSlNG TBB nGHr9 GRANI1lD BY 111B 
EAlll!MENTS. NO EXCAVATION Oil FILL SHALL BE MADE OR OPERATION OF ANY nND Oil NATURE SHALL BE PBRFOnmD WHICH 
WILL REDUCE OR.INCREASE TIIBEAR'IH COVEilAOE OVER THEUI1LITIE!IABOVESTATEDOR THBAPPUR.TENANCE!l IHEitEro 
WITII0UrTHEWIUITHNAPl'ROVALOPTHEDIRECTOII.OF1'UBLICWCXlU,ASTOAILBASHMmmlDBlllCATEDTOTIIBCITY. 

983 
•----ACCl!Nl!Aal!lll!NTI A30FEETINGlll!SS/IIGRBSSACCESSEASEMI!NTWILLBBCREATBDWITHTIIISPLATOF 
"BAYSPU.CE"FOR THEPUD'OSEOFB0111:TIACI"S TOUI1LIZB111BEXISTINODRIVEWAY. 

Sllll!l!Tal STKEETS SHOWN ON TIIIS PLAT AND NOT HERETOFORE DEDICATED FORPUBIJC USE Ml STREETRIGIIT.OF-WAY, AilE 
BEREBYSODIDTCATED. 

IN Tl!Sll• ONY Wlll!lmOFI TIIB UNDERSIGNED OWNERS HAVE SlJBSCRIBFJ) IHEIRNAME!I ON TIIIS 

--~""· 

STA'IEOFMISSOURI ) 

'" ) 

BEITRl!MHMBHREDTI!ATONTHIS ____ DAYrn<_~20l3,BEFOREME,AN<YrAII.YPUBIJCINANDFOII.SAID 
COUN'IY AND STATE, CAME, MARTIN L BAYS, OWNER, AND DONALD G BAYS, OWNER, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN TO BE 111B 
SAME PKRSONS WHO EXllCUTBD TIIB POIIEGOING INSTRUMHNT OF WRITING AND DIIl.Y ACKNOWLEDGl!D 111E EXI!CUTION OF =-:. TESTIMONY WHEREOF, l HA VB BBREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY NOTAllY SEAL nm DAY AND YEAR ABOVE 

MY COMMISSION EXP.IRES: 

LAND DESCRIPTION: 
ALL 111AT PART OF SOU'IHBAST QUARTER OP TIIB NORTIIBAST QUARTER OP =~==Tl~~~~ro:s~~~~ 
THB NOII.TJIEAST COINER OF &AID NORTHEAST QUARTER; lHEN"CE scrum 

~:~;~rii~:~~~~lBB~~~~~ 
HI!REIN DE!ICIIBBD; THENCE CONTINUlNO scrum 02°53'27" WEST, ALONG 

SAIDEASTLINE, A DISTANCBOF330.59FEBT;'IHENCENORTII85-S"34'WEST, 
A DISTANCE OF 1302.12FIIIIT; T.HENCBNOR.'IH02°5B' 4!l"EAST,ADISTANCEOF 
331.15 Fl!BT; 111ENCB SCU1H 85' 54' 03" EAST, A msTANCE OF 1301.61 FEET TO 

THBPOINTOFBEOINNING.CONTAINING9.llllACRES,MOilEORLESS. 

l 
,Ounm.<B>"CORNB><, NORnnwITQUAATID<, l 

SEC23, TWP46N, RN033W ~ IUNE26,2023 

$HT I OF I SI 

063



 

 
 

Bill No. 2023-53 
COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 

 
Title:    Final Plat – Bays Place  
 
Agenda Date:  August 22, 2023 
 
Presented by:  Matt Wright, Planning & Building Director  
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 

• The applicants, Donald and Martin Bays, are requesting approval of a Final Plat for Bays Place, 
a 2-lot subdivision at 1208-1210 S. Cedar Street.  

• Planning Commission reviewed and approved a Preliminary Plat for the 2-lot subdivision on 
August 15, 2023. 

• Planning Commission reviewed and recommended approval (5-0) of the Final Plat on August 15, 
2023. 

 
Financial/Budget Considerations 

• There will be no financial/budget impact to the City on this request. 
 
Legal Considerations 

• The proposed Final Plat complies with all subdivision regulations and standards, with the 
exception of Lot 2 exceeding the maximum lot depth as noted in the staff report in Exhibit A. 
 

Policy Considerations 
• Staff does not believe that approval of this Final Plat request will have any negative impact to 

current policy.  
 
Staff Recommendation 

• Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat. 
 

INTEGRITY & DEDICATION TO SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

064



BILL NO. 2023-53              ORDINANCE NO. 2023- 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL PLAT FOR BAYS PLACE, A TWO-LOT 
SUBDIVISION LOCATED AT 1208-1210 S. CEDAR STREET IN THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI.  
 
WHEREAS, the property owners, Donald and Martin Bays, have requested approval of a Final 
Plat for Bays Place, a two-lot subdivision at 1208-1210 S. Cedar Street; and    
 
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission reviewed and approved a Preliminary Plat for the two-
lot subdivision and recommended approval of a Final Plat for the two-lot subdivision on August 
15, 2023; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Belton Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the Final Plat 
application to the City Council by a 5-0 vote. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. The City Council of the City of Belton hereby approves the Final Plat for Bays 

Place as legally described in the Final Plat document attached in Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. Approval of the Final Plat is subject to the following conditions and all other 

items referenced in the staff report and supporting documentation attached as 
Exhibit A: 

 
1. The preliminary and final plat for Bays Place by Huffman Land Surveyors is 

approved as submitted.  
2. The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or 

the approval of the plat shall be considered null and void.  
 
Section 3. That this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 

passage and approval. 
 
Section 4. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with the provisions are hereby 

repealed.  
 
 
READ FOR THE FIRST TIME: August 22, 2023 
 
READ FOR THE SECOND TIME AND PASSED:  
 

 ______________________________ 
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
Approved this ____of ________, 2023. ---

065



             
        ______________________________
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 
 
 

 ATTEST: 
 

 ______________________________ 
 Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
 of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
STATE OF MISSOURI) 
CITY OF BELTON    ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS    ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton and that the foregoing ordinance was introduced for first reading at a 
meeting of the City Council held on the ____ day of _______, 2023, and thereafter adopted as 
Ordinance No. 2023-_____ of the City of Belton, Missouri, at a meeting of the City Council held 
on the ____ day of ______, 2023, after the second reading thereof by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
 
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:   
 
        ______________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 
 
 
 
 

066



1208 Cedar St - Bays Place (Rezoning, Preliminary & Final Plat) – Page 1 
 
 

PLANNING APPLICATION STAFF REPORT 

PLANNING COMMISSION: AUGUST 15th, 2023  
 

 PROJECT: 1208 s Cedar st - bays place 
  

SITE LOCATION: PROJECT REQUEST: 
 

Southwest corner of S Cedar St 
and Leisure Ln. 
(1208 S Cedar St) 

Rezoning, Preliminary & 
Final Plat 

 

 

 

 Project summary 
 

CURRENT ZONING/USE: PROPOSED USE: 
 

A Agricultural / 
Single-Family Residential 

Single-Family Residential 

 

PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT: LAND AREA: 
Plat a 9.62 acre property into 2 
lots; Lot 1 being 1.23 acres and 
rezoned to R-1 Single-Family 
Residential and Lot 2 being 8.39 
acres that would remain 
Agricultural 

9.62 Acres  
(Lot 1: 1.23 acres; 
Lot 2: 8.39 acres) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Staff recommendation 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDS  APPROVAL SUBJECT TO 
CONDITIONS 

APPLICATION:  
Property Owner – Donald Bays, Martin Bays, and Karl Bays 
Applicant – Karl Bays 
Surveyor - Huffman Land Surveyors / Mike Huffman 

 

Exhibit A

8 DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & BUILDING 
City Hall Annex: 520 Main St. Belton, MO 64012 
816-331 4331 I www.Belton.org 

067



1208 Cedar St - Bays Place (Rezoning, Preliminary & Final Plat) – Page 2 
 
 

 

 Background & development standards 
 
An application was filed by Karl Bays to plat and subdivide their property into two smaller lots, where Lot 1 is proposed 
to be rezoned from A agricultural to R-1 Single-Family to allow for a smaller lot size. Lot 1 would include 1.23-acres and 
Lot 2 8.39-acres.  The property was not previously platted, and there are currently two houses located on what is 
currently one parcel. Creating two lots would allow each house to exist on their respective lots.  The property is 
currently zoned A Agricultural and is proposed to be used for single-family residential. 
 
The site is subject to compliance with the R-1 (Single-Family Residential) Standards of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
with the rezoning request: The R-1 zoning district permits the platting of lots smaller than 5 acres. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 Proposed preliminary & final plat 
 
The Preliminary and Final Plat are requested to be approved together. 
 
LOTS & BLOCKS: The plat includes one single-family residential lot (Lot 1) and one agricultural lot (Lot 2). Lot 1 meets the 
8,400 sqft (0.19 acres) minimum for the R-1 zoning district, as well as Lot 2, which exceeds the 5-acre minimum for 
Agriculture.  The lots do not meet the requirement that the maximum depth of residential lots shall not exceed 2½ times 
the width, however, with the property being zoned agricultural, the lots are consistent with surrounding properties and 
meet the intent of the UDC. The plat meets all additional requirements of Section 36-35, Minimum Design Requirements, 
of the Unified Development Code. 
 
ACCESS/STREETS: The plat includes the necessary available access to S Cedar St., which includes two access points for Lot 
1, and a shared drive for Lot 2.  
 
EASEMENTS/ROW: The preliminary and final plat includes locations and appropriate language for public utility easements, 
the 30’ building setback requirement, as well as the 20’ additional ROW dedication. Due to the existing placement of the 
residence on Lot 1, 5’ of ROW was retained around the perimeter of the residence to allow it to remain outside of the 
ROW and not trigger an encroachment agreement.  
 
GENERAL PLAT INFORMATION: The plat includes all required general information including the legal description, lot 
numbers and dimensions, right-of-way designation, signature certificates, and surveyor credentials. 
 
 

DIMENSIONAL STANDARDS R-1 Zoning Requirements Agricultural Zoning Requirements 

Min. lot area 8,400 sqft 5 acres 
Min. lot width (ft) 70  120 
Min. lot depth (ft) 120 120 
Front Yard 30 30 
Rear Yard 20 30 
Side Yard 10 15 
Max. Building Coverage 25% 25% 

Current Zoning Proposed Zoning 

068



1208 Cedar St - Bays Place (Rezoning, Preliminary & Final Plat) – Page 3 
 
 

 Staff recommendation 
 
The staff recommends approval of the application for a Rezoning for the 1.23 +/- acre lot as proposed (Bays Place, Lot 1). 
The rezoning request complies with the findings of fact in Section 20-3 (a) of the Unified Development Code for a rezoning.  
 
The staff recommends approval of the application for a Preliminary and Final Plat for Bays Place as shown in the attached 
documents. The plat meets all platting requirements of Section 36-34 and 36-35 of Unified Development Code. 
 
The recommendation for preliminary and final plat approval are subject to the following conditions: 

1. The preliminary and final plat for Bays Place by Huffman Land Surveyors is approved as submitted.  
2. The final plat shall be recorded within one year of City Council approval or the approval of the plat shall be 

considered null and void.  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ALTERNATIVES 

1. Motion to recommend approval of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Bays Place. 
2. Motion to recommend denial of a Preliminary and Final Plat for Bays Place. 
3. Motion to continue the application for further information. 

 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Narrative – 1 page 
2. Preliminary Plat – 1 page  
3. Final Plat – 1 page 

069



Tract A: We would like to split and rezone to R1. 1.23 acres off the 9.62 acres. 
 
Leaving the remaining 8.39 acres known as 1210 S Cedar St (Tract B) zoned as Agriculture.   
 
We would like to keep Tract A, known as 1208 S Cedar St and Tract B, known as 1210 S 
Cedar St to be sold. 
 

070



~ 

I 

SECTIONAL MAP 
SEC23 TWP-46N RN033W 

W CAMBRIDOBRD 

NWl/4 NEl/4 

= 
• 

SWl/4 SEI/4 I 
H7IHST 

FLOOD STATEMENT 

ORDERED BY 
<ARLBAYS 

1208SCl!DARST 
BBLTON,M064012 

MOBILB: (Bl6) ll20-IOllll 

1TIUl COMMITMENT 
NOTI1LECOMMIIMENTWAS PllOVIDED 

ATTIIBTIMBOFTHISSUllVBY. 

DEED REFERENCE: 
TIIB LAND Dl!.SClUBBD FALLS Wl1HlN ZONES AB AND 

'X" (AllEASDHrallMINBD TOBEOursIDBTIIB0.2% 
ANNUALWANClll'LOODPU.IN)PBRl'LOOD 

JNSURANCERATE MAP (FIRM). B~==~~~rt• 
PA0B203. CASSCOUNTY,MISSOURI 

PANEL 160F480 
MAPNUMBEll.:29037COOl6F 

EFFBCI1VBDATE: IANUARY2,2013 
THE SOUIH HALF OF THE NOR'IH HALF OF nm 

S01JTHEAST QUAR'IER.OF TIIBNOR.TIIBAST 
QUAll'IllR OF S8CTIO.N 23, TOWNSHIF 46, llANGE 33, 

CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI; SUBJECI' TO 
EASEMENTS, RIGHT.OF-WAYS, IESTRICI10NS AND 

RESl!RVATIONS,IF ANY,OF RBCORD. 

LOT 10 

ZONING NOTE: 
PROPERTY ZONEDASAGIUCULTURAL 

NBWZONINOFOR~!8~ANDFOllLOT2,TO 

SURVEYOR'S NOTH 
REPl!RENCED:MATOFSURVHYPBRFOllOIDBYaOOEllL 

BllENIZBR~ASSOCIATBS,ItEroRDBD DIICl!MBBR.11, 2001,AS 
DOCUMENT NO. 2001M2, IN BOOX2001 AT PACE 2, FILED IN CASS 

OOUNTY SURVllYORRECOIW 800.K.4 AT PAGE 2. 

BASIS OF BEARING 
COORDINATES SHOWN ARB NADll3 MISSOUlU-WEST ZONE (U.S. 

SURVEY FEEl') DBRIVIID FIi.OM CONTROL STATION CA-26 USING 

~~~~=~~~ 
ADJUSTED THE COORDINATES BY LOCAIJZING ON TIIB 

SURROUND1NO CONnOL STATIONS OF CA-04, CA-27 AND CA-52.. 

OlllDFACTOR•0.9993954 
lll!ClPtiX:AL•Ul001046 

STATION CA-26 ADJUSTED STA'ffil'LANE COORDINATES 
(USSURVEYFEBl) 

NORTIIING- 9511462.471 
BASTING•2774590.!164 
mBVATION•1066.!il4 

FINAL PLAT 

BAYS PLACE 
A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE 

NORTHEAST QUARTER OF SECTION 23, TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH, RANGE 33 WEST 

--•n---•=~•=M-•~~.I2~1vf~LCOUNTY, MISSOURI 
Dl!DICATIONI THE UNDERSIGNED PllOPIUIITOR(S) OF THE IlEAL ESTATE DllSCRIBlID HilRElN HA VB CAUSHD lBB llAMll TO BE 

~~B~~~~~•~~~~~~lmGN~~~~Ya 
~!ITE!lffll:IIKIWNONTHl!lPI.ATANDNOTIIIWITOFOEIDl!DL\TlllPOll.l'UIIUCllllllAS!rllll!IITIIKHr-Ol'-11'AY,Amlllilll!IIY!IO 

:~=..=.m~:i...~===~:%~~=::llll!ACCOMl'ANYHIPI.AT,ANDNOBUllllNO 
APl'BARS ON EACH LOT FOLLOWED BY TIIB WOIDS 'WA.Ya PLACII!"". 

THIIPI.ATOll-ftPIAlll!"IIA!IUIINS!mMl'ITllllTOANDAPNOYmllYTHl!MLTOill'LANNINGCOMMl!ISONTHlll ___ ~<m 

l!ASll!laNT Dl!DICATIONI ANBAllEMENTIS HllRHBY ORANTIID TOBELTON,MISSOUIU,FOII. TIIB1'UIU'OSBOF LOCATING, 
CONSlRUCTINO,OPBRATINO ANDMAJNTAININGFACILITII!SFOR WATBR,GAS, l!ll!CTRICJIY,SEWA(E, 11!LEPHONB, CABLE TV 
AND SURFACE DIAINAGK INCLUDING, BUT NOT LIMITl!D TO, UNDEROROllND 1'11'&\1 AND CONDUITS, PAD MOUNIED 
TRANSl'OllMIIRS, SBB.VlCE PBDBST.ALS, ANY OR ALL OF TIIBM lll'ON, OVBR, llND.Bll AND ALONG TBB STIRil'S OF LAND 
DESIGNATED urnnY EASBMHNTS (UB). WHERE OTHER EASEMENTS ARB Dll8IIJIATBD FOR A PARTICULA1PURPOSE, TIIB USE 
1HERllOl' SHALL BE LIMITED TO TI!AT l'URl'OSE ONLY. ALL 11IE ABOVE IWIEMENTS SHALL BE KEPT FREBFROMANY AND ALL --~-· 

Or:m 

0P:CJol FOUND CIJlUI MAH 

~- FOUNDH/MAGNAIL 

.HD SETl/2.'lllONBARW/CAPLS-2268 

Ora 
0,, ,owm<,ou; 

Clo SANITARY SEWEI.CLEANour 

@
111 

SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE 

o_ 
0,rv WATBRVALVH 

----1\r-

~ONS~:;,~~~~~=ya:~"':1~~TIIBREOVHR 
ANY STRUCTilIB (EXCEPT DIIIVBWAYS, PAVED AREAS, GRASS, SHIUIBS AND FENCllS; WIT1I 111E EXCEPTION OF DRAINAGE 
EAlll!MENTS (DE) WHERE NO FENCES SHALL BE EllECTI!D) NOR. SHALL THI!RB BE ANY OBST1UCTION TO IN'I1!RFl!RE WIT1I THE 
AGENTS AND EMPI.Q"\'El'1I OF BELTON, MISSOllII AND m; FRANCBISEDUT1UJ1ES FROM OOINO UPON SAID EASEMENT AND AS 
MUCH OF 11IE ADJOINING LANDS A1J MAY BE REASONABLY NllrnSSAllY IN IIXWlOSlNG TBB nGHr9 GRANI1lD BY 111B 
EAlll!MENTS. NO EXCAVATION Oil FILL SHALL BE MADE OR OPERATION OF ANY nND Oil NATURE SHALL BE PBRFOnmD WHICH 
WILL REDUCE OR.INCREASE TIIBEAR'IH COVEilAOE OVER THEUI1LITIE!IABOVESTATEDOR THBAPPUR.TENANCE!l IHEitEro 
WITII0UrTHEWIUITHNAPl'ROVALOPTHEDIRECTOII.OF1'UBLICWCXlU,ASTOAILBASHMmmlDBlllCATEDTOTIIBCITY. 

983 
•----ACCl!Nl!Aal!lll!NTI A30FEETINGlll!SS/IIGRBSSACCESSEASEMI!NTWILLBBCREATBDWITHTIIISPLATOF 
"BAYSPU.CE"FOR THEPUD'OSEOFB0111:TIACI"S TOUI1LIZB111BEXISTINODRIVEWAY. 

Sllll!l!Tal STKEETS SHOWN ON TIIIS PLAT AND NOT HERETOFORE DEDICATED FORPUBIJC USE Ml STREETRIGIIT.OF-WAY, AilE 
BEREBYSODIDTCATED. 

IN Tl!Sll• ONY Wlll!lmOFI TIIB UNDERSIGNED OWNERS HAVE SlJBSCRIBFJ) IHEIRNAME!I ON TIIIS 

--~""· 

STA'IEOFMISSOURI ) 

'" ) 

BEITRl!MHMBHREDTI!ATONTHIS ____ DAYrn<_~20l3,BEFOREME,AN<YrAII.YPUBIJCINANDFOII.SAID 
COUN'IY AND STATE, CAME, MARTIN L BAYS, OWNER, AND DONALD G BAYS, OWNER, TO ME PERSONALLY KNOWN TO BE 111B 
SAME PKRSONS WHO EXllCUTBD TIIB POIIEGOING INSTRUMHNT OF WRITING AND DIIl.Y ACKNOWLEDGl!D 111E EXI!CUTION OF =-:. TESTIMONY WHEREOF, l HA VB BBREUNTO SET MY HAND AND AFFIXED MY NOTAllY SEAL nm DAY AND YEAR ABOVE 

MY COMMISSION EXP.IRES: 

LAND DESCRIPTION: 
ALL 111AT PART OF SOU'IHBAST QUARTER OP TIIB NORTIIBAST QUARTER OP =~==Tl~~~~ro:s~~~~ 
THB NOII.TJIEAST COINER OF &AID NORTHEAST QUARTER; lHEN"CE scrum 

~:~;~rii~:~~~~lBB~~~~~ 
HI!REIN DE!ICIIBBD; THENCE CONTINUlNO scrum 02°53'27" WEST, ALONG 

SAIDEASTLINE, A DISTANCBOF330.59FEBT;'IHENCENORTII85-S"34'WEST, 
A DISTANCE OF 1302.12FIIIIT; T.HENCBNOR.'IH02°5B' 4!l"EAST,ADISTANCEOF 
331.15 Fl!BT; 111ENCB SCU1H 85' 54' 03" EAST, A msTANCE OF 1301.61 FEET TO 

THBPOINTOFBEOINNING.CONTAINING9.llllACRES,MOilEORLESS. 

l 
,Ounm.<B>"CORNB><, NORnnwITQUAATID<, l 

SEC23, TWP46N, RN033W ~ IUNE26,2023 

$HT I OF I SI 

071



 

 
 

R2023-88 
COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 

 
Title:   Formal Acceptance of Southview Commerce Center 4th Plat Public  

Infrastructure 
 
Agenda Date:  August 22, 2023 
 
Presented by:  Greg Rokos, Assistant City Manager 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 

• Chapter 36, Article 5, Section 36-111. Acceptance of Improvements. (b.) states; Upon the 
determination by the City Council, after consideration of the opinion of the building inspector that 
there are no defects, deficiencies, or deviations in the improvements, and that all improvements 
have been installed in conformance with the approved engineering drawings, and with the 
requirements of these regulations, the City Council shall by resolution or by letter, respectively, 
formally accept such improvements. The improvements shall become the property of the City 
Council or appropriate utility company involved. 

 
Financial/Budget Considerations 

• There are no Financial or Budget Considerations relating to this resolution. 
 
Legal Considerations 

• There are no Legal Considerations relating to this resolution. 
 
Policy Considerations 

• There are no Policy Considerations relating to this resolution. 
 
Staff Recommendation 

• Staff recommends approval of the proposed resolution. 

INTEGRITY & DElJICA TIDN TD SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

072



R2023-88       
 
A RESOLUTION FORMALLY ACCEPTING THE SOUTHVIEW COMMERCE 
CENTER 4TH PLAT NEW PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE OF 782 FEET OF SANITARY 
SEWER; 2,252 FEET OF 8” WATERLINE; 1,652 FEET OF 12” WATERLINE; AND A 
TWO-YEAR MAINTENANCE BOND IN THE AMOUNT OF $778,189.76. 
  
WHEREAS, Section 36-111 of the Unified Development Code provides for formal acceptance 
of public improvements by the City of Belton; and   

 
WHEREAS, Southview Commerce Center 4th Plat new public infrastructure was installed, 
inspected, and tested per City of Belton standards including 782 feet of sanitary sewer; 2.252 feet 
of 8” waterline; and 12” waterline. The City has received a two-year maintenance bond for the 
above-mentioned new public infrastructure in the amount of $778,189.76. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Southview Commerce Center 4th Plat sanitary sewer and waterlines are 
hereby formally accepted by the City of Belton and shall become the property of the City. 
  
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval.  
 
Duly read and passed this _____ day of _____, 2023. 
         

______________________________ 
 Mayor Norman K. Larkey, Sr. 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

______________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

073



STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
COUNTY OF CASS      )  SS. 
CITY OF BELTON        ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the _____ day of _____, 2023, and adopted at a meeting of the City 
Council held the _____ day of _____, 2023 by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
ABSENT:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
             
       _______________________________ 
       Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 

of the City of Belton, Missouri 

074



 

  
CITY OF BELTON – PUBLIC WORKS 
MEMORANDUM 
 

 

Date:   July 31, 2023 
To:       Greg Rokos, Assistant City Manager  
From:   Ronald Raines, Public Works Senior Engineering Technician   
Subject:  Southview Commerce Center 4th Plat Public Infrastructure Acceptance 

  
 

 

The Public Infrastructure for Southview Commerce Center 4th Plat Subdivision is complete. These 

public improvements consist of 782 feet of Sanitary Sewer, 2,252 feet of 8” waterline, and 1,652 feet  

of 12” waterline. These improvements have been installed, inspected, and tested per City of Belton 

standards. We have received maintenance bonds for the above-mentioned public improvements in the 

amount of $778,198.76.  

 

These improvements are ready for formal acceptance by the City Council. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 PUBllC WOIIS 

075



SVCC Building 4 - Accepted Infrastructure 

o -- ~ --

0 Sanitary Manhole 

Sanitary Sewer 

• Public Hydrant 

Public Water Line 

11\\\~ '\I~ .~ \,;'. .· 31 Accepted lnfrastructu re \ · ~~. • • -cA-, · · 
, 

• 

076



 

 
 

R2023-89 
COUNCIL ACTION REPORT 

 
Title:   Audit Engagement Letter FY23 with BT&Co. 
 
Agenda Date:  August 22, 2023 
 
Presented by:  Joe Warren, City Manager 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background 

• With the turnover in administration and then the associated turnover in the finance department, 
the City fell behind its audit schedule beginning with FY22. 

• The FY22 audit was begun in November of 2022, but the current firm has been unable to 
complete the audit to date and is now expecting it to be September before they can fully dedicate 
staff toward its completion. 

• A normal audit process is 2-3 months from beginning to final report. 
• Under most circumstances, and according to our finance policies, we would put these services 

out to an open bid process. 
• Since FY22 is not yet completed, the City is now behind on the FY23 audit as well. 
• FY23 audit cannot commence until the FY22 audit is completed. 
• The City Manager had worked with the firm BT&Co. while working with his previous employer 

at the City of Atchison. BT&Co. was always timely, professional, and fair in dealing with 
Atchison’s audits and Atchison has successfully earned the GFOA Certificate of Achievement 
for Excellence in Financial Reporting while working with BT&Co. 

• Given the emergency nature of our audit situation, staff is asking Council to consider skipping 
the bid process for a short, 2-year agreement with BT&Co. to get us caught up for FY23 and also 
do FY24. 

• BT&Co. informed staff that to only do one audit before going out to bid would require the firm 
to accelerate firm staff commitment amortization into one billing cycle, which would result in an 
expensive audit for FY23. A 2-year agreement would allow the firm to amortize staff expense 
over two years, which would bring the costs of the audits into line with what the City is currently 
paying for these services. 

• If for some reason the FY22 audit is not completed by our current firm in the next couple 
months, BT&Co. is prepared to engage for that year’s reporting as well. 

 
 
Financial/Budget Considerations 

• The fee for the FY23 audit is $62,000 for the comprehensive audit, with an added expense of 
$5,000 for any single audits necessary. A single audit of federal expenditures is expected to be 
necessary for FY23, so that would bring the total to $67,000. 

INTEGRITY & DEDICATION TO SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

077



 

 
 

• By comparison, our audit for FY22 with our current firm is at the rate of $65,000 for the 
comprehensive audit with a $2,000 fee for single audits ($67,000). 

 
 
Legal Considerations 

• Council has the legal authority to approve purchases outside the scope of financial policies under 
special circumstances. 

• The resolution has been reviewed by the city attorney. 
 
 
Policy Considerations 

• This resolution is for the FY23 audit only. An engagement letter for FY24 would come before 
the council prior to the beginning of that year’s audit. 

• The last step in bringing the finances in order is completing external audits to ensure that the 
City is following generally accepted financial practices and reporting norms.  

• Without up-to-date audit reports, the City is unable to engage in any major debt financing efforts, 
especially the letting of General Obligation or other bonds – our credit rating would be adversely 
effected without current audit statements. 

• Once the City is caught up with its audits, staff will prepare an RFP for audit services for FY25. 
 
 
Staff Recommendation 

• Staff recommends approval of the resolution and the engagement with BT&Co. for the FY23 
audit. 

 

INTEGRITY & DEDICATION TO SERVICE / 520 MAIN ST, BELTON, M0,64012 / 8/6.33/.433/ / WWW.BELTON.ORG 

078



R2023-89 
 
A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE ENGAGEMENT OF BT&CO. TO AUDIT THE 
CITY FINANCIAL RECORDS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton Charter Section 3.12 requires an independent audit of all city 
accounts and management report at least once a year in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principals; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Federal government requires recipients of Federal grants of at least $750,000 in 
a single fiscal year to receive an OMB A-133 compliance audit; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton has yet to receive the FY2022 competed audit from its currently 
contracted firm and is already late in completing the FY2022 and FY2023 audits; and 
 
WHEREAS, BT&Co. has an exceptional reputation in the field and is willing to schedule the 
FY2023 audit on short notice and out of sync with its normal audit calendar; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton needs to urgently complete the FY2023 audit as soon as the 
FY2022 audit is completed. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. That the engagement letter of BT&Co. to conduct the FY2023 City audit and OMB 
Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, when 
required, is hereby approved. A copy of the engagement letter is attached as Exhibit A and 
considered part of this resolution. 

Section 2.  That the City Manager is hereby authorized and directed to execute the letter on 
behalf of the City. 

Section 3.  That this resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and 
approval.  
 

Duly read and passed this 22nd day of August, 2023. 
  
             
             
        Mayor Norman K. Larkey Sr. 

 
ATTEST: 

 
             

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

079



 
STATE OF MISSOURI )       
CITY OF BELTON        ) SS 
COUNTY OF CASS      ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the___ day of________, 2023 and adopted at a meeting of the City 
Council held the ___ day of _________, 2023 by the following vote, to wit: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
  
ABSENT:  COUNCILMEMBER:  
             
        ________________________ 
        Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
        of the City of Belton, Missouri 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

080



[BT&CoJ 
Cuti/ltd' Pablit Accountants 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
506 Main Street 
Belton, Missouri 64012 

August 14, 2023 

The Objective and Scope of the Audit of the Financial Statements 

You have requested that we audit the City of Belton, Missouri's (the City) governmental activities, 
business-type activities, each major fund, and aggregate remaining fund information as of and for the year 
ended March 31, 2023 which collectively comprise the basic financial statements. We will also apply 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and will report on whether supplementary 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. --... 

We are pleased to confirm our understanding of this audit engagement by means of this letter. Our 
acceptance of this engagement is subject to our satisfactorily completing our normal engagement 
acceptance procedures, including review of the audit documentation of your previous auditors. We will 
notify you promptly if we become aware of anything during our acceptance procedures or the review of 
audit documentation that results in our not being able to continue this engagement. 

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a 
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and Government Auditing Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States (GAS) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material ifthere is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based 
on the financial statements. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher 
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

An Independently Owned Member, RSM US Alliance 

;,; 
<J> 
cr, 
cr, 
cr, 
0 
A 

0 
T 
~ 
~ 

'"' m 
,, 00 

0 
0 
0, 
w 
~ 

"' "' "' cr, 

--, 

:\ 
O" 
~ 

"' ~ 
a. 
n 
0 
0 ,, 
"' 
0 
0 
3 

RSM US All!ance member firms are separate and Independent businesses and legal entities that are responsible for their own acts and omissions, and each are separate and 
Independent from RSM US LlP. RSM US LLP ls the U,5. member firm of RSM lnternatlona~ a global network of Independent audit, tax, and consultlng firms. Members of RSM us 

Al!ianai have access to RSM International resources through RSM US LLP but are not member firms of RSM International. 

081



[BT&CoJ 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page2 

You have also requested that BT&Co., P.A. perform the audit of the City as of March 31, 2023 to satisfy 
the audit requirements imposed by the Single Audit Act and Subpart F of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (the Uniform Guidance). 

The Responsibilities of the Auditor 

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS, GAS, the Uniform Guidance, and the U.S. Office 
of Management and Budget's (0MB) Compliance Supplement. Those standards or guides require that we 
comply with applicable ethical requirements. As part of an audit in accordance with GAAS, GAS, and the 
Uniform Guidance, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, 
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
City's internal control. However, we will communicate to you in writing concerning any significant deficiencies 
or material weaknesses in internal control relevant to the audit of the financial statements that we have identified 
during the audit. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements, 
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

• Conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events, considered in the 
aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the City's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable 
period of time. 

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, together with the inherent limitations of internal control, 
an unavoidable risk that some material misstatements may not be detected exists, even though the audit is 
properly planned and performed in accordance with GAAS and GAS. Because the determination of waste 
or abuse is subjective, GAS does not require auditors to perform specific procedures to detect waste or 
abuse in financial statement audits. ' 

We will communicate to the City Council (a) any fraud involving senior management and fraud (whether 
caused by senior management or other employees) that causes a material misstatement of the financial 

082



Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 3 

statements that becomes known to us during the audit, and (b) any instances of noncompliance with laws 
and regulations that we become aware of during the audit (unless they are clearly inconsequential). 

We are responsible for the compliance audit of major programs under the Uniform Guidance, including 
the determination of major programs, the consideration of internal control over compliance, and reporting 
responsibilities. 

Our report on internal control will include any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in controls 
of which we become aware as a result of obtaining an understanding of internal control and performing 
tests of internal control consistent with requirements of the standards and regulations identified above. 
Our report on compliance matters will address material errors, fraud, violations of compliance obligations, 
and other responsibilities imposed by state and federal statutes and regulations or assumed by contracts; 
and any state or federal grant, entitlement or loan program questioned costs of which we become aware, 
consistent with requirements of the standards and regulations identified above. 

We will maintain our independence in accordance with the standards of the American Institute of Certified 
Public Accountants and GAS. 

The Responsibilities of Management and Identification of the Applicable Financial Reporting 
Framework 

Management is responsible for: 

I. Identifying and ensuring that the City complies with the laws and regulations applicable to its activities, and for 
informing us about all known violations of such laws or regulations, other than those that are clearly 
inconsequential; 

2. The design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect fraud, and for informing us 
about all known or suspected fraud affecting the City involving management, employees who have significant 
roles in internal control, and others where the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements; 
and 

3. Informing us of its knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the City received in 
communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, short sellers, vendors, customers or 
others. 

Management is responsible for the preparation of the required supplementary information which 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP) require to be 
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Management is also responsible for the preparation 
of the supplementary information presented in relation to the financial statements as a whole in accordance 

083



[BT&Coj 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page4 

with U.S. GAAP. Management agrees to include the auditor's report on the supplementary information in 
any document that contains the supplementary information and indicates that the auditor has reported on 
such supplementary information. Management also agrees to present the supplementary information with 
the audited financial statements or, if the supplementary information will not be presented with audited 
financial statements, to make the audited financial statements readily available to the intended users of the 
supplementary information no later than the date of issuance of the supplementary information and the 
auditor's report thereon. 

The City Council is responsible for informing us of its views about the risks of fraud, waste or abuse 
within the City, and its knowledge of any fraud, waste or abuse or suspected fraud, waste or abuse affecting 
the City. 

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance acknowledge and understand that they have responsibility: 

I. For the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (U.S. GAAP); 

2. To evaluate subsequent events through the date the financial statements are issued or available to be issued, and 
to disclose the date through which subsequent events were evaluated in the financial statements. Management 
also agrees that it will not conclude on subsequent events earlier than the date of the management representation 
letter referred to below; 

3. For the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; 

4. For establishing and maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for informing us of all 
significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of such controls of which it has 
knowledge; 

5. For report distribution; and 

6. To provide us with: 

a. Access to all information of which management is aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements including information relevant to disclosures; 

b. Draft financial statements, including information relevant to their preparation and fair presentation, when 
needed, to allow for the completion of the audit in accordance with the proposed time line; 

c. Additional information that we may request from management for the purpose of the audit; and 

084



[BT&Co] 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City ofBelton, Missouri 
Page 5 

d. Unrestricted access to persons within the City from whom we determine it necessary to obtain audit 
evidence. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information 
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial 
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work 
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are 
required to describe it in our report. 

As part of our audit process, we will request from management and, when appropriate, those charged with 
governance written confirmation concerning representations made to us in connection with the audit, including 
among other items: 

I. That management has fulfilled its responsibilities as set out in the terms of this Arrangement Letter; and 

2. That it believes the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated by us during the current engagement 
and pertaining to the latest period presented are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the 
financial statements taken as a whole. 

Because the audit will be performed in accordance with the Single Audit Act and the Uniform Guidance, 
management is responsible for (a) identifying all federal awards received and expended; (b) preparing and 
the fair presentation of the schedule of expenditures of federal awards (including notes and noncash 
assistance received) in accordance with Uniform Guidance requirements; ( c) internal control over 
compliance; ( d) compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions of federal 
awards; ( e) making us aware of significant vendor relationships where the vendor is responsible for 
program compliance; (t) following up and taking corrective action on audit findings, including the 
preparation of a summary schedule of prior audit findings and a corrective action plan; (g) timely and 
accurate completion of the data collection form and (h) submitting the reporting package and data 
collection form. 

Reporting 

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the City's financial statements. Our report 
will be addressed to the City Council of the City. Circumstances may arise in which our report may differ 
from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit. Depending on the nature of these 
circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinion, or add an emphasis-of-matter paragraph 
or other-matter paragraph to our auditor's report. 

If circumstances arise relating to the condition of the City's records, the availability of appropriate audit 
evidence or indications of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements because 
of error, fraudulent financial reporting or misappropriation of assets which, in our professional judgment, 

085



[BT&Co] 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 6 

prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion, we retain the unilateral right to take any 
course of action permitted by professional standards, including, but not limited to, declining to express an 
opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing from the engagement. 

In addition to our report on the City's financial statements, we will also issue the following reports: 

I. A report on the fairness of the presentation of the City's schedule of expenditures of federal awards for the year 
ending March 31, 2023; 

2. Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit 
of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with GAS; 

3. Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program and Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 
Required by the Uniform Guidance; 

4. An accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Records and Assistance 

During the course of our engagement, we may accumulate records containing data that should be reflected 
in the City's books and records. The City will determine that all such data, if necessary, will be so reflected. 
Accordingly, the City will not expect us to maintain copies of such records in our possession. 

The assistance to be supplied by City personnel, including the preparation of schedules and analyses of 
accounts, will be discussed and coordinated with Casey Koehn, Finance Director. The timely and accurate 
completion of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the audit and issuance of our audit 
report. 

Nonaudit Services 

In connection with our audit, you have requested us to perform certain nonaudit services: 

I) Preparing the financial statements and note disclosures. 
2) Assistance with the Federal Audit Clearinghouse submission. 
3) Preparing journal entries. 

GAS independence standards require that the auditor maintain independence so that opinions, findings, 
conclusions, judgments and recommendations will be impartial and viewed as impartial by reasonable and 
informed third parties. Before we agree to provide a non-audit service to the City, we determine whether 
providing such a service would create a significant threat to our independence for GAS audit purposes, 

086



[BT&CoJ 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 7 

either by itself or in aggregate with other non-audit services provided. A critical component of our 
determination is consideration of management's ability to effectively oversee the non-audit services to be 
performed. The City has agreed that Casey Koehn, Finance Director, possesses suitable skill, knowledge 
or experience and that the individual understands the non-audit services to be performed sufficiently to 
oversee them. Accordingly, the management of City agrees to the following: 

I. The City has designated Casey Koehn, Finance Director, as a senior member of management who possesses 
suitable skill, knowledge and experience to oversee the services; 

2. Casey Koehn, Finance Director, will assume all management responsibilities for subject matter and scope of 
the non-audit services; 

3. The City will evaluate the adequacy and results of the services performed; and 

4. The City accepts responsibility for the results and ultimate use of the services. 

GAS further requires that we establish an understanding with the City's management and those charged 
with governance of the objectives of the non-audit services, the services to be performed, the City's 
acceptance of its responsibilities, the auditors' responsibilities and any limitations of the non-audit 
services. We believe this Arrangement Letter documents that understanding. 

Other Relevant Information 

In accordance with GAS, a copy of our most recent peer review report is enclosed for your information. 

Fees and Costs 

Our fees for the services described above are based upon the value of the services performed and the time 
required by the individuals assigned to the engagement plus directly billed expenses. Our fee estimate and 
completion of our work are based upon the following criteria: 

I. Anticipated cooperation from City personnel; 

2. Timely responses to our inquiries; 

3. Timely completion and delivery of client assistance requests; 

4. Timely communication of all significant accounting and financial reporting matters; 

5. The assumption that unexpected circumstances will not be encountered during the engagement. 

087



[BT&Cd] 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 8 

If any of the aforementioned criteria are not met, then fees may increase. We propose that our fee for this 
audit engagement, which includes out-of-pocket expenses, will be $ 62,000. Should a single audit be 
required, the fee will be an additional $ 5,000 per major program. The quoted fee for the year ended 
March 31, 2023 will be the maximum for the work described in this letter unless the scope of the 
engagement is changed, the assistance which the City has agreed to furnish is not provided, or unexpected 
conditions are encountered. No changes will be made in the maximum agreed to amount without 
discussion with you regarding the proposed change. All other provisions of this letter will survive any fee 
adjustment. No changes will be made to the fee without discussion with you regarding the proposed 
change. Interim billings will be submitted as work progresses and as expenses are incurred. Billings are 
due upon submission. 

In accordance with our policy, a finance charge of I% per month will be applied to balances that are over 
60 days old. Payments will be applied first to the accrued finance charges and then to outstanding invoices. 

Use of Subcontractors and Third-Party Products 

From time to time and depending upon the circumstances, we may, in our sole discretion, use qualified 
third-party service providers to assist us in providing professional services to you. In such circumstances, 
it may be necessary for us to disclose Personal Information or Confidential Information (as both terms are 
defined below) to them. You hereby consent to us sharing your information, including Confidential 
Information and Personal Information, with these third-party service providers on the same basis as we 
would be permitted to share information with one of our employees; provided that such recipients are 
bound by written obligations of confidentiality that are as protective of your Confidential Information as 
the confidentiality terms set forth herein. You acknowledge and agree that our use of a third-party service 
providers may involve the processing, input, disclosure, movement, transfer, and storage of your 
information and data outside of our technology infrastructure. 

We also may provide services to you using certain third-party hardware, software, software services, 
managed services (including, but not limited to, web hosting, data security, data back-up, email security, 
or similar services subject to direct end-user or subscription agreements), applications, and equipment 
(collectively, "Third-Party Products"). You acknowledge that your or our use of a Third-Party Product 
may involve the processing, input, disclosure, movement, transfer, and storage of information provided 
by you to us, including Personal Information and Confidential Information, within the Third-Party 
Product's infrastructure and not ours, and that the terms ofuse and service set forth in the end-user license, 
subscription, or other agreement with the licensor of such Third-Party Product, including, but not limited 
to, applicable laws, will govern all obligations of such licensor relating to data privacy, storage, recovery, 
security, and processing within such Third-Party Product's infrastructure, as well as, the service levels 
associated with such Third-Party Product. You hereby consent to the disclosure of your information, 
including your Confidential Information and Personal Information, to the licensors of such Third-Party 
Products for the purpose described herein. 

088



Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 9 

You acknowledge that your or our use of Third-Party Products may be subject to limitations, delays, 
interruptions, errors, and other problems which are beyond our control, including, without limitation, 
internet outage or lack of availability related to updates, upgrades, patches, fixes, maintenance, or other 
issues. We will not be liable for any delays, delivery failures, or other losses or damages resulting from 
such issues. Nor will we be held responsible or liable for any loss, or unauthorized use or disclosure, of 
any information or data provided by you, including, without limitation, Personal Information provided by 
you, resulting from your or our use of a Third-Party Product. 

Use and Ownership; Access to Audit Documentation 

The Audit Documentation for this engagement is the property ofBT&Co., P.A. For the purposes of this 
Arrangement Letter, the term "Audit Documentation" shall mean the confidential and proprietary records 
of BT&Co., P.A.'s audit procedures performed, relevant audit evidence obtained, other audit-related 
workpapers, and conclusions reached. Audit Documentation shall not include custom-developed 
documents, data, reports, analyses, recommendations, and deliverables authored or prepared by BT &Co., 
P.A. for the City under this Arrangement Letter, or any documents belonging to the City or furnished to 
BT&Co., P.A. by the City. 

Review of Audit Documentation by a successor auditor or as part of due diligence is subject to applicable 
BT &Co., P.A. policies, and will be agreed to, accounted for and billed separately. Any such access to our 
Audit Documentation is subject to a successor auditor signing an Access & Release Letter substantially in 
BT&Co., P.A.'s form. BT&Co., P.A. reserves the right to decline a successor auditor's request to review 
our workpapers. 

In the event we are required by government regulation, subpoena or other legal process to produce our 
documents or our personnel as witnesses with respect to our engagement for the City, the City will, so 
long as we are not a party to the proceeding in which the information is sought, reimburse us for our 
professional time and expenses, as well as the fees and expenses of our counsel, incurred in responding to 
such requests. 

You acknowledge and grant your assent that representatives of the cognizant or oversight agency or their 
designee, other government audit staffs, and the U.S. Government Accountability Office shall have access 
to the Audit Documentation upon their request and that we shall maintain the Audit Documentation for a 
period of at least three years after the date of the report, or for a longer period ifwe are requested to do so 
by the cognizant or oversight agency. Access to the requested Audit Documentation will be provided under 
the supervision ofBT&Co., P.A. audit personnel and at a location designated by our firm. 

089



[BT&Coj 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 10 

Indemnification, Limitation of Liability, and Claim Resolution 

Because BT &Co., P.A. will rely on the City and its management and City Council to discharge the 
foregoing responsibilities, the City agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and release BT &Co., P.A. and its 
partners, principals, officers, directors, employees, affiliates, subsidiaries, contractors, Subcontractors, 
agents, representatives, successors, or assigns from all claims, liabilities, losses and costs arising in 
circumstances where there has been a knowing misrepresentation by a member of the City's management. 

The City and BT &Co., P.A. agree that no claim arising out of services rendered pursuant to this 
arrangement letter shall be filed more than the earlier of two years after the date of the audit report issued 
by BT &Co., P.A. or the date of this arrangement letter if no report has been issued. In no event shall either 
party be liable to the other for claims of punitive, consequential, special, or indirect damages. BT &Co., 
P.A. 's liability for all claims, damages and costs of the City arising from this engagement is limited to the 
amount of fees paid by the City to BT &Co., P.A. for the services rendered under this arrangement letter. 

If any dispute arises among the parties hereto, the parties agree first to try .in good faith to settle the dispute 
by mediation administered by the American Arbitration Association under its Rules for Professional 
Accounting and Related Services Disputes before resorting to litigation. The costs of any mediation 
proceeding shall be shared equally by all parties. 

The City and BT&Co., P.A. both agree that any dispute over fees charged by BT&Co., P.A. to the City 
will be submitted for resolution by arbitration in accordance with the Rules for Professional Accounting 
and Related Services Disputes of the American Arbitration Association. Such arbitration shall be binding 
and final. In agreeing to arbitration, we both acknowledge that, in the event of a dispute over fees charged 
by BT&Co., P.A., each ofus is giving up the right to have the dispute decided in a court oflaw before a 
judge or jury and instead we are accepting the use of arbitration for resolution. 

Confidentiality 

BT &Co., P.A. and the City may, from time to time, disclose Confidential Information (as defined below) 
to one another. Accordingly, BT &Co., P.A. and the City agree as the recipient of such Confidential 
Information (the "Receiving Party") to keep strictly confidential all Confidential Information provided to 
it by the disclosing party (the "Disclosing Party") and use, modify, store, and copy such Confidential 
Information only as necessary to perform its obligations and exercise its rights under this Arrangement 
Letter and for no other purpose or use. Except as otherwise set forth herein, the Receiving Party may only 
disclose the Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party to its personnel, agents, and representatives 
who are subject to obligations of confidentiality at least as restrictive as those set forth herein and only for 
the purpose of exercising its rights and fulfilling its obligations hereunder. To avoid any doubt, BT &Co., 
P.A. is permitted to disclose the City's Confidential Information to BT&Co., P.A.'s personnel, agents, and 

090



Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 11 

representatives for the purpose of maintaining compliance with applicable laws and professional, 
regulatory, and/or ethical standards. 

As used herein, "Confidential Information" means, information in any form, oral, graphic, written, 
electronic, machine-readable or hard copy consisting of: (i) any nonpublic information provided by the 
Disclosing Party, including, but not limited to, all of its inventions, designs, data, source and object code, 
programs, program interfaces, know-how, trade secrets, techniques, ideas, discoveries, marketing and 
business plans, pricing, profit margins and/or similar information; (ii) any information that the Disclosing 
Party identifies as confidential; or (iii) any information that, by its very nature, a person in the same or 
similar circumstances would understand should be treated as confidential, including, but not limited to, 
this Arrangement Letter. 

As used herein, the term "Confidential Information" will not include information that: (i) is publicly 
available at the time of disclosure by the Disclosing Party; (ii) becomes publicly available by publication 
or otherwise after disclosure by the Disclosing Party, other than by breach of the confidentiality obligations 
set forth herein by the Receiving Party; (iii) was lawfully in the Receiving Party's possession, without 
restriction as to confidentiality or use, at the time of disclosure by the Disclosing Party; (iv) is provided to 
the Receiving Party without restriction as to confidentiality or use by a third party without violation of 
any obligation to the Disclosing Party; or (v) is independently developed by employees or agents of the 
Receiving Party who did not access or use the Confidential Information. 

The Receiving Party will treat the Disclosing Party's Confidential Information with the same degree of 
care as the Receiving Party treats its own confidential and proprietary information, but in no event will 
such standard of care be less than a reasonable standard of care. The Receiving Party will promptly notify 
the Disclosing Party if it becomes aware that any of the Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party 
has been used or disclosed in violation of this Arrangement Letter. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that the Receiving Party becomes legally compelled to 
disclose any of the Confidential Information of the Disclosing Party, or as may be required by applicable 
regulations or professional standards, the Receiving Party will use commercially reasonable efforts to 
provide the Disclosing Party with notice prior to disclosure, to the extent permitted by law. 

Personal Information 

As used herein, the term "Personal Information" means any personal information that directly or indirectly 
identifies a natural person as may be defined by applicable privacy, data protection or cybersecurity laws, 
and includes, but is not limited to, nonpublic, personally identifiable information such as Social Security 
numbers, driver's license numbers or state-issued identification card numbers, credit or debit card numbers 
with or without any required security code, number or passwords, health information, and other personal 

091



[BT&C()J 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 12 

information as defined by applicable laws, whether of the City or the City's customers or other third 
parties. 

Each party agrees that it will not transmit to the other, in any manner, (i) Personal Information that is not 
needed to render the services hereunder, and (ii) Personal Information that has not been encrypted. In the 
event you transmit to us Personal Information in an unencrypted format or via unencrypted means, you 
agree that we have no obligation to notify you of the foregoing. 

You represent and warrant that you have provided all notices and obtained all consents required under 
applicable data protection laws prior to your collection, use and disclosure to us or our Subcontractors of 
such Personal Information and shall take reasonable steps to ensure that such Personal Information does 
not include irrelevant or unnecessary information about individuals. 

We will use all such City-provided Personal Information, if at all, only for the purposes described in this 
Arrangement Letter. The parties agree that as part of the performance of the services as described in this 
Arrangement Letter, and as part of the direct business relationship between the parties, we may, at our 
election, use the Personal Information to improve the services and for other similar internal and business 
purposes. We agree to maintain appropriate security measures to protect such Personal Information in 
accordance with applicable laws. 

If we become aware of an unauthorized acquisition or use of City-provided Personal Information, we will 
promptly inform you of such unauthorized acquisition or use as required by applicable laws and, upon 
your written request, reasonably cooperate with you at your sole cost in support of any breach notification 
requirements as imposed upon you by applicable laws. 

Retention of Records 

We will return to you all original records you provide to us in connection with this engagement. Further, 
in addition to providing you with those deliverables set forth in this Arrangement Letter, we will provide 
to you a copy of any records we prepare or accumulate in connection with such deliverables which are not 
otherwise reflected in your books and records without which your books and records would be incomplete. 
You have the sole responsibility for retaining and maintaining in your possession or custody all of your 
financial and nonfinancial records related to this engagement. We will not host, and will not accept 
responsibility to host, any of your records. We, however, may maintain a copy of any records of yours 
necessary for us to comply with applicable law and/or professional standards. Any such records retained 
by us will be subject to the confidentiality obligations set forth herein and destroyed in accordance with 
our record retention policies. 

092



[BT&Coj 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 

------------------------------- -- -

City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 13 

Termination 

Your failure to make full payment of any and all undisputed amounts invoiced in a timely manner 
constitutes a material breach for which we may refuse to provide deliverables and/or, upon written notice, 
suspend or terminate our services under this Arrangement Letter. We will not be liable to you for any 
resulting loss, damage or expense connected with the suspension or termination of our services due to 
your failure to make full payment of undisputed amounts invoiced in a timely manner. 

In the event you terminate this engagement, you will pay us for all services rendered (including 
deliverables and products delivered), expenses incurred, and noncancelable commitments made by us on 
your behalf through the effective date of termination. 

We will not be responsible for any delay or failure in our performance resulting from acts beyond our 
reasonable control or unforeseen or unexpected circumstances, such as, but not limited to, acts of God, 
government or war, riots or strikes, disasters, fires, floods, epidemics, pandemics or outbreaks of 
communicable disease, cyberattacks, and internet or other system or network outages. At your option, you 
may terminate this Arrangement Letter where our services are delayed more than 120 days; however, you 
are not excused from paying us for all amounts owed for services rendered and deliverables provided prior 
to the termination of this Arrangement Letter. 

When an engagement has been suspended at the request of management or those charged with governance 
and work on that engagement has not recommenced within 120 days of the request to suspend our work, 
we may, at our sole discretion, terminate this Arrangement Letter without further obligation to you. 
Resumption of our work following termination may be subject to our client acceptance procedures and, if 
resumed, will require additional procedures not contemplated in this Arrangement Letter. Accordingly, the 
scope, timing and fee arrangement discussed in this Arrangement Letter will no longer apply. In order for 
us to recommence work, the execution of a new Arrangement Letter will be required. 

We may terminate this Arrangement Letter upon written notice if we determine that our continued 
performance would result in a violation of law, regulatory requirements, applicable professional or ethical 
standards, or our client acceptance or retention standards. 

The parties agree that those provisions of this Arrangement Letter which, by their context, are intended to 
survive, including, but not limited to, payment, limitations on liability, claim resolution, use and 
ownership, and confidentiality obligations, shall survive the termination of this Arrangement Letter. 

Miscellaneous 

We may mention your name and provide a general description of the engagement in our client lists and 
marketing materials. 

093



[BT&Co] 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 14 

You have informed us that you may issue public debt in the future and that you may include our report on 
your financial statements in the offering statement. You have further informed us that you do not intend 
for us to be associated with the proposed offering. 

We agree that our association with any proposed offering is not necessary, providing the City agrees to 
clearly indicate that we are not associated with the contents of any such official statement or memorandum. 
The City agrees that the following disclosure will be prominently displayed in any such official statement 
or memorandum: 

BT &Co., P.A., our independent auditor, has not been engaged to perform, and has not performed, since 
the date of its report included herein, any procedures on the financial statements addressed in that 
report. BT &Co., P.A. also has not performed any procedures relating to this [ official statement] 
[memorandum]. 

Our professional standards require that we perform certain additional procedures, on current and previous 
years' engagements, whenever a partner or professional employee leaves the firm and is subsequently 
employed by or associated with a client in a key position. Accordingly, you agree to compensate us for 
any additional costs incurred as a result of your employment of one of our partners, principals or 
employees. 

RSM US LLP will be available to support BT&Co., P.A. by rendering services related to the performance 
of the engagement. If a situation occurs in connection with the proposed engagement for which we would 
request the services of RSM US LLP, we will notify you and obtain permission from you before giving 
access to your records. We will maintain supervision, control and ultimate responsibility for the 
performance of this engagement. 

BT &Co., P.A. is independently owned and operated and assumes full responsibility for the quality of 
service delivered to our clients. We are responsible for our own client fee arrangements and maintenance 
of our client relationships. 

RSM US Alliance provides its members with access to resources of RSM US LLP. RSM US Alliance 
member firms are separate and independent businesses and legal entities that are responsible for their own 
acts and omissions, and each are separate and independent from RSM US LLP. RSM US LLP is the U.S. 
member firm of RSM International, a global network of independent audit, tax and consulting firms. 
Members of RSM US Alliance have access to RSM International resources through RSM US LLP but are 
not member firms of RSM US LLP and RSM International. RSM, the RSM logo and RSM US ALLIANCE 
are trademarks of RSM International Association or RSM US. The services and products provided by 
RSM US Alliance are proprietary to RSM US LLP. 

094



[BT&Cd) 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 15 

Entire Agreement 

This Arrangement Letter constitutes the complete and exclusive statement of agreement between BT &Co., 
P.A. and the City, and supersedes all prior agreements, understandings, and proposals, whether oral or 
written, relating to the subject matter of this Arrangement Letter. 

If any term or provision of this Arrangement Letter is determined to be invalid or unenforceable, such 
term or provision will be deemed stricken, and all other terms and provisions will remain in full force and 
effect. 

This Arrangement Letter may be amended or modified only by a written instrument executed by both 
parties. 

Electronic Signatures and Counterparts 

Each par(y hereto agrees that any electronic signature of a par(y to this Agreement Letter or any electronic 
signature to a document contemplated hereby (including any representation letter) is intended to 
authenticate such writing and shall be as valid, and have the same force and effect, as a manual signature. 
Any such electronically signed document shall be deemed (a) to be "written" or "in writing," (b) to have 
been signed and ( c) to constitute a record established and maintained in the ordinary course of business 
and an original written record when printed from electronic files. Each par(y hereto also agrees that 
electronic delivery of a signature to any such document (via email or otherwise) shall be as effective as 
manual delivery of a manual signature. For purposes hereof, "electronic signature" includes, but is not 
limited to, (a) a scanned copy (as a "pdf' (portable document format) or other replicating image) of a 
manual ink signature, (b) an electronic copy of a traditional signature affixed to a document, ( c) a signature 
incorporated into a document utilizing touchscreen capabilities or ( d) a digital signature. This 
Arrangement Letter may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which shall be considered an 
original instrument, but all of which shall be considered one and the same agreement. Paper copies or 
"printouts," of such documents if introduced as evidence in any judicial, arbitral, mediation or 
administrative proceeding, will be admissible as between the parties to the same extent and under the same 
conditions as other original business records created and maintained in documentary form. Neither party 
shall contest the admissibility of true and accurate copies of electronically signed documents on the basis 
of the best evidence rule or as not satisfying the business records exception to the hearsay rule. 

Please sign and return a copy of this Arrangement Letter to indicate your acknowledgment of, and 
agreement with, the arrangements for our audit of the financial statements, including our respective 
responsibilities. 

095



[BT&Cti] 

Mr. Joe Warren 
City Manager 
City of Belton, Missouri 
Page 16 

Acknowledgement and Acceptance 

Each party acknowledges that it has read and agrees to all of the terms and conditions contained herein. 
Each party and its signatory below represents that said signatory is a duly authorized representative of 
such party and has the requisite power and authority to bind such party to the undertakings and obligations 
contained herein. 

SAH:tls 
Enclosures 

Very truly yours, 

BT&CO., P.A. 

Stacey A. Hammond 
Director 

Confirmed on behalf of the City of Belton, Missouri: 

Joe Warren, City Manager Date 

A signed copy of this arrangement letter will be forwarded to the following pursuant to Government 
Auditing Standards Amendment No. 2, "Auditor Communication." 

City Council 
Casey Koehn, Finance Director 

096



BROWN 
SMITH 

WALLACE 

6 ClTYPLACE DRIVE, SUITE 900 ST. LOUIS, MO 63141 PH 314,983,1200 FX 314,983.1300 BROWNSMITHWALLACE.COM 

THE FIRM FOR GROWTH." 

Report on the Firm's System of Quality Control 

November 17, 2020 

To the Directors of 
BT&Co., P.A. 
and the Peer Review Committee of the Kansas Society of Certified Public Accountants 

We have reviewed the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of BT&Co., P.A. (the 
firm) in effect for the year ended June 30, 2020. Our peer review was conducted in accordance with the Standards 
for Perfotming and Reporting on .Peer Reviews established by the Peer Review Board of the American Institute 
of Ce1tified Public Accountants (Standards). 

A summary of the nature, objectives, scope, limitations of, and the procedures performed in a System Review as 
described in the Standards may be found at www.aicpa.org/prsummary. The summary also includes 
an explanation. of how engagements identified as not performed or reported in conformity with 
applicable professional standards, if any, are evaluated by a peer reviewer to determine a peer review rating. 

Firm's Responsibility 

The firm is responsible for designing a system of quality control and complying with it to provide the firm with 
reasonable assurance of perfonuing and reporting in .conformity with applicable professional standards in 
all material respects. The firm is also responsible for evaluating actions to promptly remediate engagements 
deemed. as not pe1formed or reported in conformity with professional staudards, when appropriate, and for 
remediating wealmesses in its system of quality control, if any. 

Peer Reviewer's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opiuion on the design. of the system of quality control and the firm's 
compliance therewith based on our review. 

Required Selections and Considerations 

Engagements selected for review included an engagement perfonned under Govemment Auditing Standards, 
including compliance audits under the Single Audit Act, and audits of employee benefit plans. 

As a pmt of our peer review, we considered reviews by regulatory entities as communicated by the firm, if 
applicable, in detennining the nature and extent of our procedures. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the system of quality control for the accounting and auditing practice of BT &Co., P.A. in effect 
for the year ended June 30, 2020, has been suitably designed and complied with to provide the firm 
with reasonable assurance of performing and reporting in conformity with applicable professional standards 
in all material respects. Firms can receive a rating of pass, pass with deficiency(ies) or fail. BT&Co., P.A. has 
received a peer review rating of pass. 

~ ~t'liH, .. Wo.11ou,, LL 1' 
Brown Smitl1 Wallace, LLP 

AN INDEPENDENT FIRM ASSOCIATED WITH MOORE GLOBAL NETWORK LIMITED 

MEMBER AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS 

BROWN SMITH WALLACE IS A MISSOURI LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP 

097



Minutes of the Belton City Council 
August 8, 2023 

City Hall Annex 
520 Main Street, Belton, Missouri 

 
Mayor Larkey called the public hearing to order at 6:01 p.m. 
 
A public hearing will be held at 6:00 p.m., August 8, 2023, at Belton City Hall Annex, 520 Main 
Street, during which citizens may be heard regarding property tax rates proposed to be set by the 
City of Belton.  The tax rates shall be set to produce the revenues required to support the budget 
for the fiscal year beginning April 1, 2023 and ending March 31, 2024.   The rates are based upon 
the current assessed valuation figures as provided by the Cass County Assessor’s Office.    Each 
tax rate is determined by dividing the amount of revenue, as authorized by the Missouri 
Constitution, by the current assessed valuation.  This value is multiplied times 100 resulting in a 
tax rate expressed in cents per $100 valuation.  
 

Assessed Valuation (applies to calendar year 2023):       
      (By Categories) 

 
 Current Tax Year 2023             Prior Tax Year 2022 
Real Estate $303,656,098 $267,838,407 
Personal Property $78,992,023 $67,966,855 
   
Total Assessed Valuation $382,648,121 $335,805,262 

=========          ========= 
 
Tax Levy (applies to City’s fiscal year): 
 
 Property Tax 

FY2024 Budget 
Proposed Tax Rate 

FY2024 
Prior Year Tax Rate 

FY2023 
    
General Fund $1,891,047 $0.4942 $0.4942 
Parks & Recreation    $841,443 $0.2199 $0.2199 
Debt Service $5,091,133 $1.3305 $1.3305 
    

Total $7,823,623 $2.0446 $2.0446 
                                                 ========                    ========                      ======== 
 
NOTE:   Assessed valuation figures are subject to change as determined by the Cass County 
Assessor.  These changes, should they occur, may impact the tax rates as shown above. 
 
There was no one in the audience to speak. Being no further business, Mayor Larkey adjourned 
the public hearing and called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 
Councilmember Pryan led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.  
 
Councilmembers present: Mayor Larkey, Dave Clark, Allyson Lawson, Chris Richardson, Rob 
Powell, James Pryan, Perry Gough, Angela Kraft 

098



 
Councilmember absent: Bret White 
 
Staff present: Joe Warren, City Manager; Greg Rokos, Assistant City Manager/Public Works 
Director; Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk; Matt Wright, Planning and Building Director; Padraic 
Corcoran, Attorney; Police Chief Scott Lyons; Fire Chief John Sapp; Casey Koehn, Finance 
Director 
 
PERSONAL APPEARANCES 
 
Dennis Hull, 710 Lacy Lane, Code Enforcement Advisory Committee member, spoke on the 
Rental Inspection Program and advocated for the five-year inspection for long-term rentals. 

 
Wanda Thompson, 1100 Main Street, Code Enforcement Advisory Committee member, spoke on 
the Rental Inspection Program and advocated to not have the five-year inspection for long-term 
rentals.  
 
Joe Warren, City Manager, introduced Charlie Duber, Communications and Marketing Specialist.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, gave the final reading of Bill No. 2023-37: An ordinance 
adding Article V to Chapter 10 of the Unified Development Code to implement a rental 
inspection program. 
Presented by Councilmember Clark, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Councilmember Powell 
moved to amend Bill No. 2023-37 to change the definitions of Property Manager and Landlord to 
the following: Property Manager- a person charged with operating a dwelling or dwelling unit 
and implementing City of Belton requirements when the landlord is unable or unavailable to 
personally attend to such details. The property manager must reside within 30 minutes of the 
dwelling or the dwelling unit. Councilmember Powell would like to add to the definition of 
Landlord- all landlords must employ a property manager if the landlord resides more than 30 
miles of the dwelling or dwelling unit. Councilmember Kraft seconded. There was discussion of 
the amendment and requiring a local property manager. Mr. Warren said staff has been looking at 
these changes, among others, for the new rental registration program coming to the City Council 
soon. Councilmembers Powell and Kraft withdrew their motion and will wait for the rental 
registration program changes. Councilmember Powell moved to amend Bill No. 2023-37 to add to 
section 10-142(a)(1) the sentence: However, regardless of occupancy, at least one inspection shall 
be conducted every five years for long-term occupancies. Councilmember Lawson seconded. 
Councilmember Powell said the Code Enforcement Advisory Committee and Planning 
Commission had recommended this. Councilmember Kraft said she was on the original committee 
whose intention was to have a mandatory inspection for everyone. Vote on the motion to amend 
failed with Councilmembers Pryan, Kraft, Powell, and Lawson voting in favor and 
Councilmembers Gough, Clark, Mayor Larkey, and Richardson voting against. Vote on the final 
reading was recorded: 
Ayes: 5 Powell, Pryan, Kraft, Lawson, Mayor Larkey   
Noes: 3 Richardson, Gough, Clark 

099



Absent: 1 White 
Bill No. 2023-37 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2023-4796, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 
 
Ms. Cunningham gave the final reading of Bill No. 2023-38: An ordinance amending Article 
XXI to Chapter 6 of the Code of Ordinances to implement a rental inspection program. 
Presented by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Councilmember 
Powell said he was going to amend this ordinance, but staff is already working on it. Vote on the 
final reading was recorded: 
Ayes: 5 Powell, Pryan, Kraft, Lawson, Mayor Larkey   
Noes: 3 Richardson, Gough, Clark 
Absent: 1 White 
Bill No. 2023-38 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2023-4797, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2023-46: An ordinance levying and fixing the rate of tax for 
municipal purposes, for the Park Fund, and for the Debt Service Fund for fiscal year 2024. 
Presented by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Casey Koehn, Finance 
Director, discussed assessed valuation and the numbers in the ordinance vs. the numbers in the 
public hearing notice. Vote on the first reading was recorded with all present voting in favor. First 
reading passed.  
 
Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2023-47: An ordinance amending Sections 18-2; 40-1; 40-4; and 
Appendix A of the Unified Development Code related to the Old Town Belton Overlay 
District and Schedule of Fees. 
Presented by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Matt Wright, Planning 
and Building Director, presented the Unified Development Code (UDC) text amendments. The 
Schedule of Fees amendment will remove Code of Ordinance fees from the UDC. Vote on the first 
reading was recorded with all present voting in favor. First reading passed.  
 
Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2023-48: An ordinance removing Appendix A, Part II, of the 
Code of Ordinances. 
Presented by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Mr. Wright said the 
Schedule of Fees amendment will remove UDC fees from the Code of Ordinances. Vote on the 
first reading was recorded with all present voting in favor. First reading passed.  
 
Ms. Cunningham read Bill No. 2023-49: An ordinance approving the Eighteenth Amendment 
to the Old Town Belton Redevelopment Plan to approve the 314 Main Street Project as 
redevelopment project 2023-05 and to authorize tax abatement as described therein. 
Presented by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Pursuant to RSMo 
353.110.3(2), Mayor Larkey opened the public hearing at 6:43 p.m. to receive public comments. 
Mr. Wright presented information about the amendment. He asked for consideration of a double 
reading tonight so the applicant can move forward. There was no one else present to submit 
comments. Mayor Larkey closed the public hearing at 6:46 p.m. Vote on the first reading was 

100



recorded with all present voting in favor. First reading passed. Councilmember Lawson moved 
to hear the final reading. Councilmember Pryan seconded. Vote to hear the final reading was 
recorded with all present voting in favor. Motion passed. The final reading was read. Presented 
by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Vote on the final reading was 
recorded: 
Ayes: 8 Lawson, Gough, Powell, Richardson, Pryan, Clark, Kraft, Mayor Larkey  
Noes: 0  
Absent: 1 White 
Bill No. 2023-49 was declared passed and in full force and effect as Ordinance No. 2023-4798, 
subject to Mayoral veto. 
 
Ms. Cunningham read Resolution No. R2023-81: A resolution dedicating city staff to shorten 
turnaround timelines, and ensure processes are as efficient and expedient as possible to 
entice future development of single-family owner-occupied homes in the City of Belton, 
Missouri. 
Presented by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Mr. Warren said there 
is a developer open house August 23. Vote on the resolution was recorded with all present voting 
in favor. Resolution passed. 
 
Ms. Cunningham read Resolution No. R2023-82: A resolution formally accepting the Center 
301 Apartments new public infrastructure of 977 feet of sanitary sewer main and associated 
manholes and a two-year maintenance bond in the amount of $197,472.00. 
Presented by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. Greg Rokos, Assistant 
City Manager/Public Works Director, said when a developer finishes a project the city accepts the 
infrastructure. Vote on the resolution was recorded with all present voting in favor. Resolution 
passed. 
 
Ms. Cunningham read Resolution No. R2023-83: A resolution approving the execution of an 
amendment to the agreement between City of Belton Fire Department (Belton Fire) and 
Public Consulting Group (PCG) for GEMT report processing. 
Presented by Councilmember Lawson, seconded by Councilmember Kraft. John Sapp, Fire Chief, 
said the department has not been happy with PCG, but needs a short extension of the contract to 
get the department through the fiscal year reporting. Vote on the resolution was recorded with all 
present voting in favor. Resolution passed. 
 
Mayor Larkey noted there is a scrivener’s error in the agenda packet as the Roman Numerals are 
not consistent. There is no error in the agenda itself.   
 
CONSENT AGENDA 

 
Councilmember Lawson moved to approve the consent agenda consisting of a motion: 

• approving the Minutes of the July 25, 2023, City Council Meeting.  
• authorizing the sale and disposition of surplus city inventory/personal property all in 

accordance with Section 2-991 of the Code of Ordinances, City of Belton, Missouri. 
• Resolution R2023-84: A resolution approving the purchase of two (2) DJI M30 sUAS 

(drones) in the amount of $35,082.98 from Unmanned Vehicle Technologies. 

101



• Resolution R2023-85: A resolution approving the purchase of one (1) 2024 Ford 
Maverick from Joe Machens Ford in the not-to-exceed amount of $27,080.00. 

• Resolution R2023-86: A resolution approving the execution of an Ambulance Claims 
Review Agreement (agreement) between the Fire Department and EMS Financial 
Services. 

• Resolution R2023-87: A resolution approving the execution of an agreement between 
the Belton Fire Department and Fitch & Associates, LLC for Ground Emergency 
Medical Transport Reimbursement Program report processing. 

Councilmember Kraft seconded. All present voted in favor. Consent agenda approved. 
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM CITY COUNCIL 
 
Councilmember Lawson gave a Park report 

• The farmer’s market is on Thursdays 
• Theatre in the park is this Friday and Saturday 
• September 10 is Doggy Dip Day at the outdoor water park 
• The contractors at Memorial Park and Country View Park will be finished soon 
• Youth fall sports sign ups 

 
Councilmember Clark said he saw many recycling carts out.  
 
COMMUNICATIONS FROM MAYOR 
 
Mayor Larkey told the Council to let Ms. Cunningham know if they are wanting to attend the 
Missouri Municipal League (MML) conference in September. There will be no September 12 
Council meeting due to MML. 
 
CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

August/September 2023 City Council Meetings – 6:00 p.m. 
August 22, 2023 
September 12, 2023 – Canceled 
September 26, 2023 

 
Mr. Warren said Congressman Alford held a fentanyl forum at Memorial Station. It was well 
attended.  
 
Mr. Warren sent condolences from the City of Belton to Fairway, KS for the police officer who 
was killed in the line of duty. Mayor Larkey asked for a moment of silence for the officer and his 
family. 
 
ITEMS FOR REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 
 
Mr. Wright said the amended preliminary development plan for Autumn Woods will be coming 
back to the next Council meeting. It originally failed in April. Mr. Wright discussed the 

102



amendments that will be proposed to add additional parking. The amended development and 
maintenance agreement that was tabled in April will also be coming back. 
 
Scott Lyons, Police Chief, provided information about a Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) 
shooting range Memorandum of Understanding that will be coming to the next Council meeting. 
 
At 7:14 p.m. Councilmember Lawson moved to enter Executive Session to discuss matters 
pertaining to Legal Actions, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.1; to discuss matters pertaining 
to the leasing, purchase or sale of Real Estate, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.2; and to 
discuss individually identifiable personnel records, performance ratings or records pertaining to 
employees or applicants for employment, according to Missouri Statute 610.021.13, and that the 
record be closed, and the meeting adjourned from there. Councilmember Kraft seconded. The 
following vote was recorded: 
Ayes: 8  Mayor Larkey, Gough, Pryan, Richardson, Clark, Lawson, Powell, Kraft 
Noes: 0 
Absent: 1  White 
Motion carried.  
 
Being no further business, the meeting was adjourned following the executive session. 
 
 
______________________________   ____________________________ 
Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk     Mayor Norman K Larkey, Sr 
 
 
 

103



DocuSign Envelope ID: D63CD747-F8AE-4D8D-B4f-5-FF0110F33B85 

< 

DOCKET REPRESENTS A TRUE AND ACCURATE COPY 
OF COURT PROCEEDINGS HELD 

JULY 2023 

7/31/2023 
MUNICIPAL JUDGE DATE 

IN ACCORDANCE WITH COURT OPERATING RULE 4.29 
THE ATTACHED MUNICIPAL DIVISION SUMMARY 
REPORT FOR MONTH OF JULY 2023 WAS 
PRESENTED AND REVIEWED BY CITY COUNCIL AS 
REQUIRED 

CITY CLERK DATE 

_) 

104



MUNICIPAL DIVISION SUMMARY REPORTING FORM - SM~ 
Refer to insffl)Ctions for directions and term definitions. Complete a report each month even if there has not been any court activity. 

I, ~Q!.!BI INEQBM~TIQN I Municipality: BEL TON I Reporting Period: Jul 1, 2023 - Jul 31, 2023 

Mailing Address: 7001 E 163RD STREET, BELTON, MO 64012 

Physical Address: 7001 E 163RD STREET, BEL TON, MO 64012 I County: Cass County I Circuit: 17 

Telephone Number: (816)3312798 Fax Number: 

Prepared by: LAURA ELLIS E-mail Address: laura.l.ellis@courts.mo.gov 

Municipal Judge: ROSS C. NIGRO, JR. 

II, MQtHt:tLY CASt;LQAIJ lt:IEQBMAIIQ~ Alcohol & Drug Other Non-Traffic 
Related Traffic Traffic Ordinance 

A. Cases (citations/informations) pending at start of month 50 2,976 924 

B. Cases (citations/informations) filed 5 385 99 

C. Cases (citations/informations) disposed 

1. jury trial (Springfield, Jefferson County, and St. Louis County only) 0 0 0 

2. court/bench trial - GUil TY 0 1 6 

3. court/bench trial - NOT GUil TY 0 15 2 

4. plea of GUil TY in court 0 155 26 

5. Violations Bureau Citations (i.e. written plea of guilty) and bond 
0 135 0 

forfeiture by court order (as payment of fines/costs) 

6. dismissed by court 0 2 9 

7. no/le prosequi 0 5 17 

8. certified for jury trial (not heard in Municipal Division) 0 0 0 

9. TOT AL CASE DISPOSITIONS 0 313 60 

D. Cases (citations/informations) pending at end of month [pending 
55 3,048 963 

caseload= (A+B)-C9] 

E. Trial de Novo and/or appeal applications filed 0 0 0 

Ill. WARRANT INFORMATIQN (pre- & post-disposition) IV. PARKING TICKET~ 

1. # Issued during reporting period 336 1. # Issued during period 
I 

0 

2. # Served/withdrawn during reporting period 241 G Court staff does not process parking tickets 

3. # Outstanding at end of reporting period 2,887 

Office of State Courts Administrator, Statistics, 2112 Industrial Drive, P.O. Box 104480. Jefferson City, MO 65110 
OSCA Help Desk: 1-888-541-4894 Fax: 573-526-0338 Email: MunicipatDivision.Reports@courts.mo.goy 

Page 1 of 2 Revised July 2016 

105



MUNICIPAL DIVISION SUMMARY REPORTING FORM 

COURT INFORMATION Municipality: BELTON Reporting Period: Jul 1, 2023 - Jul 31, 2023 

V, DISBURSEMENTS 

Excess Revenue (minor traffic and municipal Other Disbursements:Enter below additional surcharges 

ordinance violations, subject to the excess revenue and/or fees not listed above. Designate if subject to the 

percentage limitation) excess revenue percentage limitation. Examples include, 
but are not limited to, arrest costs and witness fees. 

Fines - Excess Revenue $23,071.87 Appointed Counsel Fund $275.62 

Clerk Fee - Excess Revenue $2,603.44 Appointed Counsel Fund Expend $7.00 

Crime Victims Compensation (CVC) Fund 
$87.05 eve Surcharge State $0.37 

surcharge - Paid to City/Excess Revenue 
eve Surcharge-E/R $0.37 

Bond forfeitures (paid to city) - Excess 
$1,390.00 Court Automation $1,890.67 Revenue 

Total Excess Revenue $27,152.36 Total Other Disbursements $2,174.03 

Other Revenue (non-minor traffic and ordinance To_tal Disbursements of Costs, Fees, 
$43,350.00 

violations, not subject to the excess revenue Surcharges and Bonds Forfeited 
percentage limitation) 

Bond Refunds $1,085.00 
Fines - Other $7,502.13 Total Disbursements $44,435.00 
Clerk Fee - Other $428.29 

Judicial Education Fund (JEF) 
[] Court does not retain-funds for JEF $0.00 

Peace Officer Standards and Training 
$273.10 (POST) Commission surcharge 

Crime Victims Compensation 
(CVC) Fund surcharge - Paid to $1,947.13 
State 

Crime Victims Compensation (CVC) Fund 
$13.96-surcharge - Paid to City/Other 

Law Enforcement Training (LET) Fund 
$546.50 surcharge ' 

Domestic Violence Shelter surcharge $551.50 

Inmate Prisoner Detainee Security Fund 
$551.00 surcharge 

Restitution $100.00 

Parking ticket revenue (including penalties) $0.00 

Bond forfeitures (paid to city) - Other $2,110.00 

Total Other Revenue $14,023.61 

Office of State Courts Administrator, Statistics, 2112 lnduslrial Drive, P.O. Box 104480, Jefferson City, MO 65110 
OSCA Help Desk: 1~888-541-4894 Fax: 573-526-0338 Email: Mynicipa!Pivision.Reoorts@courts,mo.goy 

Page 2 of 2 Revised July 2016 

106



MuN1c1PAL 01v1s10N suMMARv REPORTING FORM I N Co DE_ 
Refer to instructions for directions and term definitions. Complete e report each month even if there has not been any court activity. 

I. CO!,!RT INFORMATION 
Contact information same as last reportlil 

Municipality: I Belton I Reporting Period: 7/2023 

Mailing Address: 7001 E. 163rd St. Belton 64012 Software Vendor: Tyler Technologies 

Physical Address: 7001 E. 163rd St. Belton 64012 County: CASS COUNTY Circuit: 17 

Telephone Number: (816) 331-2798 Fax Number: (816) 348-4439 

Prepared by: Laura Ellis I E-mail Address: beltoncourts@beltonmocourt.org iNotes Iii 
Municipal Judge(s) ROSS NIGRO I . I . WILLIAM N . MARSHALL Judge Is Attorney D Prosecuting Attorney: 

111 

II. MONTHLY CASELOAD INFORMATION 
Alcohol and Drug other Non-1 raffle 

Related Traffic Traffic Ordinance 

A. cases (citations I informations) pending at start of month 
143 4,835 1,569 

B. cases {citations/ informations) filed 
0 0 D 

C. cases (citations/ informations) disposed 

1. jury trial (Springfield, Jefferson County, and St. Louis County only 

2. court I bench trial - GUil TY 
0 0 0 

3. court I bench trial - NOT GUil TY 
0 0 0 

4. plea of GUil TY in court 
0 0 D 

5. Violations Bureau Citations (i.e., written plea of guilty) and 
bond forfeitures by court order (as payment of fines/ costs) 0 0 0 

6. dismissed by court 
0 0 0 

7. no/le prosequi 
0 0 0 

8. certified for jury trial (not heard in the Municipal Division) 
0 0 0 

9. TOTAL CASE DISPOSITIONS 
0 0 0 

D. cases (citations/ informations) pending at end of month 
[pending caseload = (A + B) - C9] 143 4,835 1,569 

E. Trial de Novo and I or appeal applications filed 
0 0 0 

Ill. WARRANT INEORMATION (Pre and Posi DisgQsition} IV. PARKING TICKEI§ 

1. # issued during reporting period 0 # issued during period I 0 

2. # served/withdrawn during reporting period 70 

Iii Court staff does not process parking tickets 
3. # outstanding at end of reporting period 3,102 

Office of State Courts Administrator, Statistics, 2112 lndusb'lal Drive, P.O. Box 104480, Jeffenion City, MO 65110 
OSCA Help Desk: 1-888-541-4894 Fax: 573-526..0338 E-mail Address: Mun;c;pafPivJsion.Reports@courts mo gov 

Page 1 of 2 Revised July 2016 

107



MUNICIPAL DIVISION SUMMARY REPORTING FORM 

COURT INFORMATION Municipality: Belton Reporting Period: 7/2023 

v.1 DISBURSEMENTS 
' t:xcess Revenue 1mmor cra111c ana mumc1pa1 oramance 

violations, subject to the excess revenue percentage Other Disbursements cont. 
limitation l 

Fines - Excess Revenue 
' 

Clerk Fee - Excess Revenue 

Crime Victims Compensation (CVC) Fund 
surcharge - Paid to City/Excess Revenue 
Bond forfeitures (paid to city) - Excess 
Revenue 

Total Excess Revenue 

Other Revenue (non-minor traffic and ordinance violations, 
not subject to the excess revenue percentage limitation) 

Fines - other 

Clerk Fee - Other 

Judicial Education Fund (JEF) 
Iii Court does not retain funds for JEF 

Peace officer Standards and Training 
(POST) Commission surcharge 

Crime Victims Compensation (CVC) Fund 
surcharge - Paid to State 
Crime Victims Compensation (CVC) Fund 
surcharge - Paid to City/Other 
Law Enforcement Training (LET) Fund 
surcharge 

Qomestic Violence Shelter surcharge J 

Inmate Prisoner Detainee Security Fund 
surcharge 

Sheriffs' Retirement Fund (SRF) surcharge ' 

I 

Restitution 

Parking ticket revenue (including penalties) 

Bond forfeitures (paid to city) - Other 

Total Revenue Other 

' 
Other Disbursements: Enter below additional surcharges Total Other Disbursements 
and/or fees not listed above, Designate if subject to the excess Total Disbursements of Costs, 
revenue percentage limitation. Examples include, but are not Fees, Surcharges and Bonds 
limited to, arrest costs, witness fees, and board bill/jail costs. Forfeited 

- Bond Refunds 

Total Disbursements 

Office of State Courts Administrator, Statistics, 2112 Industrial Drive, P.O. Box 104480, Jefferson City, MO 65110 

oscA Help Desk: 1-888-541-4894 Fax: 573-526-0338 E-man Address· Munlcloa!Divlslon Benorts@courts mo aov 
Page 2 of 2 Revised July 2016 

108



R2023-90 
 
A RESOLUTION REAPPOINTING RONALD BRANAN, DAVE CLARK, AND TOM 
MACPHERSON AND APPOINTING ART MEYERS TO THE ENHANCED 
ENTERPRISE ZONE BOARD.            
 
WHEREAS, the City of Belton established the Enhanced Enterprise Zone Board on June 23, 
2009, by resolution R2009-25; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ronald Branan, Dave Clark, and Tom MacPherson’s terms have expired; they are 
hereby reappointed to serve as a member of the Enhanced Enterprise Zone Board; and 
 
WHEREAS, Ron Peek has resigned his position and his term has expired; this term is hereby 
reappointed but will remain vacant until filled; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dennis Williamson has resigned his position; and 
 
WHEREAS, Art Meyers is hereby appointed to fulfill the unexpired term of Dennis Williamson.  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
SECTION 1.  That the following named individuals constitute the Enhanced Enterprise Zone 
Board with terms of office as shown or until their successor(s) is duly appointed: 
 

NAME        TERM 
Dr. Andrew Underwood   June 23, 2024  representing Belton School District 
Art Meyers      June 23, 2024  representing Cass County, Missouri 
Sally Smith      June 23, 2026  representing the City of Belton 
Vacant       June 23, 2027  representing the City of Belton 
Ronald Branan     June 23, 2027  representing the City of Belton 
Dave Clark      June 23, 2028  representing the City of Belton 
Tom MacPherson    June 23, 2028  representing the City of Belton 

 
SECTION 2. This resolution shall take effect and be in full force from and after its passage and 
approval. 
 
SECTION 3. That all resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict with this resolution are 
hereby repealed. 
  
Duly read and passed this 22nd day of August, 2023. 
   
                           
                Mayor Norman K Larkey, Sr 
 
 

109



ATTEST: 
 
                           

Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri 

 
STATE OF MISSOURI  ) 
COUNTY OF CASS      )  SS. 
CITY OF BELTON        ) 
 
I, Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk, do hereby certify that I have been duly appointed City Clerk 
of the City of Belton, Missouri, and that the foregoing Resolution was introduced at a meeting of 
the City Council held on the 22nd day of August, 2023 and adopted at a meeting of the City 
Council held the 22nd  day of August, 2023 by the following vote, to-wit: 
 
AYES:   COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
NOES:   COUNCILMEMBER: 
  
ABSENT:    COUNCILMEMBER:  
 
               _______________________________ 
               Andrea Cunningham, City Clerk 

 of the City of Belton, Missouri 
 

 

110



Certified Copy of Record 

STATE OF MISSOURI,} ss. 

County of Cass, 

In the County Commission of Cass County, Missouri, at the July Term, 2023, held on the 26th 
day of July 2023 amongst others, were the following proceedings: 

RESOLUTION NO. 23-63 
OF THE CASS COUNTY COMMISSION 

APPOINTING ART MEYERS TO THE BELTON ENHANCED ENTERPRISE ZONE 
BOARD 

BE IT HEREBY RESOLVED AND ORDERED BY THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF CASS 
COUNTY, MISSOURI, THAT, this Commission hereby appoints Art Meyers to the Belton 
Enhanced Enterprise Zone Board. 

ADOPTED BY THE COUNTY COMMISSION OF CASS COUNTY, MISSOURI, THIS 26th 

DAY OF JULY 2023. 

- ----·-) 

-~~ ~on~sner 
Presiding Commissioner Associate Commissioner 

Dist. 1 

ATTEST: 

Dated: 7 / cJ..~ l ~3 
I 

ciate Commissioner 
...__ 

t. 2 

111


	Agenda
	6a - Autumn Woods PDP
	CAR - Autumn Woods Amended PDP
	ORD - PDP Autumn Woods
	Autumn Woods PDP FDP_Staff Report_ Packet

	6b - Autumn Woods Dev Maint Agmt
	CAR - Autumn Woods Dev Maint Agree
	Ord Dev Maint Agree - Autumn Woods
	Autumn Woods Dev Maint Agree - Exhibit A
	FINAL Amended Development Agreement Autumn Woods - Revised 3-10-2023
	Signed Development Agreement 03-23-23


	6c - Cross and Mac Final Plat
	CAR - Cross and Mac
	Ordinance - Cross and Mac
	Exhibit A Cross and Mac

	6d - Bays Place Rezoning
	1. CAR - Bays Place Rezoning
	2. ORD - Bays Place Rezoning
	BILL NO. 2023-52             ORDINANCE NO. 2023-
	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELTON, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS:

	3. Exhibit A - Bays Place Rezoning
	Binder1
	Bays_ Staff Report_Packet

	Reduced2


	6e - Bays Place Final Plat
	1. CAR - Bays Place Final Plat
	2. Ord - Bays Place Final Plat
	3. Exhibit A - Bays Place Final Plat
	Binder1
	Bays_ Staff Report_Packet

	Reduced2


	6f - SV Comm Center 4th Plat Infrastructure Acceptance
	1. CAR
	2. RES
	3. Memo & Site Map

	6g - BT&Co Audit Services
	1. CAR Audit Engagement
	2. Res FY23 Audit Engagement
	Document_20230331_0001

	7a - August 8, 2023 City Council minutes
	Assessed Valuation (applies to calendar year 2023):
	(By Categories)

	7b - July 2023 Court Report
	7c - Enhanced Enterprise Board appointments
	EEZ appt Meyers & reappt Branan, Clark, MacPherson
	Cass County appointment




